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MILLENNIUM & COPTHORNE HOTELS PLC
FOURTH QUARTER AND FULL YEAR RESULTS TO 31 DECEMBER 2006

Millennium & Copthorne Hotels plc today announces fourth quarter and full year to 31 December 2006 results
together with a trading update. The Group has a portfolio of 108 hotels located in the Americas, Eurape,
Middie-East, Asia and New Zealand.

Fourth quarter highlights

Group RevPAR up by 5.0% and up by 10.4% at constant rates of exchange

Revenue up 5.9% to £177.5m (2005: £167.6m), up 10.9% at constant rates of exchange

Hotel operating profit up 15.0% to £42.1m (2005: £36.6m), up 17.9% at constant rates of exchange
Headline operating profit up 13.3% to £43.4m (2005: £38.3m) "

Headline profit before tax up 14.2% to £35.4m (2005: £31.0m)

Headline earnings per share up 6.8% to 9.4p (2005: 8.8p) *

Full year highlights

« Group RevPAR up by 8.1% and up by 8.9% at constant rates of exchange with particularly strong
performances in the US and Asia with RevPAR growth of 10.6% and 13.8% respectively {at constant rates
of exchange)

+ Group average rate growth of 6.8% at constant rates of exchange, reflects success in implementing rate-

driven RevPAR strategy

Revenue up 8.6% to £646.3m (2005: £595.2m)

Hotel operating profit up 12.7% to £120.3m {2005: £106.7m)

Headline operating profit up 15.4% to £124.7m (2005: £108.1m) *

Headline profit before tax up 27.6% to £94.4m (2005: £74.0m) °

Headline earnings per share up 16.6% to 21.8p (2005: 18.7p)

Dividends of 12.5p per share for the year, up 62.3% comprising ordinary dividend of 8.5p per share and

special dividend of 4.0p per share

» Sale of long-term leasehold interests in three Singapore hotels and subsequent leaseback gave rise to a
£10.1m pre-tax profit, realised £210.6m in cash of which £78.0m was reinvested for a 39.1% stake in a
CDLHT?

* Results of CDLHT and its impact on the Group have improved profit before tax by £2.7m, excluding the
gains from the sale of long-term leasehold hotel interests and the Group's share of fair vafue adjustment to
properties owned by CDLHT

a & & & & 9

! Adjusted to exclude other operating income (Group and share of associates) and impaiment

2 CDL. Hospitality Trusts (a combination of a hospitality real estate investment trust and hospitality business trust, newly listed on the Stock
Exchange of Singapore in July 2006)

3 Adjusted to exclude other operating income (Group and share of assoclates) and impairment (net of tax)
Commenting today, Mr Kwek Leng Beng, Chairman said:

| am pleased to report on our 2006 results which show an improvement in operating profits and further capital
gains from the realisation of some of our assets. This has led to the Group’s highest level of profits since our
listing in 1996.

Since the industry’s low point in 2003, the Group has achieved a steady and sustainable recovery through a
focused strategy laid down by the Board in 2004. This strategy was aimed at restoring the Group's profitability,
redeploying the Group’s assets and developing the hotel brand whilst maintaining a dividend consistent with
the Group’s cverall performance.

Revenue increased 8.6% to £646.3m with headline operating profit up 15.4% to £124.7m. Headline profit
before tax rose to £94.4m an increase of 27.6%. During the pericd under review we sold the long term
leasehold interests in 3 Singapore hotels to the Hospitality REIT, CDLHT. This realised £210.6m in cash of
which £78m was reinvested for a 39.1% stake in the REIT.

The Board is recommending a dividend of 10.42p per share comprising a final dividend of 6.42p per share plus
a special dividend of 4.00p per share. Tagether with the interim dividend of 2.08p per share (2005: 2.08p), the
total dividend of 12.5p represents an increase of 62.3% over last year's total of 7.7p. The dividend increase
reflects both the growth in profit before tax and the Group’s future investment needs.

The Group remains committed lo its priority to grow its international hotet business. Despite the divestment
trend evident in a number of hotel groups in recent years, our strategy has always been to be both long-term
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nexipity created tnrougn e vuLn i platiorm put us in an agvantageous posilion 1o seize opporiunties.

As a hotel chain with substantial real estate assets, the Group is able to maximise the value of our hotels at the
right time to create a larger sustainable earnings stream. We have demonstrated our ability to unlock
shareholder value, The sale of The Plaza Hotel in New York is an example of how the Group maximised value
by selling an asset based on its real estate potential rather than on earnings alone. The recent flotation of the
CDLHT is another example where we have realised both one off gains and continue to enjoy the value that
CDLHT is generating.

The Group is now well placed for growth. This will be realised through continued focus on improvements in
operational performance and, in the medium term, by elevating the status of some of our key strategic hotels in
prime locations. This repositioning exercise will be achieved through the total refurbishment and
redevelopment of these hotels, with the ullimate objective of enhancing their earnings potential and value.

We have commissionad a study of the Millennium brand. This study confirms further improvement in both our
brand recognition and reputation. This progress is particularly encouraging following a recovery period in which
we reduced brand investment fo protect Group earnings. In global terms, our brand awareness continues to
grow and its strength is underlined by our success in winning management contracts in the highly competitive
Asian, Middle Eastern and UK markets. The Group announced 9 new management contracts during the year
taking the total number of rooms signed since 2004 to just under 4,000 and the total number of management
contracts to 21,

In 2005, the Group announced its commitment to grow the Copthore chain. Since that announcement, we
have secured 4 management contracts, Over time, there remains a significant opportunity to increase the tota
number of Copthorne rooms without further acquisitions due to existing redevelopment potential within these
properties. The Manchester Copthorne, for instance, should be suitable for redevelopment to take advantage
of the transformation of the city where the super casino will be located.

Asia is a key region in the Group's future development. it has fully recovered from the Asian financial crisis and
is once again a resurgent region. The growth in inter-city business and leisure travel resulting in increased
demand for accommodation is expected to outstrip the growth in hotel rooms. This situation is expected to
remain particulary acute in Singapore for at least the next three years. Beyond this timeframe visitor arrivals to
Singapore are expected to increase from the current 9 million to 17 million, by 2015, as a result of initiatives to
be implemented by the Singapore tourism board. The Group owns and operates prime assets in gateway
Asian cities such as Bangkok, Kuala Lumpur, Taipei, Seoul, Shanghai and from 2008, Beijing. With the
substantial growth of real estate values in some of these key cities, acquisition of prime sites has become more
restricted and more expensive.

The appointment of Peter Papas as the Group Chief Executive Officer, with effect from 1 March, will bring a
fresh perspective to the management team. His broad experience as a chartered accountant, investment
banker, director within the hospitality and private equity sectors as well as being a hands-on leader will be
invaluable to the Group. Peter will be able to offer new approaches and provide the Group with fresh impetus
to drive organic growth, and, if the right opportunities arise, growth through acquisition.

In the first six weeks of 2007, trading has continued to be in line with the positive trends of 2006 with RevPAR
growth of 10.5%. We remain confident, therefore, of a successful outcome to the year as a whole.

{ am confident that, with the new management team, we have a solid foundation from which we can move our
business forward into the next stage of its development.

Enquiries:

Robin Lee, Senior Vice President Finance +44 (0) 20 7872 2444
Millenrnium & Copthorne Hotels plc

Ben Foster/Charlie Watenphul
Financial Dynamics +44 (0) 20 7831 3113

There will be an audio webcast of the results presentation from 9:15am on 23™ February 2007 on
http://www.millenniumhotels.com




FOURTH QUARTER AND FULL YEAR RESULTS TO 31 DECEMBER 2006

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Fourth quarter Full year
2006 2005 2006 2005
£m Em £m £m
Revenue 177.5 167.6 646.3 595.2
Headline operating profit 434 38.3 124.7 108.1
Other operating income - subsidiaries’ 11.2 12.2 216 283
Other operating income — share of associates’ 17.7 - 17.7 -
Impairment (3.5) (6.5) (3.5) (6.5)
Other® (2.6) (1.9) {6.3) (5.0
Operating profit 66.2 421 154.2 124.9
Headline profit before tax® 354 31.0 94.4 74.0
Profit before tax 60.8 36.7 130.2 95.8
Headline EPS 9.4p 8.8p 21.8p 18.7p
Basic EPS 17.4p 8.8p 34.5p 21.3p
Key performance measures
RevPAR growth at constant rates of exchange” 10.4% nfa 8.9% n/a
Occupancy growth 2.5% n/a 1.8% n/a
Average room rate growth at constant rates of exchange* 7.7% n/a 6.8% nfa
Hotel revenue growth at constant rates of exchange* 9.7% nfa 7.4% nfa
Hotel operating profit growth at constant rates of 17.9% nfa 12.9% nfa
exchange*
Effective tax rate (excluding joint ventures and associates) 21.1% 28.2%
Free cash flow £283.3m £69.0m

1. Other operating income — subsidiaries represents profit on disposal of operating assets, business interruption insurance proceeds and
fair value adjustments {o investment property.
Other operating incorne — share of associates, represents the Group's 39.1% share of fair value adjustment to properties owned by
CDLHT.

2. Other represents share of interest, tax and minority interests of joint ventures and associates.

3. Headline profit before tax excludes other operating income and impairment.

* At constant rates of exchange (December 2006 exchange rates)

Trading perfermance

For the fourth quarter, the Group recorded a pre tax profit of £60.8m (2005: £36.7m). Hotel operating profit
margin improved to 24.8% compared to 22.6% in 2005. Headline profit before tax increased by £4.4m to
£35.4m (2005: £31.0m). Basic earnings per share increased by 97.7% to 17.4p (2005: 8.8p} and headline EPS
increased by 6.8% to 9.4p (2005: 8.8p).

Group RevPAR for the fourth quarter increased by 10.4% at constant rates of exchange. Group occupancies
increased by 2.5% and average rate grew by 7.7%. Al constant rates of exchange, total hotel revenues
increased by £15.1m and hotel operating profit by £6.4m to £42.1m.

For the full year, the Group recorded a pre tax profit of £130.2m (2005: £95.8m). Hotel operating profit margin
improved to 19.4% compared to 18.4% in 2005. Headline profit before tax increased by £20.4m to £94.4m
(2005: £74.0m). Basic earnings per share increased by 62.0% to 34.5p (2005: 21.3p} and headline EPS
increased by 16.6% to 21.8p (2005: 18.7p).

Group RevPAR for the year increased by 8.9% at constant rates of exchange. Group occupancies increased by
1.9% and average rate grew by 6.8%. At constant rates of exchange, total hotel revenues increased by £43.0m
and hotel operating profit by £13.7m to £120.3m.




The impact of COLHT results on the Group has improved profit before tax by £2.7m, excluding the gains from
sale of long-term leasehold interests.

Other operating income of the Group includes increases in the fair value of investment property £4.9m (2005:
£5.9m), profit on sale and leaseback of three Singapore hotels of £10.1m and business interruption insurance
proceeds £5.5m (2005: £12.8m). The share of associates other income of £17.7m represents the Group's
share of uplift in value of properties owned by CDLHT.

Taxation

The total Group lax charge excluding the tax relating to joint ventures is £22.1m (2005: £26.0m), giving rise to
an effective rate of 21.1% (2005: 28.2%). The lower rate in 2006 is primarily due to a tax credit arising on the
disposal of three of our Singapore hotels.

A tax charge of £1.8m (2005: £1.4m) relating to joint ventures and associates is included in the reported profit
before tax,

Sale of three Singapare hotels and investment in CDL Hospitality Trusts

Following a strategic review of its Singapore hotels and with a view to build an asset-light, fee based income
platform, the Group has capitalised on the strong market sentiments of real estate investment trusts in
Singapore and unlocked value through the sale of long term leasehold interests in three Singaporean hotels for
a consideration of S$612.2m (£210.6m) to CDL Hospitality Trusts ('CDLHT'), a hospitality real estate
investment trust group on 198 July 2006. This has created a platform for the acceleration of future asset portfolio
and fee income growth for the Group. To demonstrate our commitment to COLHT, the Group re-invested
£78.0m for a 39.1% interest in CDLHT,

Net proceeds from the sale have been used to reduce the Group's net debt.

CDLHT also acquired the Grand Copthorne Waterfront Hotel, a Group-managed hotel, from our intermediate
parent company City Developments Limited for $$234.1m (£80.5m). CDLHT, in turn entered into an agreement
on 19 July 2006 to lease all four hotels back to the Group. The Group entered into a further agreement with
CDLHT to manage CDLHT far which the Group receives a management fee.

The Group recorded a £10.1m pre-tax profit from the sale of long leasehold interests in the three hotels. This is
calculated after the deduction of an unrealised pre-tax profit element of £6.5m (£9.3m post-tax profit)
representing 39.1% of total profit which is in line with the Group's accounting policy whereby transactions with
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in the entity. This unreatised element has been
reflected in a comparable reduction of the Group's cost of investment in associates shown in the balance sheet.

The CDLHT's initial public offering price of $$0.83 has increased by $$0.84 to S$1.67 as at 31 December
2008. As at 30 January 2007, the share price was 5$1.76.

Falr value adjustments of investment propertles

At the end of 2006, the Group's investment commercial properties consisting of the King's Tanglin Shopping
Centre in Singapore and the Biltmore Court & Tower, Los Angeles were subject to an external professional
valuation. These properties recorded an aggregated uplift in value of £4.9m (2005: £5.9m). In line with the
Group's accounting policy this has been credited to the income statement under other operating income.

Under its accounting policies the properties of COLHT were also subject to external valuation. The properties
recorded an uplift for which the Group's 39.1% share was £17.7m. This has been credited to the income
statement under other operating income - share of associates.

Valuation of hotel assets

The Group states land and buildings at depreciated deemed cost, being their UK GAAP carrying value,
including revaluations as at 1 January 2004 together with additions thereafter less subsequent depreciation or
provision for impairment. External professional cpen market valuations on certain of the Group’s hote! portfolio
have taken place at 31 December in each of the years 2004, 2005 and 2006 covering the entire Group's hotel
portfolio over this three year period. Valuation surpluses have not been recorded in the accounts. Based on
external valuations conducted at 31 December 2006 on 29% (based on net book value) of the Group's hotel
portfolio, a valuation surplus of £78.3m is estimated but this has not been recorded in the accounts.

The Group undertakes an annual review of the carrying value of hote! and property assets for indications of
impairment. An impairment charge of £3.5m (2005: £6.5m) has been recorded in the year.



in the same way that the Group adjusts profit before tax to remove the impact of other operating income and
impairment in arriving at headline profit before tax, it also reports headline earnings per share. The adjustments
to earnings per share are set out in note 5 to this announcement. Headline earnings per share rose from 18.7p
per share in 2005 to 21.8p per share in 2006, a 3.1p increase. The growth in headline eamings per share is due
1o a combination of both operating profit growth and a lower current tax rate noted above.

Dividend

The Group is recommending a final dividend of 6.42p per share this year plus a special dividend of 4.00p per
share, compared to 5.62p last year. Taken together with the interim dividend of 2.08p (2005; 2.08p}, the total
dividend of 12.5p represents an increase of 62.3% over last year's total of 7.7p. The dividend increase is a
reflection of both the growth in profit before tax and the Group's future investment needs.

This dividend for 2006 is covered 2.8 times by earnings (2005; 2.8 times). Subject to approval by sharehclders
at the Annuat General Meeting to be held on 3 May 2007, the final dividend and special dividend will be paid on
18 May 2007 to shareholders on the register on 23 March 2007. The ex-dividend date of the Company's shares
is 21 March 2007.

Future funding

With the Group's modest gearing levels, it substantial interest cover, £156.4m of undrawn and committed
facilities and demonstrable ability to unlock property value through a REIT, the Group is confident that it will be
able to finance its planned capita! commitments.

Cash Flow and Balance sheet

During the year, the Group generated free cash flow (before dividend payments) of £283.3m, an increase of
£214.3m compared to 2005. The improvement in free cash flow reflects the increase in profits, a net working
capital outflow of £2.0m and disposal proceeds from the sale of long term leasehold interests in three
Singapore hotels.

Of the £2.5m nel additions to development properties, £6.2m was invested in the redevelopment of the Four
Points Sunnyvale Hotel in California into 240 residential condominiums for sale and a 250-room hotel.
Development of Four Points Sunnyvale Hotel is expected to complete in 2008,

At 31 December 2006, the Group’s net debt was £220.0m lower than 2005 at £260.4m {2005: £480.4m).

2006 2005
£m £m
Cash generated from operations (excluding development properties) 147.0 133.7
Interest and tax (37.4) (42.4)
Total investment in properties {37.1) (56.8)
Analysed between
Development and refurbishment of hotels {34.6) {39.2)
xpenditure on development properties (2.5) (17.6)
Disposals 210.8 345
Free cash flow 283.3 69.0
tnvestment in agsociate (39.1% in CDL Hospitality Trusts) {78.0) -
increase in loan to joint venture (3.3) -
Proceeds from disposal of joint venture 4.0 6.5
Dividends paid - to equity holders of the parent {9.1) (31.5)
- to minorities (2.2) {2.3)
Other mevemenls 253 (39.1)
Decrease in net debt 220.0 26
Opening net debt {480.4) {483.0)
Closing net debt {260.4) {480.4)




nolels @ WINLD ong term leasenold nleresis were sold less a nominal reversionary interest carrying values
from the two freehold hotels disposed (Orchard Hotel and M-Hotel). Leasehold premium prepayment has also
been reduced by £7.6m, being the land element of the remaining long leasehold interest of the Kings Hotel,
now assigned to COLHT.

Investments in associates have been: (i) increased by the Group's 39.1% investment in CDLHT of £78.0m
which, as noted above, has been reduced by £9.3m of unrealised post-tax profits arising from the sale of the
long leasehold interests; (i) increased by CDLHT eamnings, equity accounted for, that have not been distributed
by way of dividend and its share of the asset revalualion reserves; and (jii) adjusted by exchange translation
differences,

FULL YEAR PERFORMANCE BY REGION

UNITED STATES
New York

RevPAR growth in New York continues to be heavily rate-driven with average rate increases of 11.7% while
occupancy has grown by 2.0 percentage points. This has resulted in a RevPAR improvement of 14.4%. GOP
margin has increased fram 34.2% in 2005 to 37.7% in 2006,

Market demand remains high in New York and, combined with our strong market position, this has allowed a
continuation of the Group's aggressive rate strategy that was introduced in 2005.

The Millennium Hotel UN Plaza, in addition to good rate growth experienced the largest occupancy increase of
our New York hotels and is now the strongest in terms of occupancy level. The Millennium Broadway and
Millenium Hilton which continue to have higher occupancies used that base to sell for higher room rates,

Regional US

Excluding the impact of the Wynfield Hotel which the Group repossessed in December 2005 and the closure of
the Sunnyvale Four Points Hotel at the beginning of 2006, like-for-like RevPAR increased by 10.3% to £35.92
(2005: £32.57). This was the result of a 2.0 percentage point occupancy increase and a 7.1% rate increase.
The Regional US recovery continues to gain momentum, although it is not equally spread across the portfolio.
Ali properties with one exception increased RevPAR, with particularly strong growth in our three key locations
of Los Angeles, Boston and Chicago.

On an unadjusted basis, RevPAR was up 6.1% to £34.55 (2005; £32.56).

EUROPE
London

Full year RevPAR increased by 9.5% to £74.50 (2005: £68.01) driven by increases of 2.2 percentage points in
occupancy and 6.8% in rate.

Overall London figures were impacted by the 142 room refurbishment during the first quarter at the Millennium
Gloucester Hotel. RevPAR growth for this property in the second half of the year was much stronger cnce the
refurbished room stock was available.

Year on year growth at the Copthorne Tara Hotel has been flat. This is the result of a decision to shed two
large but low yielding pieces of business to enable future higher yielding corporate business to be booked in
their place. Excluding the Tara's performance, London’s RevPAR growth was 14%.

Rest of Europe

RevPAR increased by 2.7% to £52.08 with occupancy up by 0.5 percentage points to 73.3%, and average rate
up 2.0% to £71.05.

Regional UK
RevPAR increased 2.8% to £53.90 which was entirely driven by rate.

Growth in the UK market remains mixed with the strongest improvements coming from our two Scottish hotels
whilst over supply of room stock in Cardiff has had a negative impact on RevPAR in this city.




Our presence in these two countries remains limited to four hotels. RevPAR increased by 2.1% to £49.12
primarily through occupancy with a small increase in rate.

All four properties experienced positive RevPAR growth with our two German properties producing the stronger
performance.

ASIA

Our rate-driven growth strategy in Asia achieved an increase in average rate of 10.2% to £59.07. Occupancy
increased by 2.4 percentage points resulting in RevPAR up 13.8% 1o £44 95,

Singapore

Singapore was the strongest market in the Group this year. On a like for like basis, with full year pro-forma
figures for the Grand Coptharne Waterfront, Singapore properties have grown RevPAR by 31.5% driven by
occupancy growth and strong rate increases.

Rest of Asia

Qutside of Singapore, overall growth has been more modest. RevPAR increased by 6.1% driven mainly by rate
increases.

All hotels improved on prior year RevPAR with the strongest growth arising in our two Malaysian properties, Of
our larger Asian properties, Grand Hyalt Taipei saw rate growth at the expense of occupancy whilst the
Millennium Seoui Hilton showed a modest rate increase.

NEW ZEALAND

in New Zealand, where we operate under the Millennium, Copthorne and Kingsgate brands, RevPAR has
remained flat at £27.65 with litle change in occupancy or average rate.

There was modest growth in both the Millennium and Copthorne brands offset by a shortfall in the Kingsgate
brand. The leases on two of the Kingsgate hotels were due to expire this year and sales and marketing
activities were consequently scaled down. Subsequently, the leases were extended by one and two years. This
resulted in the loss of specific seasonal business which was not readily replaceable. Also contributing to the
shortfall within Kingsgate is the refurbishment of the Kingsgate OQriental Bay.

REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

| am pleased to report on our 2006 results which show an improvement in operating profits and further capital
gains from the realisation of some of our assets. This has led to the Group's highest level of profits since our
listing in 1996.

Since the industry’s low point in 2003, the Group has achieved a steady and sustainable recovery through a
focused strategy laid down by the Board in 2004. This strategy was aimed at restoring the Group's profitability,
redeploying the Group's assets and developing the hotel brand whilst maintaining a dividend consistent with
the Group's overall perfarmance.

Revenue increased 8.6% to £646.3m with headline operating profit up 15.4% to £124.7m. Headline profit
before tax rose to £94.4m an increase of 27.6%. During the period under review we sold the long term
leasehold interests in 3 Singapore hotels to the Hospitality REIT, CDLHT. This realised £210.6m in cash of
which £78m was reinvested for a 39.1% stake in the REIT.

The Board is recommending a dividend of 10.42p per share comprising a final dividend of 6.42p per share plus
a special dividend of 4.00p per share. Together with the interim dividend of 2.08p per share (2005: 2.08p), the
total dividend of 12.5p represents an increase of 62.3% over last year's total of 7.7p. The dividend increase
reflects both the growth in profit before tax and the Group’s future investment needs.

The Group remains committed to its priority to grow its international hotel business. Despite the divestment
trend evident in a number of hotel groups in recent years, our strategy has always been to be both long-term
owner and operator of hotels given the size of our portfolio. The Group will continue to grow the hotel business
by adopting sustainable strategies. The financial capacity reflected in the Group's balance sheet and the
flexibility created through the CDLHT platform put us in an advantageous position to seize opportunities.
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by seliing an asset based on its real estate potential rather than on earnings alone. The recent flotation of the
CDLHT is another example where we have realised both one off gains and continue to enjoy the value that
COLHT is generating.

The Group is now well placed for growth. This will be realised through continued focus on improvements in
operational performance and, in the medium term, by elevating the status of some of our key strategic hotels in
prime locations. This repositioning exercise will be achieved through the total refurbishment and
redevelopment of these hotels, with the ultimate objective of enhancing their earnings potential and value.

We have commissioned a study of the Millennium brand. This study confirms further improvement in both our
brand recognition and reputation. This progress is particularly encouraging following a recovery period in which
we reduced brand investment to protect Group earnings. In global terms, our brand awareness continues to
grow and its strength is underlined by our success in winning management contracts in the highly competitive
Asian, Middle Eastern and UK markets. The Group announced 9 new management contracts during the year
taking the total number of rooms signed since 2004 to just under 4,000 and the total number of management
contracts to 21.

In 2005, the Group announced its commitment to grow the Copthorne chain. Since that announcement, we
have secured 4 management contracts. Over time, there remains a significant opportunity to increase the total
number of Copthorne rooms without further acquisitions due to existing redevelopment potential within these
properties. The Manchester Coptharne, for instance, should be suitable for redevelopment to take advantage
of the transformation of the city where the super casino will be located.

Asia is a key region in the Group’s future development. It has fully recovered from the Asian financial crisis and
is once again a resurgent region. The growth in inter-city business and leisure travel resulting in increased
demand for accommodation fs expected to outstrip the growth in hotel rooms. This situation is expected to
remain particularly acute in Singapore for at least the next three years. Beyond this timeframe visitor arrivals to
Singapore are expected to increase from the current 9 million to 17 mitlion, by 2015, as a result of initiatives to
be implemented by the Singapore tourism board. The Group owns and operates prime assets in gateway
Asian cities such as Bangkok, Kuala Lumpur, Taipei, Seoul, Shanghai and from 2008, Beijing. With the
substantial growth of real estate values in some of these key cities, acquisition of prime sites has become more
restricted and more expensive.

The appointment of Peter Papas as the Group Chief Executive Officer, with effect from 1 March, will bring a
fresh perspective to the management team. His broad experience as a chartered accountant, investment
banker, director within the hospitality and private equity sectors as well as being a hands-on leader will be
invaluable to the Group. Peter will be able to offer new approaches and provide the Group with fresh impetus
to drive organic growth, and, if the right opportunities arise, growth through acquisition.

In the first six weeks of 2007, trading has continued to be in line with the positive trends of 2006 with RevPAR
growth of 10.5%. We remain confident, therefore, of a successful outcome to the year as a whole.

| am confident that, with the new management team, we have a solid foundation from which we can move our
business forward into the next stage of its development.

Kwek Leng Beng

Chairman
22 February 2007




Consolidated income statement
for the fourth quarter and full year ended 31 December 2006
Notes Fourth quarter Full year
2006 2005 2006 2005
£m £m £m £m

Revenue 2 177.5 167.6 646.3 595.2
Cost of sales {72.7) (69.4) {277.4) {259.1)
Gross profit 104.8 98.2 368.9 336.1
Administrative expenses (70.3) {69.6) (261.5) (243.0)
Other operating income 3 11.2 12.2 21.6 28.3

45.7 40.8 129.0 121.4
Share of profit of joint ventures and
associates 20.5 1.3 25.2 3.5
Analysed between share of:
Operating profit before other income 54 3.2 13.8 85
Other operating income 17.7 - 17.7 -
nterest, tax and minority interests {2.6) (1.9) (6.3) {5.0)
Operating profit 66.2 42.1 154.2 1249
Analysed between:
Headline operating profit 2 434 38.3 124.7 108.1
Other operaling income - Group 3 11.2 12.2 216 283
Other operating income — Share of joint
ventures and associates 17.7 - 17.7 -
Impairment (included within administrative
expenses) (3.5) (6.5) {3.5) (6.5)
IShare of interest, tax and minority interests
of joint ventures and associates (2.6) (1.9) {6.3) (5.0)
Finance income 1.8 0.3 5.8 6.7
Finance expense (7.2) (5.7) {29.8) (35.8)
Profit before tax 60.8 36.7 130.2 95.8
Income tax expense 4 (7.6) (8.4) (22.1) (26.0)
Profit for the period 53.2 28.3 108.1 69.8
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 50.5 253 100.1 61.1
Minority interests 2.7 3.0 8.0 8.7

53.2 28.3 108.1 69.8
Basic earnings per share 5 174p 8.8p 34.5p 21.3p
Diluted earnings per share 5 17.3p 8.8p 34.4p 21.2p
The financial results above all derive from continuing activities.
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Consolidated statement of recognised income and expense
for the year ended 31 December 2006

Year Year

ended ended

31 December 31 December

2006 2005

£m £m

Foreign exchange translation differences {84.2) 80.7

Cash flow hedges: amounts recycled to income statement - 4.0

Share of associates other reserve movements {2.3) -

Actuarial losses arising in respect of defined benefit pension schemes (1.4) (2.4)

Taxation credit arising on defined benefit pension schemes 0.4 0.6

Taxation credit arising in respect of revalued property 2.2 -

Income and expense recognised directly in equity (85.3) 82.9

Profit for the period 108.1 69.8

Total recognised income and expense for the period 22.8 152.7
Attributable to;

Equity holders of the parent 25.1 138.3

Minority interests {2.3) 14.4

Total recognised income and expense for the period 22.8 152.7

10




Consolidated balance sheet
as at 31 December 2006

As at As at
31 December 31 December
Notes 2006 2005
£m £m
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 1,612.4 1,943.4
Lease premium prepayment 746 80.8
Investment properties 49.6 48.0
Investments in joint ventures and associates 1155 29.0
Loans due from joint ventures and associates 26.5 26.3
Other financial assets 3.2 2.2
1,881.8 2,129.7
Current assets
Inventories 4.6 4.4
Development properties 68.6 48.5
Lease premium prepayment 13 1.0
Trade and other receivables 57.8 53.2
Other financial assets 7.2 5.9
Cash and cash equivalents 162.3 ‘ 104.6
301.8 217.6
Total assets 2,183.6 2,347.3
Non-current liabilities
Interest-bearing loans, bonds and borrowings {283.1) (530.1)
Employee benefits {15.0) (16.09)
Provisions {1.3) (1.6)
Other non-current liabilities {6.8) (6.8)
Deferred tax liabilities (224.6) {239.9)
(530.8) (794.4)
Current liabilities
Interest-bearing loans, bonds and borrowings (139.6) {54.9)
Trade and other payables (102.6) (100.3)
Provisions {0.4) (0.4)
Income taxes payable {18.1) {19.5)
(260.7) {175.1)
Total liabilities (791.5) {969.5)
Net assets 1,392.1 1,377.8
Equity
Total equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 1,269.1 1,250.3
Minority interests 123.0 127.5
Total equity 7 1,392.1 1,377.8




Consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2006

2006 2005
£m £m

Cash flows from operating activities
Profit for the year 108.1 69.8
Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amaortisation 345 36.4
Share of profit of joint ventures and associates {25.2) (3.5)
Impairment losses for property, plant and equipment 35 6.5
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment {11.2) {9.6)
Revaluation of investment properties {4.9) (5.9}
Employee stock options 0.6 0.7
Finance income (5.8) (6.7)
Finance expense 29.8 358
Income lax expense 221 26.0
Operating profit before changes in working capital and provisiens 151.5 149.5
Increase in inventories, trade and other receivables (5.1} {19.3)
Increase in development properties (2.5} (17.6)
Increase in trade and other payables 0.9 3.9
Decrease in provisicns and employee benefits (0.3) {0.4)
Cash generated from operations 1445 116.1
Interest paid (28.9) (35.4)
interest received 7.8 6.1
Income taxes paid {16.3) (13.1)
Net cash from operating activities 107.1 73.7
Cash flows from investing activities
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment, investment
properties and assets held for sale 210.8 345
Investment in other financial assets (3.1) (1.8)
Proceeds from disposal of joint venture 4.0 6.5
Increase in investment in joint ventures and associates (81.3) -
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (34.6) (39.2)
Net cash from investing activities 95.8 -
Balance carried forward 202.9 73.7
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Consolidated statement of cash flows (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2006

2006 2005
£m £m
Balance brought forward 202.9 73.7
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from the issue of share capital 2.2 2.1
Repayment of borrowings (205.0) (419.0)
Drawdown of borrowings 79.7 387.0
Payment of finance lease obligations {2.0) (1.8)
Loan arrangement fees (0.6) (1.4)
Dividends paid to minorities (2.2) (2.3)
Dividends paid o equity holders of the parent {9.1} (31.5)
Net cash from financing activities {137.0) (66.9)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 65.9 6.8
Cash and cash eqguivalents at beginning of periocd 103.7 89.8
Effecl of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held (8.1) 7.1
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the period 161.5 103.7
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents shown in the balance sheet 162.3 104.6
Overdraft bank accounts included in borrowings {0.8) (0.9}
Cash and cash equivalents for cash flow statement purposes 161.5 103.7




Notes to the fourth quarter and full year results announcement

1. General information
Basis of preparation

The fourth quarter and full year financial statements for Millennium & Copthorne Hotels plc (‘the Company’) to 31
December 2006 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as ‘the Group’) and the Group's
interests in jointly controlled and associate entities.

The financial information set out in this preliminary announcement does not constitute the Company's statutory accounts
for the years ended 31 December 2006 or 2005. Statutory accounts for 2005 have been delivered to the registrar of
companies, and those for 2006, prepared under accounting standards adopted by the EU, will be delivered in due
course. The auditors have reported on those accounts; their reports were (i) unqualified, (i) did not include references to
any matters to which the auditors drew attention by way of emphasis without qualifying their reports and (iii) did not
contain statements under section 237(2) or (3) of the Companies Act 1985,

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the financial year ended 31 December 2005 are available from
the Company’s website www.millenniumhotels.com

Use of adjusted measures

A number of measures quoted in this preliminary announcement are ‘non-GAAP' measures. The directors believe these
measures provide a more meaningful analysis of trading results of the Group and are consistent with the way financial
performance is measured by management. These include hotel operating profit, headline operating profit, headline profit
before tax, headline earnings per share, net debt and free cash flow. These measures are used for internal performance
analysis and are useful in connection with discussion with the investment analyst community. They are not defined by
IFRS and therefore may not be directly comparable with other companies’ adjusted performance measures. It is not
intended to be a substitute for, or superior to IFRS performance measures.

The adjustments made to reported profit before tax are:

e Fair value adjustments of investment property

+ Business interruption insurance proceeds

* (Gainsflosses on disposal of property

* Impairment

+ Share of other operating income, impairment, interest, tax and minority interests of joint ventures and associates
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Notes to the fourth quarter and full year results announcement

2, Segmental analysis

The following segmental analysis is not intended to be a full statutory disclosure.

Geographical segments

Fourth quarter 2006

New Regional Rest of Centraf Total
York US London Europe Asia  Australasia costs  Group
£m £m £m £m £m £m Em £m
Revenue
Hote! 3041 281 234 260 50.2 12.2 - 170.0
Property operations - 0.4 - - 04 6.7 - 7.5
Total 30.1 28.5 23.4 26.0 50.6 18.9 - 177.5
Hote! gross operating profit 14.2 6.3 11.9 7.9 228 54 - 68.5
Hotel fixed charges* (1.5) {4.5) {4.0) (4.7) (10.0) {1.7) - {26.4)
Hotel operating profit 12.7 1.8 7.9 3.2 12.8 37 - 421
Property operations operating
profit - (0.1) - - - 3.1 - 3.0
Central costs - - - - - - (7.1) (7.1)
Share of jeint ventures and
associates operating profit - - . - 5.4 - - 5.4
Headline operating profit 12.7 1.7 7.9 3.2 18.2 6.8 (7.1) 43.4
Other operating income — Group 55 3.1 - - 26 - - 11.2
Other operating income — share
of joint ventures and associates - - - - 17.7 - - 17.7
Impairment - (0.6) . {2.9) - - - (3.5)
Share of interest, tax and
minority interests of joint
ventures and associates - - - - {2.6) - - (2.6)
Operating profit 18.2 4.2 7.9 0.3 35.9 6.8 {7.1) 66.2
Net financing costs {5.4)
Profit before tax 60.8
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Notes to the fourth quarter and full year results announcement

2. Segmental analysis (continued)

Geographical segments

Fourth quarter 2005
New Regional Rest of Central Total
York US London Europe Asia  Australasia costs  Group
£m £m £m £Em £m £m £m £m

Revenue
Hotel 28.7 29.1 21.2 273 42.5 13.2 - 162.0
Property operations - 0.7 - - 0.3 4.6 - 5.6
Total 28.7 29.8 21.2 27.3 42.8 17.8 - 167.6
Hotel gross operating profit 12.1 57 10.8 98 17.0 6.1 - 61.5
Hotel fixed charges* (4.7) (5.4) {3.4) (4.4) (4.7) (2.3) - (24.9)
Hotel operating profit 7.4 0.3 7.4 5.4 12.3 3.8 - 36.6
Property operations operating
profit - 0.1 - - 0.2 2.7 - 3.0
Central costs - - - - - - (4.5) 4.5)
Share of joint ventures and
associates operating profit - - - - 3.2 - - 3.2
Headline operating profit 7.4 0.4 74 54 15.7 6.5 (4.5) 38.3
Other operating income — Group - 59 - - - 6.3 - 12.2
Other operating income — share
of joint ventures and associates - - - - - - - -
Impairment - - - (6.5) - - - (6.5)
Share of interest, tax and
minority interests of joint
ventures and associates - - - - (1.9) - - (1.9)
Operating profit 7.4 6.3 7.4 (1.1) 138 12.8 (4.5) 421
Net financing costs (5.4)
Profit before tax 36.7

16




S T T e s e s e e e e e T = e e e T AR e e e

Notes to the fourth quarter and full year results announcement

2, Segmental analysis (continued}
Geograpbhical segments

Full year 2006

New Regional Rest of Central Total
York US London Europe Asia  Australasia costs  Group
Em £m £m £m fm £m Em £m
Revenue
Hotel 103.1 117.0 84.2 95.8 175.1 449 - 621.1
Property operations - 2.3 - - 1.4 21.5 - 25.2
Total 103.1 119.3 84.2 96.8 176.5 66.4 - 646.3
Hotel gross operating profit 38.9 217 40.1 28.9 69.4 18.8 - 223.8
Hotel fixed charges* (16.3) (18.5) {13.8) (16.6) (29.8) (8.5) - {103.5)
Hotel aperating profit 226 9.2 26.3 12.3 39.6 10.3 - 120.3
Property operations operating
profit - 0.2 - - 0.6 8.0 - 8.8
Central costs - - - - - - (18.2) (18.2)
Share of joint ventures and
associates operating profit - - - - 13.8 - - 13.8
Headline operating profit 226 9.4 26.3 12.3 54.0 18.3 (18.2) 124.7
Other operating income -~ Group 5.5 3.1 . - 13.0 - - 21.6
Other operating income — share
of joint ventures and associates - - - - 17.7 - - 17.7
Impairment - {0.6) - {2.9) - - - (3.5)
Share of interest, tax and
minority interests of joint
ventures and associates - - - - {6.3) - - {6.3)
Operating profit 281 1.9 26.3 94 784 18.3 (18.2) 154.2
Net financing costs (24.0)
Profit before tax 130.2
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Notes to the fourth quarter and full year results announcement

2. Segmental analysis (continued)

Geographical segments

Full year 2005

New Redgional Rest of Central Total
York US London Europe Asia  Australasia costs  Group
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Revenue
Hotel 91.2 112.8 787 97.7 151.7 48.6 - 580.7
Property operations - 2.6 - - 14 10.5 - 14.5
Total 91.2 115.4 78.7 97.7 153.1 59.1 - 595.2
Hotel gross operating profit 3.2 23.5 38.1 311 55.7 204 - 200.0
Hotel fixed charges* (14.2) (18.5) {(13.5) (17.0) (20.7) {9.4) - (93.3)
Hotel operating profit 17.0 5.0 24.6 14.1 350 11.0 - 106.7
Property operations operating
profit - 0.6 - - 0.8 53 - 6.7
Central costs - - - - - - (13.8) (13.8)
Share of joint ventures and
associates operating profit - - - - 8.5 - - 8.5
Headline operating profit 17.0 5.6 246 14.1 443 16.3 (13.8) 108.1
Other operating income — Group 12.8 59 - - - 96 - 283
Other operating income - share
of joint ventures and associates - - - - - - - -
Impairment - - - (6.5) - - - (6.5)
Share of interest, tax and
rminority interests of joint -
ventures and associates - - - - {5.0) - (5.0)
Operating profit 298 11.5 246 7.6 393 259 (13.8) 1249
Net financing costs {29.1)
Profit before tax 95.8

“Hotel fixed charges’ include depreciation, amortisation
operating lease rentals and management fees.

of lease prepayments, property rent, taxes and insurance,
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Notes to the fourth quarter and full year results announcement
2. Segmental analysis {continued)
Segmental assets and liabilities
Regional Rest of
New York US London Europe Asia Australasia Total Group
2006 2006 2006 2006 2006 2006 2006
£m £m fm £m £m £m £m
Hotel operating assets 292.3 235.9 452.0 216.1 468.8 974 1,762.5
Hotel operating liabilities (60.1) {(64.7) (67.0) ({36.1) (126.8) (11.6) {366.3)
Investments in joint ventures and
associates - - - - 115.5 - 115.5
Leans to joint ventures - - - - 26.5 - 26,5
Total hotel operating net assets 232.2 171.2 385.0 180.0 484.0 85.8 1,538.2
Property operations assets - 43.3 - - 339 42.0 119.2
Property operations liahilities - (3.7) - - (0.4) {0.8) (4.9}
Total property operations net
assets - 39.6 - - 33.5 41.2 114.3
Net debt {260.4)
Net assets 1,392.1
Regional Rest of
New York US London Europe Asia  Australasia Total Group
2005 2005 2005 2005 2005 2005 2005
£m £m £m £m £m £m £m
Hotel operating assets 328.5 291.8 4497 227.1 694.3 106.1 2,097.5
Hotel operating liabilities (72.5) (61.7) (65.7) (416} (129.4) (14.6) {385.5)
Investments in joint ventures and
associates - - - - 29.0 - 29.0
Loans to joint ventures - - - - 26.3 - 26.3
Total hotel operating net assets 256.0 230.1 384.0 185.5 620.2 91.5 1,767.3
Property operations assets - 19.8 - - 29.2 48.5 97.5
Property operations liabilities - (4.7) - - (0.5) (1.4) {(6.6)
Total property operations net
assets - 15.1 - - 28.7 471 90.9
Net debt {480.4)
Net assets 1,377.8
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Notes to the fourth quarter and full year results announcement

3. Other operating income

Fourth quarter Full year
2006 2005 2006 2005
£m £m £m £m
Profit on sale and leaseback of 3 Singapore hotels -
Orchard Hotel, Copthorne Kings Hotel and M Hote! - - 10.1 -
Changes in fair value upon revaluation of investment
property 4.9 59 4.9 59
Business interruption insurance proceeds 55 - 5.5 12.8
Other 0.8 6.3 1.1 9.6
11.2 12.2 216 28.3

4. Income tax expense

The £22.1m total income tax charge for 2006 comprises a UK tax charge of £1.1m and an overseas tax charge of

£21.0m (2005: a UK credit of £4.2m and overseas tax charge of £30.2m).

Taxation for the period comprises both the Group tax charge and the joint venture taxation charge which is included

separately within the Group's share of jaint venture profits {(but disclosed on the face of the income statement}).

The total Group tax charge excluding the tax relating to joint ventures is £22.1m (2005: £26.0m), giving rise to an
effective rate of 21.1% (2005: 28.2%).The lower rate in 2006 is primarily due to a tax credit arising on the disposal of

three of our Singapore hotels.

5. Earnings per share

Fourth quarter Full year
2006 2005 2006 2005
£m £m £m £m

Basic .
Profit for period attributable to holders of the parent (Em) 50.5 25.3 100.1 61.1
Weighted average number of shares outstanding (m) 290.5 287.5 289.9 287.0
Basic earnings per share (pence} 17.4 8.8 34.5 21.3
Diluted
Weighted average number of shares outstanding (m) 291.9 287.5 290.6 287.9
Diluted earnings per share (pence) 17.3 8.8 344 21.2
Headline earnings per share
Profit for the period attributable to holders of the parent(Em) 50.5 25.3 1001 61.1
Adjustment to exclude:
- Other operating income (net of tax and minorities) (8.8) {5.8) {22.4) (13.8)
- Impairment {net of tax) 33 6.5 33 6.5
- Share of associates other operating income (nil tax) {17.7) - (17.7) -
Adjusted profit for the period attributable to holders of the
parent (Em}) 27.3 26.0 63.3 53.8
Weighted average number of shares outstanding (m) 290.5 287.5 289.9 287.0
Headline earnings per share (pence} 9.4 9.0 21.8 18.7
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Notes to the fourth quarter and full year results announcement

6. Dividends

Dividends have been recognised within equity as follows:

Fourth quarter Full year

2006 2005 2006 2005
£m £m £m £m

Fina!l ordinary dividend paid for 2005 of 5.62p (for 2004:
4.17p) - - 16.2 11.9

Interim ordinary dividend approved for 2006 of 2.08p (for
2005; 2.08p) 6.1 5.8 6.1 5.9
Total crdinary dividend paid/approved 6.1 5.9 223 17.8
Final special dividend paid for 2004 of 6.25p - - - 17.9
6.1 5.9 22.3 35.7

7. Reconciliation of movements in total equity
Full year

2006 2005
£m £m
Total recognised income and expense for the period 228 152.7
First time adoption of IAS 39 - (5.4)
Dividends paid/payable to equity holders of the parent (22.3) (35.7)
issue of shares in lieu of dividends 13.2 42
Dividends paid to minority interests (2.2) (2.3)
Transfer from share of assaciates - 0.6
Share options exercised 2.2 2.1
Equity settled transactlions 0.6 0.6
Net increase in tolal equity 14.3 116.8
Opening total equity 1,377.8 1,261.0
Closing total equity 1,392.1 1,377.8




APPENDIX 1. Key operating statistics
for the fourth quarter ended 31 December 2006

Fourth quarter Fourth quarter Fourth quarter

2006 2005 2005

Reported Constant Reported

Currency Currency currency
Occupancy %
New York 87.3 87.0
Regional US 62.7 60.1
Total US 68.4 66.2
London 85.4 84.7
Rest of Europe 72.3 727
Total Europe 78.1 78.0
Asia 78.4 74.9
Australasia 73.9 73.9
Total Group 741 72.3
Average Room Rate (£)
New Yark 164.48 146.16 156.74
Regional US 50.36 46.23 51.13
Total US 84.04 76.21 82.82
London 92.61 82.89 82.89
Rest of Europe 71.76 69.60 69.98
Total Europe 81.86 75.99 76.19
Asia 58.36 54 .07 55.63
Australasia 40.15 39.59 44 .56
Total Group 70.48 65.43 68.83
RevPAR (£)
New York 143.59 127.16 136.36
Regional US 31.58 27.78 30.73
Total US 57.48 50.45 54.83
London 79.09 70.21 70.21
Rest of Europe 51.88 50.60 50.88
Total Europe 63.93 59.27 59.43
Asia 45.75 40.50 41.67
Australasia 29.67 29.26 32.93
Total Group 52,23 47.31 49.76
Gross Operating Profit Margin (%)
New York 47.2 422
Regional US 22.4 19.6
Total US 35.2 30.8
London 50.9 50.9
Rest of Europe 30.4 35.9
Total Europe 40.1 42.5
Asia 45.4 40.0
Australasia 44.3 46.2
Total Group 40.3 38.0

For comparability the 31 December 2005 Average Room Rate and RevPAR have been translated at 31 December 2006
exchange rates.
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APPENDIX 2: Key operating statistics
for the full year ended 31 December 2006

Full year Full year Full year

2006 2005 2005

Reported Constant Reported

Currency Currency currency
Occupancy %
New York 86.5 84.5
Regional US 67.3 66.2
Total US 71.7 70.4
London 87.0 84.8
Rest of Europe 73.3 72.8
Total Europe 79.4 78.1
Asia 76.1 73.7
Australasia 69.6 69.6
Total Group 744 73.0
Average Room Rate (£)
New York 143.34 128.28 129.42
Regional US 51.33 49.19 49.63
Total US 76.98 70.90 71.53
London 85.63 80.20 80.20
Rest of Eurape 71.05 69.67 69.83
Total Europe 78.14 74.74 74.82
Asia 59.07 53.58 52.40
Australasia 39.72 39.81 43.43
Total Group 67.92 63.59 64.01
RevPAR (£)
New York 123.99 108.40 109.36
Regional US 34.55 32.56 32.86
Total US 55.19 49.91 50.36
London 74.50 68.01 68.01
Rest of Europe 52.08 50.72 50.84
Total Europe 62.04 58.37 58.43
Asia 44,95 39.49 38.62
Australasia 27.65 27.71 30.23
Total Group 50.53 46.42 46.73
Gross Operating Profit Margin (%)
New York 377 34.2
Regional US 23.7 20.8
Total US 30.3 26.8
London 47.6 48.4
Rest of Europe 29.9 31.8
Total Europe 38.1 39.2
Asia 396 36.7
Australasia 41.9 42.0
Total Group 36.0 34.4
For comparability the 31 December 2005 Average Room Rate and RevPAR have been translated at 31 December 2006
exchange rates.
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CCS.

City e-Solutions Limited
{Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(Stock Code: 557)

2006 FINAL RESULTS — ANNOUNCEMENT
AUDITED ANNUAL RESULTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2006

RESULTS
The Directors of City e-Solutions Limited (the “Company”) are pleased to announce the
following final audited annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group™) for

the year ended 31 December 2006 together with comparative figures.

Consolidated Profit and Loss Account

Note 2006 2005
HK3'000 HK$'000
Turnover 1 79,010 84,518
Cost of sales (8.609) (21,321)
Gross profit 70,401 63,197
Other net income / (expenses) 2 46,717 (11,807)
Administrative expenses (42,537 (44,020)
Profit before taxation | 74,581 7.370
Income tax 4 20,871 —
Profit for the year 95,452 7,370
Attributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company 90,152 5,392
Minority interests 5,300 1,978
Profit for the year 95,452 7,370

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of
the Company attributable to the year: 5
Final dividend proposed after the balance sheet
date HK6 cents per share (2005: HK3 cents per
share) 22,988 11,494

Earnings per share 6
Basic HK23.53 cents HKI.41 cents




Consolidated Balance Sheet

The Group The Company
2006 2005 2006 2005
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$' 000

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment 6,587 4,785 5,457 3,463
Intangible assets 302 343 — —
Interests in subsidiaries — — 189,441 158,741
Deferred tax assets 21,083 — — —
Total non-current assets 27,972 5,128 194,898 162,204

Current assets

Trading securities 181,641 118,048 176,122 114,510
Trade and other receivables 25,759 21,907 12,449 8,825
Cash and cash equivalents 487,249 497,335 294 014 314,106

694,649 637.290 482,585 437,441

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables (19,512)] [(23,571) (6,957) (8,517)
Provision for taxation (759) (1,025) (1,025) (1,025)
(20,271 {(24,596) (7,982) (9,542)
Net current assets 674,378 612,694 474,603 427,899
Total assets less current liabilities 702,350 617,822 669,501 590,103
NET ASSETS 702,350 617,822 669,501 590,103
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital 383,126 383,126 383,126 383,126
Reserves 285,794 206,655 286,375 206,977

Total equity attributable
to equity shareholders

of the Company 668,920 589,781 669,501 590,103
Minority interests 33,430 28.041 — —
TOTAL EQUITY 702,350 617,822 669,501 580,103




Inciuded in total revenue are dividends and interest income amounting to HK$32.1 million (2005: HK$20.5
million). The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of the operations of the

Company and its subsidiaries during the financial year are as follows:

a)

b)

Principal Activities

Investment
Holding
2006 2005

HK3000 HK$'000 HK3'000 HK$ 000

Hospitality

2006

Related Services

2005

Consolidated
2006 2005

HK$'000 HK§'000

Revenue from external customers 32,058 20,865 46,952 63.653 79,010 84,518
Profit/(loss) before taxation 66,944 (2,762) 7.637 10,132 74,581 7370
Income tax 20,871 —
Profit after taxation 95,452 7,370
Depreciation and amortisation

for the year 950 957 498 463 1,448 1,420

Geographical Locations of Operations

Profit/(loss) before

Others

Group Turnover tax
2006 2005 2006 2005
HK$ 000 HK3°000 HK$000 HK3'000
Hong Kong 23,491 15,941 62,284 (6,707
Singapore 3,528 4,463 (2.169) 894
United States 51,991 64,114 14,466 13,183
79.010 34,518 74,581 _1.370
Other net income/(expenses)
2006 2005
HK$ 000 HK$'000
Net foreign exchange gain/(loss) 19.460 (8.738)
Net loss on forward foreign exchange contracts (1,006} —
Net profit on sale of property, plant and equipmemnt 16 458
Net realised and unrealised gains/(losses) on trading securities 27,882 (3.527)
365 —
46,717 (11,807}
Profit before taxation
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:
2006 2005
HK$'000 HK3'000
Amortisation of intangible assels 66 65
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1,382 1,355




4. Income tax
2006 2005
HK3 000 HK$'000
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax
Provision for the year — et
Current tax — Overseas
Provision for the year 217 —
Over-provision in respect of prior years (39) —
178 —
Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of temporary differences (21.049) —
(20,871) —

The provision tor Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 17.5% (2005: 17.5%) of the estimaited assessable
profits for the year ended 31 December 2006. Taxation for overseas subsidiaries is similarly charged at the
appropriate current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant countries.

The Company is exempted from taxation in the Cayman Islands for a peried of twenty years form 1989
under the provisions of Section 6 of the Tax Concessions Law (Revised) of the Cayman islands.

5. Dividends

a) Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable to the year
The directors of the Company have proposed a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2006
of HK6 cents per share (2005: HK3 cents per share). The final dividend proposed after the balance
sheel dale has not been recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date.
No interim dividend was paid for the year ended 31 December 2006 {2005: Nil cents).
b}  Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable to the previous
financial year, approved and paid during the year
2006 2005
HK3'000 HK$'000
Final dividends in respect of the previous financial year,
approved and paid during the year, of HK3 cents per share
{2005: HK3 cenls per share) 11,494 11,494
6. Earnings per share
a) Basic earnings per share
The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on profit attributable to equity shareholders of
the Company HK$90.2 million (2005: HK$5.4 miilion) and on 383,125,524 (2005: 383,125.524)
ordinary shares in issue during the year.
b} Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share is not applicable as there are no dilutive potential ordinary shares during

the finaacial year.




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group reported a very significant improvement in net profit attributable to equity
shareholders of the Company of HK$90.2 million as compared with a net profit attributable
to equity shareholders of HK$5.4 million in the previous year. The improvement was due to
higher profit contribution of HK$66.9 million from its investment activities comprising
mainly time deposits and trading securities, up by HK$69.7 million as compared to a loss of
HK$2.8 million in the previous year. This, together with the recognition of deferred tax
benefits amounting to HK$21.0 million, further boosted the Group’s net profit for the current
year under review. The latter is in line with the Group’s accounting policy as it is probable
that future 1axable profits will be generated by the hospitality related services businesses and
will be available to utilise against the benefits as recognised in the current year under review.

The Group, through its 85% subsidiary, SWAN Heldings Limited Group (*“SWAN™), has most
of its activities in the United States. The United States economy has continued to grow
steadily throughout 2006 which translated into another year of healthy growth in 2006 in the
hospitality industry. The resulting improvement in client hotels’ operating results has
benefited SWAN's hotel management business unit, Richfield, as its fee income is aligned to
revenue and profits of its hotel customers. Richfield’s fee income was also boosted by the
signing of new hotel contacts during the year in review. SWAN's hotel reservation business
unit, Sceptre, recorded a reduction in revenue in 2006 compared to prior year mainly due to
cessation of providing hotel reservation services in 4th quarter of 2005 to the 14 hotels in
US owned by Millennium & Copthorne Hotels plc (*“M&C™), a 52% subsidiary of City
Developments Limited.

As a result of the aforementioned contraction of business in Sceptre, the Group’s hospitality
related services businesses recorded lower revenue of HK$47.0 million, down by 26.2% or
HK$16.7 million as compared with HK$63.7 million achieved in the previous year.
Consequently, the Group reported a lower revenue of HK$79.0 million, down by 6.5%, as
compared with HK$84.5 million in the previcus year.

Basic earnings per share for the current year under review increased significantly to HK23.53
cents, up from HK1.41 cents in the previous year which was calculated on 383,125,524
ordinary shares in issue for both years. While Group’s Net Tangible Assets backing per share
increased to HK$1.75 as at 31 December 2006, up 13.6% from HK$1.54 as at 31 December
2005. The Board proposed a final dividend of HK6 cents per share for the year under review.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

The hospitality industry in the US is projected to record another year of good growth in 2007.
SWAN’s business units should benefit from the benign industry envirenment in the coming
year. We will continue to adopt a prudent approach in managing the businesses by ensuring
costs are kept in line with the level of business activities. Richfield’s new contracts signed
in 2006 will continue to generate steady fee income in 2007 and positively impact the
revenue stream of SWAN. Richfield is working on several potential contracts and is
optimistic of converting several of these into multi-year contracts in 2007. Going forward,
Richfield will be focusing on securing management contracts for larger hotels that generate
higher fees and consequently better margins.

_ 5 —




With the retention of our significant cash resources, we intend to continue seeking out
investment opportunities to take advantage of the current favourable global economic
environment. Barring unforeseen circumstances, the Group's performance in respect of its
current hospitality related operations should remain profitable in 2007.

DIVIDENDS

The directors of the Company have proposed a final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2006 of HK6 cents per share (2005: HK3 cents). No interim dividend was paid for the year
ended 31 December 2006 (2005: Nil cents).

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The members of the Audit Committee of the Company comprise 2 independent non-executive
directors and one non-executive director of the Company. It has reviewed the annual results
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2006.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of the Directors, save as disclosed below, the Company has complied with the
Code on Corporate Governance Practices, as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Appendix 14"} throughout the year under
review.

As disciosed in 2005 Annual Report, the Company does not fully comply with the code
provisions A.4.1 and A.4.2 in Appendix 14. Amendments to the Articles of Association of the
Company (the “Amendments”™) have been made to reflect the requirements under the code
provision A.4.2 on the retirement of all directors by rotation at least once every three years.
The Amendments were approved at the annual general meeting held on 20 April 2006 (2006
AGM™). Although the current non-executive directors are not appointed for a specific term,
they are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general meeting at least
once every three years. Further, all non-executive directors will be retired at the forthcoming
annual general meeting and offer themselves for re-election for a specific term of not more
than three years. Under the code provision E. 1.2, the chairman of the board should attend the
annual general meeting. However, in the 2006 AGM, our chairman was unable to attend the
meeting as he had to attend to an urgent matter. He appointed Mr Kwek Leng Peck to chair
the meeting on his behalf, Questions raised by shareholders in the 2006 AGM were answered
to the full satisfaction of shareholders by the chairman of the meeting together with 2

executive directors.




COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the “Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers” as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Model Code™). All directors have confirmed that they have complied with
the Model Code throughout the year under review.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'’S LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities during the year.

STATUTORY INFORMATION
The Annual General Meeting of the Company will be held on 20 Aprii 2007.

The register of members will be closed from 18 April 2007 to 20 April 2007, both dates
inclusive, and the dividend cheques are expected to be despatched on or about 18 May 2007.

By Order of the Board
Kwek Leng Beng
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 February 2007

As at the date of this annonncement, the Board is comprised of 11 Directors, of which 6 are executive Directors,
namely Mr. Kwek Leng Beng, Mr. Vincent Yeo Wee Eng. Mr. Kwek Leng Joo, Mr. Kwek Leng Peck, Mr. Gan Khai
Choon and Mr. Lawrence Yip Wal Lam, 2 are non-executive Directors, namely Mr, Wong Hong Ren and Mr. Chan
Bernard Charnwut and 3 are independent non-executive Directors, namely Dr, Lo Ka Shui, Mr. Lee Jackson a.k.a.
Li Chik Sin and Mr, Teoh Teik Kee.

Please also refer to the published version of this announcement in The Standard.




Miscellaneous

* Asterisks denote mandatory information

Name of Announcer * CITY DEVELOPMENTS LIMITED

Company Registration No. 1963003162

Announcement submitted on behalf | CITY DEVELOPMENTS LIMITED
of

Announcement is submitted with | CITY DEVELOPMENTS LIMITED
respect to *

Announcement Is submitted by * Enid Ling Peek Fong
Designation * Company Secretary
Date & Time of Broadcast 27-Feb-2007 17:15:46
Announcement No. 00069

>> Announcement Details
The details of the announcement start here ...

Announcement Title * | S$700,000,000 Medium Term Note Programme (the “Programme”) - Series No. 031 For
5430,000,000 2.35% Per Annum Unsecured Fixed Rate Notes Due 2007

Description We refer to the 430,000,000 in principal amount of Unsecured Fixed Rate Notes Due 2007
(the “Series No. 031 Notes™) of City Developments Limited (the “Company”) issued pursuant
to the Programme on 16 March 2004 and listed on the Singapore Exchange Securities Trading
Limited.

Pursuant to Rule 747 of the Listing Manual, we hereby announce that the maturity date of the

Serles No. 031 Notes is 16 March 2007 and the Series No, 031 Notes will accordingly be
redeemed and cancelled on 16 March 2007 by the Company.

By Crder of the Board

Shufen Loh @ Catherine Shufen Loh
Enid Ling Peek Fong
Company Secretaries

Date : 27 February 2007

Attachments: Total size = 0
(2048BK size limit recommended)




Miscellaneous

* Asterisks denate mandatof_information

Name of Announcer * CITY DEVELOPMENTS LIMITED

Company Registration No. 1963003162

Announcement submitted on behalf | CITY DEVELOPMENTS LIMITED

of

Announcement Is submitted with | CITY DEVELOPMENTS LIMITED
respect to *

Announcement is submitted by * Enid Ling Peek Fong
Designation * Company Secretary

Date & Time of Broadcast 28-Feb-2007 12:32:39
Announcement No. 00039

>> Announcement Details
The details of the announcement start here ...

Announcement Title * | Sale Of Property Unit At Residences @ Evelyn

Description Please refer to the attached announcement on the above,

Attachments: & CDLann_sale_propertyunit.pdf

Total size = 19K
(2048K size limit recommended)

https://www 1 .sgxnet.sgx.com/web2 1/sgxnet/LCAnncSubmission.nsf/vwprint/035938...  28-Feb-07




CITY DEVELOPMENTS LIMITED
{Co. Reg. No. 1963003162)

SALE OF PROPERTY UNIT AT RESIDENCES @ EVELYN

The Directors of City Developments Limited {("CDL" or the “"Company”} wish to announce
that the Board has approved the sale of one unit (the “Unit") in the residential
development known as Residences @ Evelyn to the following person who is an
interested person of CDL pursuant to Chapter 9 of the Listing Manua! of the Singapore
Exchange Securities Trading Limited (the “Purchaser”):

Name of Unit No. Sale Price % Discount given Remarks
Purchaser
Mdm Tan #16-03 $2,654,960.00 | 12% discount offered to Mr Foo is
Soo Lian, Residences | (nett after members of the public who a Director
Annie, @ Evelyn discount) purchase units in of COL
sister-in- Residences @ Evelyn at the
law of Mr time of the grant of the
Foo See Option to Purchase (“Public
Juan Discount”) for the purchase

of units in the Company’s

developments.

The Audit Committee of CDL has reviewed the terms and conditions of the sale of the
Unit and has approved and ratified the sale. The Audit Committee is of the view that the
terms of the sale of the Unit are fair and reasonable and are not prejudicial to the interest
of CDL and its minority shareholders.

Mr Foo See Juan, being an Audit Committee member and Director of CDL, had
abstained from the Audit Committee's and Board's review and approval of the sale of the
Unit.

With the aggregation of the abovementioned transaction, the total value of all interested
person transactions entered into by the CDL EAR Group for the financial year ended 31
December 2006 now stands at $84,504,921.80*,

*excludes transactions less than $100,000.00 and transactions conducted under the IPT
Mandate pursuant to Rule 920.

By Order of the Board

Shufen Loh @ Catherine Shufen Loh
Enid Ling Peek Fong
Company Secretaries

28 February 2007
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* Asterisks denote mandatory information

Name of Announcer *

CITY DEVELOPMENTS LIMITED

Company Registration No.

1963003162

Announcement submitted on behalf of

CITY DEVELOPMENTS LIMITED

Announcement is submitted with
respect to *

CITY DEVELOPMENTS LIMITED

Announcement is submitted by *

Shufen Loh @ Catherine Shufen Loh

Designation *

Company Secretary

Date & Time of Broadcast

28-Feb-2007 17:07:55

Announcement No.

00095

>> Announcement Details

The details of the announcement start here ...

For the Financial Period Ended *

31-12-2006

Attachments:

& CDL FYQ6.pdf

Total size = 167K
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CITY DEVELOPMENTS LIMITED

(REG. NO. 196300316Z)

UNAUDITED FULL YEAR FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2006

PART | - INFORMATION REQUIRED FOR ANNOUNCEMENTS OF QUARTERLY (Q1, Q2 & Q3), HALF-
YEAR AND FULL YEAR RESULTS

1{a) An income statement (for the group) together with a comparative statement for the
corresponding period of the immediately preceding financial year.

These figures have not been audited.

The Group
Full Year Ended
31 December Incrf
2006 2005 (Decr)
5%'000 S$$'000
%

Revenue 2,546,804 2,374,279 7.3
Cost of sales {1,179,145) (1,118,428} 5.4
Gross profit 1,367,659 1,255,851 8.9
Other operating income @ 187,519 68,581 173.4
Administrative expenses ¥ (460,792) (430,014) 7.2
Other operating expenses ¥ (420,726) (426,172) (1.3)
Profit from operations 673,660 468,246 43.9
Finance income '® 42 468 28,269 50.2
Finance costs ¥ (138,718) (151,278) (8.3)
Net finance costs {96.250) {122,0089) (21.8)
Share of after-tax profit of an

associate " 5,956 - NM
Share of after-tax profit of

jointly-controlled entities * 108,912 58,625 85.8
Profit before income tax ‘' 692,278 403,862 71.4
Income tax expense ® (129,312) (94,740) 36.5
Profit for the year 562,966 309,122 82.1
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent 351,659 200,397 75.5
Minority interests 211,307 108,725 94.3
Profit for the year 562,966 309,122 82.1
Earnings per share

- basic 37.0 cents 20.8 cents” 77.9
- diluted 36.6 cents 20.5 cents® 78.5

NM: Not meaningful

Note:

* Basic and diluted Earnings per share for 2005 have been restated to take into
consideration the effect of bonus element of the warrants exercised in 2006.
Details of the compulation are conlained in page 11,
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CITY DEVELOPMENTS LIMITED

{REG. NO. 196300316Z)

Notes to the Group's Income Statement:

(1

2

3)

4}

)

(6)

(7)
(8)

9

Profit before income tax includes the following:

2006 2005
S5%°000 5%°000

Interest income 32,944 27.251
Profit on sale of investments, long leasehold
interest in hotels and property, plant

and equipment (net) 153,786 21,507
Investment income 9,647 9,136
Write-back of allowance for foreseeable losses

on development properties (net) 38,561 7,296
Depraciatlon and amortisation {155,705) (170,705)
interest expanses {135,085) (145,307)
Net exchange gain/(loss) 6,043 (1,557)
Mark-to-market gain on financial assets held

for trading (net) 8,919 1,286
Impairment losses on property, plant and

equipment (net) (9,220} (24,530)

Other operating income, comprising mainly net exchange gain, profit on sale of property, plant and equipment,
management fee and miscellanecus income, soared to $187.5 million (2005: $68.6 million). The increase was
mainly due to profit recognised on sale of long leasehold interest in four Singapore hotels to CDL Hospitality Trusts
in 2006 of $150.9 miilion and business interruption insurance proceeds received of $15.9 million in respect of the
Millenium Hilton New York, held by its subsidiary, Millennium & Copthorne Hotels plc. The increase would have
been higher if not for the business interruption insurance proceeds of £12.8 million {approxirately $$39.8 million)
received in respect of the Millenium Hilton New York and gain from sale of Bayswater Tower, Kingsgate Shopping
Centre and Kingsgate Commerical Centre in Sydney in 2005.

Administrative expenses, comprising mainly depreciation, hote! administrative expenses, and salaries and related
expenses, increased by $30.8 million mainly due to rental expenses incumed for the leaseback of the four
abovementioned Singapore hotels from CDL Hospitality Trusts.

Other operating expenses which comprise matinly property taxes and insurance on hotels, hotel other operating
expenses and professional fees.

Finance income comprises mainly interest income and net unrealised gain on equities held for trading. The
increase in finance income by $14.2 million to $42.5 million (2005: $28.3 million) was due to higher unrealised gain
on equities held for trading and interest income from fixed deposits recognised in 2006.

Finance costs comprise primarily interest on borrowings and amortisation of capitalised transaction costs on
borrowings and debt securities. The decrease in finance costs by $12.6 million was mainly due to reduction in
borrowings in 2006.

Share of after-tax profit of an associate relates to the Group's share of results of CDL Hospitality Trusts.

Share of after-tax profit of jointly-controlled entities increased by $50.3 million 1o $108.9 million (2005: $58.6
million). The increase was mainly due to profit recognised from the St. Regis Residences, The Sail @ Marina Bay
and Parc Emily as well as the write-back of foreseeable losses and allowance for impairment loss for certain
development properties and property, plant & equipment held by certain jointly-controlled entities. The increase
would have been higher if not for the profit recognised in 2005 from the sale of MyeongDong Central Building in
Seoul which was held by a jointly-controlled entily in which the Group has a 50% interest.

Income tax expense for the year is derived at by applying the varying statutory tax rates on the taxable
profits/{losses) and taxable/deductible temporary differences of the different countries in which the Group operates,
and after adjusting for write-back of overprovision of taxation in prior years of $2.2 million (2005: $19.0 million).

The overall effective tax rate for the Group is 18.7% (2005: 23.5%).
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CITY DEVELOPMENTS LIMITED

(REG. NO. 196300316Z)

1{b}{i} A balance shest (for the issuer and group), together with a comparative statement as at the end of

the immaediately preceding financial year.

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Investments in subsidiaries

Investiment in an associate
Investments in jointly-controlled entities
Financial assets

Other non-current assats

Current assets
Davelopment properties
Consumable stocks
Financial assets

Trade and cther receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Equity attributable to equity holders of
the parent

Share capital

Raservas

Minority interests
Total equity

Non-current liabilities
Interast-bearing borrowings
Other liabilities

Employee benefits
Provisions

Dofarred tax liabilities

Current Habllities

Bank overdrafts

Trade and other payables
Interest-bearing borrowings
Other liabilities

Employee benefits
Provision for taxation
Provisions

Total liabilities
Total equity and llabllities

Notas :

Nate

(1)

2)

@

€ameen The Group ssesem>

<-- The Company —>

As at As at As at As at
31.12.2006 31.12.2005 31.12.20086 31.12.2005
58000 5%'000 55000 58000
6,318,829 7,082,040 342,352 561,000
60 73 - -

- - 2,219,682 2,187,325
116,990 - - -
289,014 139,270 50,054 48,654
152,858 109,316 39,582 37,752
277,294 287,226 137,202 107,738

7,155,045 7,597,025 2,788,872 2,942,489
2,281,858 1,886,483 1,469,835 1,484,558
14,507 13,875 - 1,014
70,703 52,069 - -
705,328 771,177 1,376,141 1,104,580
776,924 573,608 99,741 137,726
3,849,320 3,287,217 2,945,817 2,727,878
11,004,365 10,885,142 5,734,689 5,670,347
1,991,397 460,944 1,991,397 460,944
2,743,138 4,086,872 1,914,961 3,209,588
4,734,535 4,547,816 3,906,358 3,760,532
1,645,564 1,527,445 - -
6,380,099 6,075,261 3,906,358 3,760,532
2,316,047 2,679,926 589,384 917,467
53,323 46,951 10,070 B.663
45,174 45,877 - -
5,548 8,377 - -
467,267 433,549 22,055 20,437
2,888,263 3,214,680 622,409 848,567
2,319 2,815 - -
572,641 590,480 542,253 770,790
1,029,152 910,422 610,427 175,264
2,498 2,394 - -
16,336 15,602 1,477 1,191
110,701 81,630 51,765 18,003
2,356 1,858 - -
1,736,003 1,805,201 1,205,922 963,248
4,624 266 4,819,881 1,828,331 1,809,815
11,004,365 10,895,142 5,734,689 5,670,347

(1) Resulling from the Companies {Amendmeni} Act 2005 which came into operation on 30 January 2006, any amount standing to the credit of

the Company's share premium account as at 28 January 2006 became part of the Company's share capital on 30 January 2006.

(2) These balances are stated at amortised cas! aiter laking into consideration their refated transaclion cosls.
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CITY DEVELOPMENTS LIMITED

(REG. NO. 196300316Z)

1{b)(ii) Aggregate amount of group’s borrowings and debt securities.

The Group's net borrowings refer to aggregate borrowings from banks, financia! institutions and finance
lease creditors, after deducling cash and cash equivalents. It excludes advances from minority
shareholders of certain subsidiaries, deferred real estate taxes payable, retention sums payable, other
payables and deposits received. Unamortised balance of transaction costs have not been deducted
from the gross borrowings.

As at As at
31/12/2006 31/12/2005
S%$'000 S$°000
Unsecured
-repayable within one year 641,377 175,798
-repayable after one year 1,646,115 1,499,589
(a) 2,187,492 1,675,387
Secured
-repayable within one year 390,714 737,884
-repayable after one year 777,855 1,187,605
(b) 1,168,569 1,925,489
Gross borrowings (a)+(b} 3,356,061 3,600,876
Less: cash and cash equivalents (776,924) (573.608)
Net borrowings 2,579,137 3,027,268

Decrease in net borrowings by $448.1m was mainly funded by the proceeds received from the disposal
of the long leasehold interest in Grand Copthorne Waterfront Hotel, Orchard Hote! (including Orchard
Hotel Shopping Arcade}, M Hotel and Copthorne King's Hotel to CDL Hospitality Trusts.

Details of any collateral

Where secured, borrowings are collateralised by:

- mortgages on the borrowing companies’ land and buildings and/or hotel properties and/or
- assignment of all rights and benefits to sale, lease and/or insurance proceeds
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CITY DEVELOPMENTS LIMITED

(REG. NO. 1963003162)

1(c) A cash flow statement (for the group), together with a comparative statement for the corresponding
period of the immediately preceding financial year.

Full Year Ended

31 December
2006 2005
$%$'000 S$'000

Operating Activities

Profit before income tax 692,278 403,862
Adjustments for:

Allow ance for foreseeable losses on development

propertias w ritten back (net) (38,561} {7.296)
Depreciation and amortisation 155,705 170,705
Dividend income (9,647) (9.136)
Finance income (42,468) (28,269)
Impairment losses on property, plant and equipment (net) 9,220 24,530
Interest expense 135,085 145,307
Loss on liquidation of a jointly-controlled entity 1,247 -
Property, plant and equipment w ritten off 3,429 758
Profit on sale of long ieasehold interest in hotels and

property, plant and equipment (153,581) (21,507)
Profit on sale of investments {205) -
Share of after-tax profit of an associate (5,956) -
Share of after-tax profit of jointly-controlled entities (108,912) (58,625)
Value of employee services received for issue of

share options 1,822 1,789
Operating profit before w orking capital changes 639,456 622,118
Changes in working capital
Development properties (159,485) 170,341
Stocks, trade and other receivables {82,457) 33,156
Trade and other payables (2,891) (12,702)
Employee benefits (3.012) (2,108)
Cash generated from operations 391,511 810,805
Income tax paid (62,121) (81,958)

Cash flows from operating
activities carried forward 329,390 718,847
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Cash flows from operating
activities brought forward

Investing Activities

Acquisition of subsidaries (netofcash acquired)

Dividends received

-financial investments

- jointly-controlled entities

Interest received

Proceeds from sale of long leasehald interesiin hotels
and property, plant and equipmant

(Purchase)/Disposal ofinvestments in

jointly-controlled entities

Purchase ofinvestmentin an asscciate

Purchase of financial assets

Purchase of intangible assets

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Cash flows from invasting activities

Financing Activities

Capital contribution from minority shareholders

Dividends paid

Fixed deposits pledged to a financial institution

Interest paid (including amounts capitalised as
property, plant and equipment and development properties)

Net pracaeds from revolving credit faciliies and
short-term bank bormowings

Payment of transaction costs

Proceeds from bank borrowings

Proceeds from issue of shares

Proceeds from issuance of bonds and notes

Repayment of bank borrowings

Repayment of bonds and notes

Repaymentto finance leases

Repayment of other long-term liabilities

Repayment from related corporations

Cash flows from financing activities

Net increasel/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents carried forward
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Full Year Ended
31 December
2006 2005
5%°000 S%'000
329,390 718,847
{(10,433) (4,519)
8,379 9,136
28,204 12,688
48,934 27.708
869,106 125,920
(250) 86,975
(229,640) -
(51,509) (55,963)
(5) 3)
(177,325)  (300,066)
485,461 (98,124)
12,001 2072
(198,123) (119,710)
1,026 {(16)
(151,471) (161,719)
116,761 107,514
(1.571) (2,986)
232,993 1257472
51,251 42016
479,031 412601
(787,158) {1,405,041)
(300,455)  (783,240)
{5,734) (5.361)
(405) (442)
{35,345) {209,149)
(587.199)  (865,989)
227,652 (245,266)




CITY DEVELOPMENTS LIMITED

(REG. NO. 196300316Z)

Full Year Ended
31 Decamber

2006 2005
$%°000 S$'000
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
brought forward 227,652 (245,266)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
the year 569,767 825,663
Effect of exchange rate changes on balances
held in foreign currencies (22,814) (10,630)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 774,605 569,767
Cash and cash equivalents comprise:-
Cash and cash equivalents as shown in the Balance Sheet 776,924 573,608
Less: Fixed deposits pledged to a financial institution - . (1,026)
Bank overdrafts (2,319} (2,815)
774,605 569,767
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CITY DEVELOPMENTS LIMITED

{REG. NO. [96300316Z)

1(d)(i}) A statement (for the issuer and group) showing either {i) all changes in equity or (ii) changes in equity
other than those arising from capitalisation issues and distributions to shareholders, together with a
comparative statement for the corresponding period of the immediately preceding financial year.

Comnn Attributable to equity holders of the parent-e—.>

Exeh,
The Group Shars Shars Cap. Other  Flust.  Aseum, Minaority Total
Capital Prem. Ras, Res* Rea. Profits Total Intarests Equity
8$m S$m S§m 5%m S8$m S%m S$m S$m 5%m

At 1 January 2005'" 4525 11,4587  148.2 9.8 1452 21497 43641 14608 5,824,9
Transiation diff on consolidation of

foreign subsidiaries - - - . {3.8) - (3.8) 8.3 4.5
Exchange diffarences on hedge of net

investments in foreign entities - - - . (2.1) - (2.1) (1.4) (3.5)
Exchange diffarances on monetary items forming

port of nal investmants in foreign entiites - - - - 2.7 - 2.7 1.9 4,6
Change in fair value of squity investments

avallablofor-sale - - - 8.2 - - 8.2 3.8 10.1
Acturial losses on defined benefits plans - - - - - (3.3) (3.3) (3.1) (6.4)
Nel gainsi{losses} recognised directly in equity - - - 6.2 (3.2) {3.3) (0.3) 9.6 9.3
Profit for the yaar - - - - - 200.4 200.4 108.7 309.1
Total recognisad income and axpensas

for tho year - - - 6.2 {3.2) 1871 2001 118.3 8.4
Issuo of ordinary shares B.4 336 - - - - 42.0 - 42.0
Changoe of interest in subsidiaries - - - - - - - 2.1 2.1
Value of employoa services received for issue of

share oplions - - - [14:] - - 0.9 0.9 1.8
Transfor of hadging reserve on realisation

for the year - - - 6.4 - - 8.4 5.8 12,2
Dividands - - - - - (65.7) {65.7) (60.5) (126.2)

At 31 December 2005

Transiation differencas on consofidation of

foreign subsidiaries - - - - (54.8}) - (54.9) {55.3) (110.2)
Exchange diffarences on hedge of net

investments in foreign entities - - - - (1.3} - (1.3} (0.1} (1.4)
Exchange differances on monetary items forming

part of nat invastments in foreign entiitas - - - - (4.1) - (4.1} 3.7 (7.8}
Chanpe in fair value of aguity invastments

available-for-salo - - - 4.0 - . 4.0 - 4.0
Share of hedging reserve of an associats - - - 0.2) - - (0.2) (0.2} (0.4)
Share of issue expenses of an associate - - (3.3) - - - (3.3} (3.0} (6.3}
Actuarial losses on defined benefit plans - - - . - (1.4) (1.4) (1.4) (2.8)
Nat gains/{losses) recognisad diractly in aquity - - (2.3) 38 (60.3) (1.4} 61.2 {63.7} (7245)
Profit (or the year - - - - - 351.7 517 211.3 563.0
Tatal recognisad income and expansas

for the yeer . - (3.3) 38 (60.3) 350.3 290.5 147.6 438.1
Change of interast in subsidiaries - - 23 - - - 2.3 95 11.8
Value of employee services recaived for issue

of shara options - - - 0.9 - - 0.9 0.9 1.8
Issua of ordinary shares 50.9 0.4 - - - - 51.3 - 51.3

Transfer from share premium account to share
capital upon implementation of the Companies

{(Amendment) Act 2005 14796 (1.492.7) - - - 131 - - -
Dividands - - - - - (158,3) (158.3) (38.8) (198.1)
At 31 Dacembar 2006 1,3991.4 - 147.2 8.0 B1.7 !,3552 7345 TB45.6 5,350,

* Qther reservaes comprise mainly Fair Value Resorve ansing from avaifable-for-sale investments.

Note

{1): The balancaes as at 1 January 2005 have bean restated to fake into account the adjustmeants arising from the adoption of
various new'revised Snandial Reporting Standards (FRSs) and the changes in accounling policies detalted in Note 34

of 2005 annuaf report of the Group
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The Company

At 1 January 2005™

Change in fair value of equity
invastments available-for-sale

Net gain recognised directly in equity
Profit for the year

Total recognised income and expenses
for the year

Issue of ordinary shares

Dividends

At 31 December 2005

Change in fair value of equity
investments availabhle-for-sale

Net gain recognised directly in equity
Profit for the year

Total recognised income and expenses
for the year

Issue of ordinary shares

Tranafer from share premium account to
share capital upon implementation of the
Companies (Amendment) Act 2005

Dividends

At 31 Dacember 2006

Note:

(1): The balances as at 1 January 2005 have besn rostated (o take into account the adjustments arising from

Sharae Share Capital FairVal, Accum.
Capital Premium Res. Res. Profits Total
SSm S$m S$m S§m S$m S$m
452.5 1,445.6 63.7 13.2 1,701.0 36760
- - - 45 - 45
- - - 4.5 - 4.5
- - - - 103.7 103.7
- - - 4.5 103.7 108.2
8.4 33.6 - - - 42.0
- - - - (65.7) (65.7)
460.9 1,479.2 63.7 17.7 1,739.0 3,760.5
- - - 1.5 - 1.5
- - - 1.5 - 1.5
- - - - 251.4 251.4
- - - 1.5 251.4 252.9
50.9 0.4 - - - 51.3
1,479.6 (1,479.6) - - - -
- - - - (158.3)  (158.3)
7.691.4 - 63.7 19.2 18321  3,9064

the adoption of various new/FRSs and the changes in accounting policies detailad in Note 34 of 2005

annual report of the Group.
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CITY DEVELOPMENTS LIMITED

{(REG. NO. 196300316Z)

1{d){il) Details of any changes in the company's share capital arising from rights issue, bonus issue,
share buy-backs, exercise of share options or warrants, conversion of other issues of equity
securities, issue of shares for cash or as consideration for acquisition or for any other purpose
since the end of the previous period reported on. State also the number of shares that may be
issued on conversion of all the outstanding convertibles as at the end of the current financial
period reported on and as at the end of the corresponding period of the immediately preceding
financial year.

Ordinary share capital

During the year ended 31 December 2006, the Company issued 20,500,272 new ordinary shares
pursuant to the exercise of subscription rights by bonus warrants holders, thus bringing the total
number of issued ordinary shares as at 31 December 2006 to 909,301,330 (31 December 2005:
888,801,058 ordinary shares).

As at 31 December 2006, there were no outstanding bonus warrants as bonus warrants which were not

exercised as at 10 May 2006 (date of expiry of the subscription rights comprised in the bonus warrants)
had lapsed (31 December 2005: 21,103,149 warrants outstanding).

Preference share capital

There were no additional non-redeemable convertible non-cumulative preference shares ("Preference
Shares”) issued during the year ended 31 December 2006. The total number of issued Preference
Shares as at 31 December 2006 and 31 December 2005 is 330,874,257.

As at 31 December 2006, the maximum number of ordinary shares that may be issued upon full

conversicn of all the Preference Shares at the sole option of the Company is 44,998,898 ordinary
shares {31 December 2005; 44,998,898 ordinary shares).

2, Whether the figures have been audited or reviewed and in accordance with which auditing
standard or practice.

The figures have neither been audited nor reviewed by our auditors.

3. Where the figures have been audited or reviewed, the auditors’ report (including any
qualifications or emphasis of a matter).
Not applicabte.

4. Whether the same accounting policies and methods of computation as in the issuer’s most
recently audited annual financial statements have been applied.

Except for the adoption of various new/revised Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Council on
Corporate Disclosure and Governance, which took effect from 1 January 2006 (refer item 5 below), the
accounting policies and methods of computation adopled are consistent with those applied in the
audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2005.




CITY DEVELOPMENTS LIMITED

(REG. NO. 196300316Z)

5. If there are any changes in the accounting policies and methods of computation, including any
required by an accounting standard, what has changed, as well as the reasons for, and the
effect of, the change.

Other than the adoption of various new/revised Financial Reporling Standards issued by the Council on
Corporate Disclosure and Governance, which took effect from 1 January 2006, there has been no
change in the accounting policies and methods of computation adopted by the Group. The adoption of
the newlrevised Financial Reporting Standards is not expected to have a significant impact on the
financial statements of the Group.

6. Earnings per ordinary share of the group for the current financial period reported on and the
corresponding period of the immediately preceding financial year, after deducting any provision
for preference dividends.

Full Year Ended
31 December
2006 2005
{restated)

Basic Eamings per share (cents) 37.0 208
Diluted Earnings per share {cents) 36.6 205
Earnings per share is calculated based on:
a) Profit attributable to equity holders of the parent {S$'000) (*) 338,755 187,493
b) Weighted average number of ordinary shares

inissue:

- basic 915,414,150 902,093,318

- diluted (**) 960,413,048 916,439,567

* After deducting preference dividend's of $12,904,000 deciared or paid in 2006 and 2005,

** For computation of diluted eamings per share, the weighted average number of artlinary shares has been adjusted for any
dilutive effect of potential ordinary shares arising from the exercise of all outstanding bonus warrants and conversion
of alf preference shares. For year ended 31 December 2005, the preference shares were anti-tilutive and therefore
were excluded from the calculation of dittited eamings per share.

7. Net asset value {for the issuer and group) per ordinary share based on issued share capital of
the issuer at the end of the:-
(a) current financial period reported on; and
(b) immediately preceding financial year.

The Group The Company
30/12/2006 | 31/12/2005 | 30/12/2006 | 31/12/2005
S8 S$ S$ S$

Net Asset Value per ordinary share based on issued
share capital of 909,301,330 ordinary shares as at 521 512 4.30 4.23
31 December 2006 (888,801,058 ordinary shares as at
31 December 2005).




CITY DEVELOPMENTS LIMITED

(REG. NO. 196300316Z)

8. A review of the performance of the group, to the extent necessary for a reasonable
understanding of the group’s business. It must include a discussion of the following:-

{a) any significant factors that affected the turnover, costs, and earnings of the group for the
current financial period reported on, including (where applicable} seasonal or cyclical
factors; and

(b) any material factors that affected the cash flow, working capital, assets or liabilities of the
group during the current financial period reported on.

Local Industry Review

The economy performed favourably in 2006 with a GDP growth of 7.9% and an all-time high in
employment creation was achieved during the year. The Government has restructured our economy
and has laid a solid foundation to propel Singapore into its next phase of growth as a global city. Its
strategies of attracling skilled foreign talent and developing Singapore into a leading Asian hub for
wealth management, tourism, education, medical and health, science and technology, bio-medica,
logislics, and an advanced international business and financial centre, plus other forward looking
initiatives, have started to place this city into the global limelight, thereby turning Singapore into an
attractive strategic investment hub in Asia.

The property market has performed well during the year following its slow recovery which began at the
end of 2004. Private residential property prices have increased by 10.2% compared to 3.9% last year.
The increase in prices was led by the high-end projects in the prime districts of 9, 10, 11 as well as new
districts like Marina Bay/Downtown Core and Sentosa Cove which increased by 17% for 2006. Private
apartments within the rest of central region and outside the central region rose by only 3% and 4.2%
respectively. The market has evolved into a segmented one with high-end luxury segment achieving
significant increases as compared lo the mid-to-low segment. This has prompted the Government to
reclassify property price indices to better reflect the price trends in the different segments.

Whilst the recovery of the market was propelled by the high-end luxury segment, the improvemant is
mainly due to an improving economy, renewed confidence and pent-up demand from limited high-end
supply when the property market was suffering for almost 10 challenging years. Increased interest from
well-heeled foreigners who are global investors, who tend to have more than one home in more than
one major key city, add further confidence in the Singapore economy. Overall, prices for the property
market are still below its peak of 1996,

Transaction volume also registered a new record level of 11,147 units as compared to an average of
about 7,500 units per annum for the last 10 years.,

When Singapore was restructuring its economy, rental for the office sector was low. But now, the
situation is reversed with more business investments on-stream and companies expanding its
operations. This had led to a natural phenomenon as the office sector has performed remarkably well
with rentals increasing by more than 30% for 2006. Grade A office space has once again hit the high of
$13.00 per square foot. Average occupancy was 89.5% and a shortage of prime office space is
expected in the next few years.

The retail sector has also performed well with occupancy of about 5% and prime rental increasing by
about 4.6%.

Group Performance

For the year ended 31 December 2006, the Group delivered a sterling performance with attributable
profit rising by 76% to $351.7 million (2005: $200.4 million) on the back of higher revenue of $2.55
billion (2005: $2.37 billion) and improved margins from both the property development and hotel
segments. Pre-tax profit of $150.9 million was also recognised on the disposal of long leasehold
interest in four hotels to CDL. Hospitality Trusts (COLHT). Basic earnings per share increased by 78% to
37.0 cents for the year (2005; 20.8 cents).
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In view of the excellent results, the Board has now proposed the payment of a special final gross
dividend of 10 cents per share to be paid together with the final gross dividend of 7.5 cents per
share. Afler taking into consideration the special interim dividend of 7.5 cents which was paid on 27
December 2006, the total dividend proposed or paid by the Group to its ordinary shareholders for the
year under review amount to 25.0 cents per share. This is twice the amount of 12.5 cents per share
paid for year 2005.

The Group has continued to be the only major listed Singapore property company that has adopted a
conservative accounting policy of depreciating its investment properties as allowed by the Financial
Reporting Standards (FRS). When FRS 40 on investment properties becomes mandatory from 1
January 2007, the Group will continue to adopt its current policy of stating its investment properties at
cost less accumulated depreciation. !f the Group were to adopt the policy of stating its investment
properties at valuation, it will be able to boost its results significantly through the recognition of
revaluation surpluses. However, the Group is of the view that as investrent properties are held as long-
term investiments, by stating them at valuation would result in the recognition of unrealised gains in the
profit and loss account which may, in turn, cause a fluctuation in its actual operating performance from
year to year depending on the state of the market. If other listed property companies were to state their
investment properties at valuation, this difference in accounting treatment will render our financial
results not directly comparable with theirs.

Property

2006 was an exciting and successful year for the Group. Although it sold 1,337 units in 2006, which is
lower than the 2,071 units achieved in 2005, the sales value for 2008 of $2.77 billion was substantially
higher compared to $1.66 billion achieved in 2005.

The Group is confident that the Singapore property market will continue to perform well. We have
focused our priority and resources on the domestic market and are now well positioned to maximise
and reap the benefits in a market that we know best, and one that is on an upswing momentum. The
Group has remained steadfast to its strategy to be the proxy to the Singapore real estate market. It has
maintained its leadership position by spearheading the launch of several extraordinary developments
and created much buzz in the high-end market segment.

It successfully launched four high-end projects in 2006. The Group set new benchmarks by redefining
lifestyles in Singapore with the launch of the first of its kind, the prestigious St. Regis Residences in
early June. During the launch, it set unprecedented record prices of over $3,000 per square foot,
commanding a 30% premium. This development comprising only a limited 173 beautifully appointed
apartments pushed the envelope of sophistication and introduced an unmatched ultimate luxury to
Singapore. This joint-venture project was released for sale in phases and to date, 134 units out of the
150 units released for sale have been sold. Over 75% of units sold have been bought by well-heeled
fareigners who understand the value of branded residences. By year end of 2007, the hotel is
scheduled to be open whilst the residences are expected to be ready in 2008. With their completion, the
holistic branded residence experience will be realised and appreciated.

In mid-June, the Group also released for sale Residences @ Evelyn, a 208-unit joint-venture
development located on an elevated site in the prime Newton vicinity, which is near completion. All
phases of this project have since been launched. To date, more than 93% of the project has been sold.
Ancther highlight of the Group's launches was the highly successful 264-unit waterfront enclave - The
Oceanfront @ Sentosa Cove. Launched in July, this 50:50 joint-venture development met with
phenomenal response, setting new benchmark prices for Sentosa Cove at that time. The project has
been fully sold.

In November, the Group launched Phase 1 of Tribeca by the Waterfront, a 175-unit, freehold luxurious
development located next to Grand Copthorne Waterfront Hotel and boast panoramic views of the
Singapore River. It met with good response and to date, of the 140 units released, 127 units have
already been sold.
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Even though the recovery of the property market has been mainly confined to the high-end segment,
the mid-tier market is also slowly making some progress. In October, the Group, together with its joint-
venture pariners launched the sale of 472-unit freehold condominium, Ferraria Park in the
Changi/Loyang area. More than 70% of the 250 units released under two phases have since been sold
and we expect the sales to pick up as the recovery of the property market begins to be more broad
based.

During the year, the Group booked in profits from both St. Regis Residences and The Sait @ Marina
Bay which are joint-venture developments. Other joint-venture developments contributing towards the
profits include The Pier @ Robertson, Savannah CondoPark, Parc Emily, Residences @ Evelyn and
Edelweiss Park. Wholly-owned projects such as City Square Residences also contributed to the profits
for the year under review.

However, profits from The Oceanfront @ Sentosa Cove, Tribeca by the Waterfront and Ferraria Park
have not been accounted for as these projects are still in the early stage of construction.

The office market has performed robustly with limited supply and strong demand due to the improving
economy. Occupancy rate of the Group's properties has improved to 92.3% and rental rates upon
renewal of leases would be adjusted to the current market level. As office leases are usually committed
for three to five years, adjustments would take time and rental increase for the portfolio would be
gradual and steady.

Grade A offices performed particularly well with Republic Plaza achieving about $13.00 per square foot,
surpassing the earlter peak of $11.00 per square foot in 1996.

In line with the Group's strategic land acquisition policy to replenish its land bank, the Group
successfully acquired four parcels of strategically located sites with land area of about 917,000 square
feet and potential development areas of approximately more than 1.8 million square feet. Cost of these
acquisitions amount to aver $1 billion.

Hotel

Millennium & Copthorne Hotels plc (M&C), in which the Group has a 53% interest delivered the highest
level of profits since its listing in 1996. The positive results are due to an improvement in operating
profits and realisation of some capital gains from the disposal of a few assets.

Revenue increased 8.6% to £646.3 million (2005 £595.2 million) with headline operating profit up
15.4% to £124.7 million (2005: £108.1 million). Headline profit before tax {excluding other operating
income and impairment) rose to £94.4 million, an increase of 27.6% (2005: £74.0 million). For the year
under review, M&C sold the long term leasehold interests in three Singapore hotels to CDLHT. This
realised £210.6 million in cash of which £78 million was reinvested for a 39.1% stake in CDLHT.

The strong and sustainable resuits achieved are a testimony of the focused strategy laid down by its
board in 2004 during the industry’s low point in 2003, which was aimed at restoring M&C's profitability,
redeploying its assets and developing the hotel brand, whilst maintaining a dividend consistent with the
Group's overall performance.

9. Where a forecast, or a prospect statement, has been previously disclosed to shareholders, any
variance between it and the actual results.

The Group's performance for the year under review is in line with its expectations as disclosed in the
announcement of results for the nine months ended 30 September 20086.
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10.

A commentary at the date of the announcement of the significant trends and competitive
conditions of the industry in which the group operates and any known factors or events that
may affect the group in the next reporting period and the next 12 months.

Property

The economy is expected to perform strongly and the Government has recently upgraded its forecast to
4.5% - 6.5% from the earlier estimate of 4% - 6%.

Demand for residential properties is expected to remain strong in 2007 given the forecast of almost full
employment, strong economic growth across the various sectors, the official policy of attracting foreign
talent, low interest rate environment and the remaking of Singapore economy to broaden its growth
potentials.

In January 2007, the Group launched the much-awaited One Shenton - a redevelopment of an old
office building in the Central Business District into a residential project. The response to this 341-unit
iconic masterpiece located in the Marina Bay vicinity was cverwhelming.

With the continuing strong demand in the high-end luxury market segment, the Group has lined up
three upmarket projects for launch in the next few months.

The first is the boulique 59-unit development at Balmoral Park/Stevens Road known as The Solitaire.
With its good location, hilltop views and fine architecture, good response is expected. The second
project is the luxurious development at the former Kim Lin Mansion site on Grange Road. This
distinctive 110-unit development, with generous landscaping, comprises good size apartments with
most of the units offering a 360° view of the surrounding is attracting interests from individuals as well
as real estate funds and corporate investors. Both are freehold developments.

The third development is the much sought-after 223-unit luxurious residential development at Quayside
Collection at Sentosa Cove. With all units having water or marina views, and the popularity of Sentosa
Cove, the response is expected to be overwhelming.

In view of the improving sentiments in the mid-market segment, the Group is also planning to launch
this year a 50:50 joint-venture development at the former Parkview site. This 493-unit project will be
launched in phases.

Construction costs have increased over the last 12 menths due to higher demand resulting from the
more active property market and construction of the two mega Integrated Resorts. Cost of new
developments has increased and will underpin the improving property prices.

The Group has recently acquired ancther enbloc sale site at Themson Road. The Albany consisting
56,865 square feet (including the adjoining state-land} has the polential to be developed into a 36-
storey residential project with about 135 apartments, strengthening its presence in this vicinity. The
Group has earlier purchased in March 2006 the adjoining Lock Cho Apartments, Comfort Mansion and
a four-storey walk-up apartment which has a combined plot area of about 137,479 square feet and if
amalgamaled with the adjoining state land, it will enlarge the site to approximately 178,000 square feet,
With a permissible height of up to 36 storeys, the proposed freehold development is expected to
comprise about 380 to 400 apartments. This is in line with the Group's policy of strategic land
acqguisition.

Construction of the 700,000 square feet City Square Mall has begun and it is expected to open for
business in 2009. The project has generated much interest among the major retailers and the Group is
in the midst of negotiation with several of them for anchor tenancies in the Mall,

The Group has received expressed interest for its retail properties to be injected into a REIT. The
Group is keeping its options open and may even consider its own retail REIT at the right time.
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The office market is expected to perform very well in the next few years especially with tightening
supply and growing demand. Occupancy of our office portfolio is almost 94% now and rentals are
expected to continue to improve further this year. The Group is mindful that an office REIT is a trendy
proposition and one that the market expects. But the timing of when to list is critical as the yield is used
to determine the capital value of the assets in a REIT. Unlike a hospitafity REIT where hotel rates can
be changed overnight, office tenancy agreements can only be renewed when the leases expire, usually
in three to five years. llis in the Group's interest to ensure that our real estate values are maximised
for our shareholders. The Group is evaluating various proposals submitted by investment bankers to
determine the viability of creating an office REIT at this point of time or at some future date.
Alternatively, we are also considering other proposals to unlock shareholder value. We will evaluate
our options and an announcement will be made in due course.

Hotel

M&C remains committed to grow its international hotel business as a long-term owner and operator of
hotels in many global gateway cities. |ts main focus is to create larger, more sustainable earning
streams with better gross margins.

The Group has continued to view its investment in M&C with a unique twin strategy. By being a hotel
operator, it has been able to generate positive, sustainable cash flow for the Group. At the same time, it
has been able to utilise its real eslate expertise to exploit the maximum value of its hote! assets and
enhance the real estate value by elevating the status of some of its key strategic hotels in prime
locations through total refurbishment and redevelopment like the Zenith Residences in Sydney,
conversion of Sunnyvale (Silicon Valley, USA) and even the potential redevelopment of some other
hotels in London and USA. Furthermore, the Group is also lending its expertise to help to develop a
super fuxurious condominium in Kuala Lumpur, Malaysia, located along the popular shopping belt
which is a piece of prime property owned by M&C just next to the Regent Hotel. The Group has also
been able to unlock shareholder value when the opportunity is right as was done in the case of the sale
of The Plaza Hotel in New York and the recent flotation of the hospitality REIT.

With its strong balance sheet and the flexibility created through the hospitality REIT platform, M&C is in
an advantageous and enviable position to seize opportunities and is well placed for its next phase of
growth.

M&C wilt also continue to strengthen its brand positioning and grow its presence through management
contracts. It announced the winning of 9 new management contracts in 2006 taking the total number of
rooms signed since 2004 to just under 4,000 and the total number of management contracts to 21,

The M&C board had earlier laid the foundation with focused strategies for M&C during the difficult
period of 2003. With the appointment of the new Group Chief Executive Officer, Peter Papas, with
effect from 1 March 2007, his broad experience and hands-on leadership will provide a fresh impetus to
drive organic growth as well as selected acquisitions at the opportune time so as to bring M&C to the
next level. M&C is confident that with a new and solid management team, it is well poised to propel the
business forward to achieve higher and more sustainable growth.

Group Prospects

The prospect for the Singapore real estate market looks bright for the next few years. The government
has restructured our economy and is making it an attractive place to live, work and play. There are
various factors which have contributed to the attraction of global investors.

Firstly, there is now increased liquidity in the world and relatively lower risk premiums paid by corporate
borrowers. With globalization and innovation, there is a global financial revolution with greater access to
glebal funds. More companies have an increased appetite to invest and Singapore is a favourite choice
investment city.

Page 16




CITY DEVELOPMENTS LIMITED

(REG. NO. 196300316Z)

11.

Secondly, the Singapore economy today is more vibrant and sustainable with great potential. Foreign
capital is flowing into Singapore as the government has put in place a stable, cosmopolitan and
conducive environment for investment. It has remained nimble and determined to push ahead to
develop Singapore into a global city. This has attracted many investors to Singapore as their base for
expansion into the resurgent Asia Pacific region.

Thirdly, non-traditional markets such as China, Russia, India and Middle East which have attained
emerging wealth are also attracted to Singapore and are starting to explore opportunities here as a
springboard to the dynamic Asia Pacific markets.

Singapore is well positioned to reap the benefits of these market trends. The influx of foreign
investments, foreign talents, high net worth individuals into Singapore and increased tourism with visitor
arrivals has translated into a rise in demand and interest for the real estate market which augurs well for
our economy.

With the locked-in profits from progressive recognition of pre-sold development projects, the Group is
confident to perform even better over the next 12 months.

Dividend
{a) Current Financial Period Reported On
Any dividend declared for the current financial period reported on?

Yes.

The Company had paid the following special interim ordinary dividend to ordinary shareholders and
non-cumulative preference dividends to holders of City Developments Limited Non-redeemable
Convertible Non-cumulative Preference Shares (“Preference Shares™),

Name of Dividend Spaecial Interim Ordinary Preference Dividend
Dividend

Date of payment 27 December 2006 30 June 2008 3 January 2007

Dividend Type Cash Cash Cash

Dividend Amount {in 7.5 cents (gross) per 1.93 cents (net) per Preference [1.97 cents (net) per

cenis) Ordinary Share Share* Preference Share®

Dividend rate (in %) N.A. 3.9% (net) per annum on the 3.9% (net) per annum on the
issue price of each Preference |issue price of each Preference]
Share Share

Dividend period N.A. From 31 December 2005 to 28 [From 30 June 2008 to 30
June 2008 (both dates inclusive) |December 2006 (both dates

inclusive}
lssue price N.A, $1.00 per Preference Share $1.00 per Preference Share
Tax rate 20% 20% 20%

*  Preference dividend for each Preference Share is calculated at the dividend rate of 3.9%(net) per annum
of the issue price of $1.00 for each Preference Share on the basis of the actual number of days comprised
in the dividend period divided by 365 days.

Subject to ordinary shareholders’ approval at the Annual General Meeting to be held on 26 April
2007, the following Ordinary dividends have been propesed:

Nams of Dividend Proposed Final Dividend [Proposed Special Final Dividend
Dividend Type Cash |Cash

Dividend Amount {in cents) {7.5 cents (gross) per Ordinary Share 10.0 cenis {gross) per Ondinary Share
Tax rate 18% - 18%
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(b) Corresponding Period of the Inmediately Preceding Financial Year

{c

(d)

Any dividend declared for the corresponding period of the immediately preceding financial
year?

Yes.

Name of Dividend Preference Dividend

Dale of payment 30 June 2005 3 January 2006

Dividend Type Cash Cash

Dividend Amount per Preference [1.93 cents (net) 1.87 cents (net)

Share (in cants)

Dividend rate (in %) 3.9% (net) per annum on the issue price|3.9% (nef} per annum on the issue price of
of each Preference Share each Preference Share

Dividend period From 31 December 2004 to 29 June From 30 June 2005 to 30 December 2005
2005 (both dates inclusive) {both dates inclusive)

Par value of Prefarence Shares* [$0.05 per Preference Share $0.05 per Preference Share

Issue price of Preference Shares |$1.00 per Preference Share $1.00 per Preference Share

Tax rate 20% 20%

Name of Dividend First & Final Ordinary Dividend Special Ordinary Dividend

Data of payment 19 May 2006 19 May 2006

Dividend Type Cash Cash

Dividend Amount per Ordinary 7.5 cents (gross) 5.0 cents (gross)

Share (in cents)

Dividend rate {in %) 15% per Ordinary Share (less lax) 10% per Ordinary Share (less tax)

Par value of Ordinary Shares* $0.50 per Ordinary Share $0.50 per Ordinary Share

Tax rate 20% 20%

* Par value of preference shares and ordinary shares were abolished on 30 January 2006.

Date payable

Subject to ordinary shareholders’ approval at the Annual General Meeting to be held on 26 April
2007, the proposed final ordinary dividend and special final cordinary dividend for 2006 will be
payable on 18 May 2007.

Books Closure Date

NOTICE 1S HEREBY GIVEN that the subject to the ordinary sharehalders’ approval of the payment
of a final ordinary dividend of 7.5 cents and a special final ordinary dividend of 10 cents per
ordinary share less 18% Singapore income tax in respect of the financial year ended 31 December
2006 at the Annual General Meeting to be held on 26 April 2007, the Ordinary Shares Transfer
Bocks and Register of Halders of ordinary shares of the Company will be closed on 4 May 2007.
Duly completed registrable transfers received by the Company's Registrar, M&C Services Private
Limited of 138 Robinson Road #17-00, The Corporate Office, Singapore 068906, up to 5.00 p.m.
on 3 May 2007 will be registered to determine ordinary shareholders’ entitiement to the dividend. In
respect of ordinary shares in securities accounts with The Central Depository {Pte) Limited (*CDP"),
the said final ordinary dividend will be paid by the Company to COP who will distribute the ordinary
dividend to the holders of the securities accounts.

If no dividend has been declared/recommended, a statement to that effect.

Not applicable.
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PART Il - ADDITIONAL INFORMATION REQUIRED FOR FULL YEAR ANNOUNCEMENT
(This part is not applicable to Q1, Q2, Q3 or Half Year Results)

13. Segmented revenue and results for business or geographical segments (of the group) in the
form presented in the issuer's most recently audited annual financial statements, with
comparative information for the immediately preceding year.

By Business Segments

<+ The Group >
Revenue Profit before tax (*)
Full Year Ended Full Year Ended
2006 2005 2006 2005
$$°000 $$'000 S$'000 $%$'000

Property Development 484,980 365,045 225,811 151,227
Hotel Operations 1,846,378 1,803,256 396,598 213,003
Rental Properties 168,066 160,072 30,047 27,566
Others 47,380 45,906 39,822 12,066

2,546,804 2,374,279 692,278 403,862

* Includes share of after-tax profit of an associale and jointly-controfled entities.

14. In the review of performance, the factors leading to any material changes in contributions to
turnover and earnings by the business or geographical segments.

Property Development

Revenue increased to $485.0 miillicn (2005: $365.0 million) and pre-tax profit increased by $74.6 million
{or 49.3%) to $225.8 million (2005: $151.2 million).

Projects that contributed to both revenue and profit include City Square Residences, Residences @
Evelyn, Savannah CondoPark, The fmperial, The Pier at Robertson, The Equatorial and sale of the
apartments in Zenith Residences, Sydney held by its subsidiary, Millennium & Copthorne Hotels plc. In
accordance to the Group’s policy of equity accounting for the results of its jointly-controlled entities,
whilst revenue from The Sail @ Marina Bay, Parc Emily, St. Regis Residences and Edelweiss Park has
not been consolidated into the Group's total revenue, the Group's share of profits arising from these
joint venture developments has been included in pre-tax profit.

The increase in revenue is mainly attributable to contributions from City Square Residences,
Residences @ Evelyn, The imperial and sale of apartments in Sydney.

Total sales value achieved for year 2006 amounted to $2.77 billion which is substantially higher than
that of 2005 of $1.66 billion. The sales value that relates to projects held by the Company and its
subsidiaries will continue to be recognised progressively as revenue from current year onwards in
accordance with the stage of construction of the projects.

The increase in pre-tax profit, which is in-line with the improvement in revenue, is also due to profit
recognised for St. Regis Residences as well as higher contributions from The Sail @ Marina Bay and
Parc Emily and higher write-back of allowance for foreseeable losses on unsold units. Profit for 2005
included the gain on sale of Bayswater Tower, Kingsgate Shopping Centre and Kingsgate Commercial
Centre in Sydney recognised in 2005.
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Hotel Operations

Revenue improved by $43.1 million (or 2.4%) to $1,846.4 million (2005: $1,803.3 million). The increase
in revenue is mainly due to impravement in the Group's RevPAR which increased by 8.1% during the
year, with particularly strong performances in the United States and Asia.

Pre-tax profit soared to $396.6 miliion (2005: $213.0 milion}. The increase in pre-tax profit resulted
from improvement in RevPAR, the gain of $150.9 million recognised on sale of the 75-year lease each
in Grand Copthorne Waterfront Hotel, Orchard Hotel (including Orchard Hotel Shopping Arcade) and M
Hotel, and the remaining 61 years of 99-year leasehold interest in Copthorne King's Hotel to CDL
Hospitality Trusts in 2006 and the receipt of business interruption insurance proceeds from insurance
broker of $15.9 million in respect of the Millenium Hilton New York. This increase would have been
higher if not for the profit of £12.8 million (approximately S$39.8 million) from the settlement of
Millenium Hilton insurance dispule in 2005.

Rental Properties

Revenue increased by $8.0 million to $168.1 miillion (2005: $160.1 million) mainly due to higher carpark
income generated and improved average occupancy.

In line with the improvement in revenue, pre-tax profit increased to $30.0 million (2005; $27.6 million).
The profit contribution from CDL Hospitality Trusts, in which the Company’s 53% subsidiary, Millennium
& Copthorne Hotels plc, has a 39% interest, has also contributed additional profit to this segment. The
increase would be higher if not for the recognition of gain from the disposal of MyeongDong Central
Building in Seoul, held by a jointly-contralled entity in which the Group has a 50% interest and disposal
of units in Tanglin Shopping Centre in 2005.

Others

Revenue, comprising mainly income from hotel management, building maintenance contracts, project
management, club operations and dividend income, has improved to $47.4 million (2005 $45.9 million).

Pre-tax profit for this segment increased by $27.7 million to $39.8 million (2005: $12.1 millio'n). The

increase resulted from higher unrealised gain on equities held for trading, exchange gain on foreign
currency denominated deposits and securities and higher management fee income.

A breakdown of sales

«+ The Group P
2006 2005
1H 2H Total 1H 2H Total
(restated) (restated)
$§'000 55'000 $$'000 53%'000 S$3$'000 5%'000
Sales 1,143,316 | 1,403,488 | 2,546,804 1,102,908 1,271,371 | 2,374,279
Operalting profit after tax
before deduding minority
interests 131,426 431,540 562,966 106,476 202,646 309,122
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16. A breakdown of the total annual dividend (in dollar value) for the issuer’s latest full year and its
previous full year.

Total Annual Net Dividend (Refer to Para 16 of Appendix 7.2 for the required details)

Full Year Full Year
2006 2005
$$'000 S$$'000
Ordinary 55,922 54,507
Special 128,121 36,338
Preference 12,804 12,904
Total 197,947 103,749

The final ordinary dividend and special final ordinary dividend for the year ended 31 December 2006 of
7.5 cents and 10.0 cents respectively per share less 18% tax is subject to the approval of ordinary
shareholders at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and the dividend amounts are based on the
number of issued ordinary shares as at 31 December 2006.

17. Interested Person Transactions

Interested Persons Aggregate value of all interested person transactions conducted
in FY2006 under the IPT Mandate pursuant to Rule 920
(excluding transactions less than $100,000)

Hong Leong Investment Property-related: $10,895,755.80
Holdings Pte. Ltd. group of {leases, project management, property
companies management and maintenance, marketing,

accounting and administrative, cleaning and
carpark operation and management services)

Financial and Treasury-related: $213,351.00
(inter-company loans)
Total $11,109,106.80
Directors and their immediate Nil
family members
BY ORDER OF THE BOARD
Shufen Loh @ Catherine Shufen Loh
Company Secretary
28 February 2007
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* Asterisks denote mandatory information

Name of Announcer * CITY DEVELOPMENTS LIMITED

Company Registration No. 1963003167

Announcement submitted on behalf | CITY DEVELOPMENTS LIMITED
of

Announcement Is submitted with | CITY DEVELOPMENTS LIMITED

respect to *

Announcement is submitted by * Enid Ling Peek Fong
Designation * Company Secretary
Date & Time of Broadcast 28-Feb-2007 17:09:59
Announcement No. 00099

>> Announcement Details
The details of the announcement start here ...

Announcement Title * | Full Year 2006 Financial Report

Description Presentation slides on the above matter is attached for information.

Attachments: & CDLFullYear2006Report.pdf

Total size = 1525K
(2048K size limit recommended)

https://www | .sgxnet.sgx.com/web21/sgxnet/LCAnncSubmission.nsf/vwprint/72EOF3...  28-Feb-07
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__Singapore Property Market

Singapore Property Market

Property Price Index - Residential (2002 - 2006)
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Singapore Property Market

No. of New Private Residential Units Launched

Units Sold (Projects Under Construction) (2002 - 2006)

VS

O New Units Launched O Now Units Sold {Projects Undor Construction)
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11,069

C2002 L2003 2004 2005
Source : URA, 40 2006 ’

2002
2003
2004
2005
2006

New Units
Launched

9,507
5216
5,881
8,201
11,069

it

Sold {Uncompleted

8,506
4,497
4517
7760
10,363

Singapore Property Market

No. of Uncompleted Private Residential Units Available (2001 - 2006)

O Not Launched
OLaunched & Unsold
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2001
2002
2003
2004
2005
2008

Launched Not

8 Unsold

5,540
4,970
4,722
4,639
2,040
2,536

Total
Launched
11,657 17.197
10,707 15877
9,996 14,718
11,197 156,836
7,328 10,277
6,944 9,480




Singapore Property Market

Property Price Index - Commercial (2002 — 2008)
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Singapore Property Market

Average Office Rental in CBD (2002 -2008)
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Singapore Property Market

Average Prime Level Retail Rental (2002 - 20086)
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Financial Highlights

Summary of Financial Highlights

FY 2005 | FY2006 | %
Change

Revenue ($m} 2,374 2,547 7

Profit from operations ($m) 468 674 44

Profit before tax ($m) 404 692 7

Profit after tax & MI {$m) 200 352 76

Earnings Per Share (cents): FY 2005 FY 2006 %
{Restated) Change

Basic 20.8 BT Y] 78

Diluted 205 8.6 9

Financial Highlights

Gross Dividend (cents per ordinary share)

FY 2005 FY 2006
Special Interim Dividend - - 1.5 cants
.(Paid)

Final Dividend 7.5 cents 7.5 cents
{Proposed)

Special Final Dividend 5.0 cents 10,0 cents
(Proposed)

Total 12.5 cents 25.0 cants




Financial Highlights

Group Revenue by Segment
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Financial Highlights

Net Borrowings

As at As at
31112105 311206 % Change
CDL Group Total $m $m
Gross Borrowings 3,600.9 3.356.0 b7
Less: Cash and (573.6) (776.9) 35
Cash Equivalents
Net Borrowings 3.027.3 2,579:1 ¥ 15

Financial Highlights

5-Year Analysis {As at 1 Jan 2007)

2001 FTT 2002 T T 20037 YT 20047 I 2008 T 20067 S
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Operations Review

Operations Review

Property Development — Property Sales

CDL achieved a 67% increase in the
sales value of units sold/booked




Property Development (units sold/booked)

Sales Value* No. of

Total

$°000 Units*

Q1-Q4 2006 $2,765,344

Q1-Q4 2005 $1,659,719

Floor Area

] Sales value of units SOIdlb_OQBéjéﬁi}n

e Includes share of JV partners

Operations Review

New Residential Project Launches for 1H 2007

Projects Units
One Shenton (Total 341) KLY
The Solitaire (Total 59) 59
Kim Lin Mansion {Tota! 110) 50
Parkview site (Total 483) 150
The Quayside Isle (Total 223) 100
Total 700

10




Operations Review

l.and Bank by Sector (As at 1 Jan 2007)

Type of Developmont Land Araa (sq ft) “%
Residential {Local & Cwerseas) 3,304,638 78
Commercial / Hotel 457,398 1
Industrial 462,818 1
TOTAL 4,224,854 100
E1 Resfdential*
(Overseas)

8%

i Industrial Ji
1%

CIResidential

L |

1 Commercial/ ) { ;;‘;: )
Hotel i
1% :

Operations Review

Rental Revenue by Sector (2005 vs 2006)

0 Office

[ Retail

M Industrial
.. B8 0Others*

Rental Rovanue (%)

2005 2006
*Including car park, serviced apartmeant and residentlal
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Operations Review

Hotel Revenue by Region

2005
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Overall change
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Operations Review

Hotel Occupancy by Region
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Business
FAWards]

Community
- Awards

CDL’s Awards

FTSE4Good Secial Responsihlity index {since 2002)
Ona of six companies in Asla (excluding Japan) included in this real time Index
serles which reflects the performanca of socially responsibla equities

SIAS Investors’ Choler Awards 2006 - Among Singapore's
Most Transparent Companies (Property) {2000 - current)
Based on limeliness of news release, substantality of news release, degres of
media atcess, frequency of corporate results, etc.

Workplace Safety and Health Awards 2006 - Developer Award
introduced in 2002, ihe Developer Award Is presented by the Ministry of Manpower
10 developers in recognition ol their aclive contribution in promoting Occupational
Safety Heatth (OSH) praciices at the work-sites, and for ass/sting thelr contractors
10 achlava Workplace Safety and Health (WSH) excellence.

RoSPA Gold 20086

The onty company in Singapore 10 be canferred the international ReSPA Gold
Award 2006 lor exceflence In Oceupational Haalth and Safety management In the
workplace

Corporate Citlzen Award 2006
Awarded by tha National Volunteer & Philanthropy Centre (NVPC), CDL is tha frst
local-based company 1o win this prestigious award lor its firm commitment to active
comorata itizenship .
Friend of the Aris {since 1397} .

Presented by National Arts Council to CDL for its Sipnificant contribution
10 the promotion and development of the aits in' Singapore’

3

Market Outlook
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Market Outlook

Singapore Economic Outlook

Economy performed favourably with GDP growth of 7.9% and
an all-time high in employment creation

Strong fundamentals, a restructured economy and favourable
investment environment in Singapore fuel economic growth

Strategies to attract skilled foreign talent and develcp Singapore
into an Asian hub for wealth management, tourism, education,
medical and health etc. — places this city into Uje global limelight

Singapore’s transformation into a vibrant and global city, and an
attraclive strategic investment hub

Market Outlook

Property Market - Residential

Private residential property prices have increased by 10.2%
compared to 3.9% in 2005

The price increase was led by high-end projects in the prime
districts of 9, 10, 11, Marina Bay/Oowntown Core and Sentosa
Cove. Prices in these above districts increased by 17%

Private apartments within the rest of the central region and outside
the centrat region rose by only 3% and 4.2% respectively

Market is segmented, prompting the re-classification of property price
indices to better reflect the price trends

Transaction volume registered a new record of 11,147 units, as
compared to an average of about 7,500 units per annum for the last

10 years
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Market Outlook

Property Market - Office Rentals

. Office sector has performed remarkably well with rentals
increasing by more than 30% for 2006 and an average
occupancy of 89.5%

+  Grade A office space has hit the high of $13 per square foot

*  With limited supply of prime office space over the next few years,
the office market is expected to continue to perform well

Property Market - Retail Rentals

*  Retail sector has performed well with occupancy of about 95%:
and prime rental rates increasing by about 4j.6°/_o

i

P R ] o i?.:wi <@ .
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Miscellaneous

* Asterisks denote mandatory information

Name of Announcer * CITY DEVELOPMENTS LIMITED

Company Registration No. 19630031627

Announcement submitted on behalf § CITY DEVELOPMENTS LIMITED
of

Announcement is submitted with | CITY DEVELOPMENTS LIMITED

respect to *

Announcement is submitted by * Enid Ling Peek Fong
Designation * Company Secretary
Date & Time of Broadcast 23-Feb-2007 12:31:14
Announcement No. 00017

>> Announcement Details

The details of the announcement start here ...

Announcement Title * | Announcement of Full Year 2006 Results of Subsidiary Company, Grand Plaza Hotel Corporation

Description We attach herewith the results announcement for the year ended 31 December 2006 issued
by Grand Plaza Hotel Corporation, for your information.
Attachments: @ GPHC_FY2006.pdf

Total size = 2252K
{2048K size limit recommended)
Total attachment size has exceeded the recommended value
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 17-A
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE AND SECTION 141
OF THE CORPORATION CODE OF THE PHILIPPINES

For the fiscal year ended 31 December 2006

. SEC ldentification Number 166878 3. BIR Tax Identification No. 000-460-602-000

Exact name of issuer as specified in its charter GRAND PLAZA HOTEL CORPORATION

. City of Pasay, Philippines . (SEC Use Only)
Province, Country or other jurisdiction Industry Classification Code:
of incorporation or organization

. 10/F, The Heritage Hotel Manila, Roxas Blvd. Cor. EDSA Ext., Pasay City 1300
Address of principal office Postal Code

. Tel No. (632) 854-8838 ; Fax No. (632) 854-8825
Issuer's telephone number, including area code

Former name, former address, and former fiscal year, if changed since last report.
10. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the SRC, or Sec. 4 and 8 of the RSA
Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Stock
Qutstanding and Amount of Debt
Outstanding

Common Stock 87,318,270
(Inclusive of 13,942,063 treasury shares)

1. Are any or all of these securities listed on a Stock Exchange.
Yes[x] No [ ]
If yes, state the name of such stock exchange and the classes of securities listed therein:

Stock Exchange : Philippine Stock Exchange
Securities : Common Shares




12. Check whether the issuer:

(a) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the SRC and SRC Rule 17
thereunder or Section 11 of the RSA and RSA Rule 11(a)-1 thereunder, and Sections 26 and 141
of The Corporatton Code of the Philippines during the preceding twelve (12) months (or for such
shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports);

Yes [x] No [ ]
(b) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past ninety (90) days.
Yes [x] No [ ]

13. State the aggregate market value of the voting stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant.
The aggregate market value shall be computed by reference to the price at which the stock
was sold, or the average bid and asked prices of such stock, as of a specified date within sixty
(60) days prior to the date of filing. If a determination as to whether a particular person or
entity is an affiliate cannot be made without involving unreasonable effort and expense, the
aggregate market value of the common stock held by non-affiliates may be calculated on the
basis of assumptions reasonable under the circumstances, provided the assumptions are set
forth in this Form. (See definition of "affiliate" in “Annex B”).

The share price of the Company on 22 January 2007 is PhP18.75 and the total voting stock held
by non-affiliates of the Company is 9,851,414. Therefore, the aggregate market value of the
voting stock held by non-affiliates of the Company is PhP184,714,012.

APPLICABLE ONLY TO ISSUERS INVOLVED IN
INSOLVENCY/SUSPENSION OF PAYMENTS PROCEEDINGS
DURING THE PRECEDING FIVE YEARS:

14. Check whether the issuer has filed all documents and reports required to be filed by Section

17 of the Code subsequent to the distribution of securities under a plan confirmed by a court
or the Commission.

Yes [ ] No [x]
DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

I5. If any of the following documents are incorporated by reference, briefly describe them and
identify the part of SEC Form 17-A into which the document is incorporated:

(a) Any annual repoit to security holders;
(b) Any proxy or information statement filed pursuant to SRC Rule 20 and 7.1(b);
(c) Any prospectus filed pursuant to SRC Rule 8.1-1.




PART I - BUSINESS & GENERAL INFORMATION
ITEM 1. BUSINESS
General

The Company was registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission on 9 August 1989
primarily to own, lease or manage one or more hotels, inns or resorts, all adjuncts and
accessories thereto and all other tourist oriented business as may be necessary in connection
therewith.

The Company owns The Heritage Hotel Manila, a deluxe class hotel which offers 467 rooms and
deluxe facilities such as restaurants, ballrooms, and a casino.

The hotel opened on 2 August 1994 and the Company has continued to own and operate the
hotel since then.

For the fiscal year ending on 31 December 2006, the Company reported a net profit after tax of
about PhP157.6 million as against PhP147.1 million in 2005 and PhP109.2 million in 2004,

There is no bankruptcy, receivership or similar proceedings involving the Company. There are
no material reclassifications, mergers, and consolidation involving the Company, nor purchases
or sales of a significant amount of assets not in the ordinary course of business of the Company.

The Company’s main source of income is revenue from the hotel operations. The market for the
hotel services varied. The bulk of the room guests are corporate clients from various countries.
The majority of the room guests are Americans, Japanese, Koreans and guests from Southeast
Asian nations, while food and beverage guests are mainly Filipinos.

Competitive Position

The main competitors of the Heritage Hotel are Manila Diamond Hotel, Century Park Hotel,
Westin Philippine Plaza Hotel and Hyatt Regency Hotel.

Based on information made available to us, the competitive position of these hotels is shown
below:

NAME OCCUPANCY % | AVERAGE ROOM RATE | ROOM YIELD
PESO REVPAR
Heritape Hotel 70.56% PhP2,852 PhP2,012
Diamond Hotel 75.86% PhP3,253 PhP2,468
Century Park 74.20% PhP2,321 PhP1,722
Hyatt Regency 61.87% PhP2,942 PhP1,820
Westin Hotel 62.80% PhP2,787 PhP1,750




Among its competitors, The Heritage Hotel ranks third in terms of occupancy, third in terms of
average room rate and second in terms of RevPar.

Raw Materials and Services

The hotel purchases its raw material for food and beverage (“F&B”) from both local and foreign
suppliers. The top 3 suppliers are F. Del Rosario Pork Store, MY General Merchandise and PTC
Commercial Corp.

Dependence on Single Customer

The Company’s main source of income is revenue from the operations of the Heritage Hotel.
The operations of the hotel are not dependent on a single or a few customers.

Related Party Transactions

The Company in the normal course of business has entered into transactions with its related
parties, principally consisting of cash advances. These advances are shown as “Due to related
company”, “Due to immediate holding company”, and “Due to intermediate holding company”

in the balance sheets.

The Company also leases its hotel site and a fully-furnished townhouse unit from a related
company. The lease contract on the hotel site requires the Company to deposit PhP78 million to
answer for any and all unpaid obligations that the Company may have under said contract.

The Company has entered into a Management Contract with CDL Hotels (Phils.) Corporation for
the latter to act as the hotel’s administrator. Under the terms of the agreement, the Company is
required to pay monthly basic management and incentive fees based on a certain percentage of
revenue and gross operating profit,

Patents, Trademarks, Etc.

The Company registered the tradename “The Heritage Hotel Manila” with the Intellectual
Property Office on 12 July 2000 under registration number 41995105127, Under current laws,
the registration is valid for a term of 20 years, or up to 12 July 2020, The registration is
renewable for another 10 years.

The Company does not hold any other patent, trademark, copyright, license, franchise,
concession or royalty agreement,

Government Approval and Regulation

The hotel applies for Department of Tourism (“DOT?”) accreditation annually. The accreditation
is based on a certain standard set by the DOT for deluxe class hotels. The DOT inspects the hotel
to determine whether the hotel meets the criteria of the DOT. The DOT accredited the hotel and
the Company for the year 2006.




The Company is not aware of any new government regulation that may have a material impact
on the operations of the Company during the fiscal year covered by this report.

Development Activities
The Company did not undertake any development activities during the last three fiscal years.
Number of Employees

The hotel employed a total of 529 employees during the year 2006. Out of the 529 employees,
344 are regular employees and 185 are casual employees.

The number by type of employee is as follows:

REGULAR CASUAL | TOTAL
Hotel Operating Staff (All operating dept) 249 136 385
Management/Admin/Security (A&G Dept) 44 42 86
Sales & Marketing 19 0 19
Repairs & Maintenance 32 7 39
Total 344 185 529

Barring any unforeseen circumstance, for the year 2007, the Company will maintain more or less
the same number of employees as in year 2006.

There are no existing collective bargaining agreements between the Company and its employees.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

The Company leases its hotel site and a fully furnished townhouse unit from Harbour Land
Corporation, a related company. The hotel site is located at the corner of Roxas Blvd. and EDSA
Extension, Pasay City. The townhouse is located at Unit 506, Roxas Seafront Garden Homes,
Roxas Blvd. Corner Ortigas Street, Pasay City.

The lease for the hotel site is for a period of 25 years renewable for another 25 years. The lease
commenced on | January 1990,

The lease for the townhouse is renewable every two years.

The annual rental expenses for the hotel site and the townhouse are PhP10.6 million and PhP0.12
million respectively.

The Company has no intention of acquiring additional property within the next 12 months.




ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

There are no material legal proceedings to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries or
affiliates is a party or of which any of its property s the subject.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of the security holders during the fourth quarter of the fiscal
year covered by this report.

In the 15 May 2006 annual stockholders meeting, the following were elected as directors of the
Company:

Wong Hong Ren;

Eddie C.T. Lau;

Bryan Cockrell;

Eddie Yeo Ban Heng;

Mia Gentugaya (independent director); and
Angelito Imperio

Michele Dee Santos

Please refer to the discussion in item 9 of this report.




PART II - OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT’S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED

STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The common shares of the Company are listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange.

The following are the high and low share prices of the Company for the year 2006 and 2005:

Amount in Peso:

HIGH LOW HIGH LOW
Year 2006 Year 2006 Year 2005 Year 2005
First Quarter 26.00 26.00 No movement | No movement
Second Quarter | No movement | No movement | No movement | No movement
Third Quarter No movement | No movement | No movement { No movement
Fourth Quarter 34.00 18.75 33.00 25.00

The last recorded trade of the shares of the Company during the fiscal year covered by this report

accurred on 29 December 2006. The share price was PhP18.75.

Holders of Securities

The Company has only one class of shares, i.e., common shares. The total outstanding common

shares as of 31 December 2006 is 87,318,270 inclusive of 13,942,063 treasury shares.

As of 31 December 2006, the number of shareholders of the Company is 508.

The list of the top 20 shareholders is as follows:

NAME OF SHAREHOLDER NO. OF SHARES % OF
SHAREHOLDING
(INCLUSIVE OF
TREASURY SHARES)

01 { The Philippine Fund Ltd. 39,244,343 44 .95%

02 | Zatrio Pte Ltd 24,280,450 27.81%

03 | Grand Plaza Hotel Corp- Treasury Stocks 13,942,063 15.97%

04 { PCD Nominee Filipino 9,267,339 10.61%

05 | Alexander Sy Wong 47,256 0.05%

06 | Yam Kit Seng 7,000 <0.01%

07 [ Phoon Lin Mui 7,000 <0.01%

08 | Yam Kum Cheong 7,000 <0.01%

09 | Yam Poh Choo 7,000 <(.01%




10 | Lucas M. Nunag 4,800 <0.01%
11 | Natividad Kwan 4,320 <0.01%
12 | Le Ying Tan-Lao 3,610 <0.01%
13 | Yam Kit Sung 2,999 <0.01%
14 | Peter Kan 2,650 <0.01%
{5 | Romeo L. Salonga 2,400 <0.01%
16 | Christopher Lim 2,332 <(0.01%
17 | Norberto R. Ong 2,000 <0.01%
18 | Robert Uy 2,000 <0.01%
19 | Estrella M. Dela Cruz 1,900 <0.01%
200 | James Jao & / Or Henry Jao 1,687 <0.01%

Total 86,840,149 99.45%

Dividends

The Board of Directors, in its meeting held on 23 October 2006 approved the declaration of cash
dividend in the total amount of PhP51,363,345 to be distributed among its sharcholders as of
record date 8 November 2006, pro-rata to their respective shareholdings and paid not later than |

December 2006. The cash dividend declared is PhP0.7 per share.

The Board of Directors, in its meeting held on 25 November 2005 approved the declaration of
cash dividends in the total amount of PhP22,887,003 to be distributed among its stockholders of
record as 9 December 2005, pro-rata to their respective shareholdings and paid not later than 23

December 2005. The cash dividend declared is PhP0.3 per share.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

The Company does not have any unregistered securities.




ITEM 6. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OPERATION

(A) Full Fiscal Year

Top S Key Performance Indicators of the Company for the last 3 years:

OR PLAN OF

2006 2005 2004
Current ratio 1.52 1.67 1.63
Net book wvalue per share PhP12.58 PhP13.03 PhP12.88
(include treasury shares)
Earmings per share PhP2.15 PhP1.92 PhP1.39
Profit before tax margin ratio 34.91% 33.25% 26.52%

EBITDA

PhP241.9 million

PhP235.4 million

PhP195.5 million

Current ratio is derived by dividing the current assets with the current liabilities. This indicator
measures the liquidity of the Company in the short-term. The current ratio has dropped during
the year of review mainly due to lower cash balance which is a result of the payment for share
buyback and cash dividend during the year.

Net book value per share is derived by dividing the net stockholders’ equity by the total number
of shares issued. This measures the value of the Company on a per share basis. The net book
value per share decreased for the period of review due to lower asset value.

Earning per share is derived by dividing the net profit after tax by the total shares outstanding.
This indicator measures the earning of the Company on a per share basis. The earnings per share
improved in year 2006 due to higher profitability.

Profit before tax margin ratio is computed by dividing the profit before tax against the total
revenue. This ratio measures whether the Company is able to contain its expenses in relation to
the revenue. The Company has shown improvement in this indicator. It jumped from 33.25% in
year 2005 to 34.91% in year 2006 mainly as a result of higher revenue.

EBITDA represents earnings before income tax, interest, depreciation and amortization. This
indicator is in effect a measure of the cash flow of the Company. The Company improves its
EBITDA by 2 % due to higher revenue and less expenses.




Results of Operations:

Revenue and Net Income After Tax (“NIAT”) of the Company during the last 3 years are as

follows:
YEAR REVENUE - NIAT -
PHP PHP
2006 670,787,953 157,594,904
2005 650,797,809 147,169,147
2004 579,579,123 109,209,843

2006 Results of Operations

The year 2006 again proved to be strong for the hotel industry in Metro Manila. The Company
reported an increase of PhP20 million in revenue or 3% of the prior year. In terms of
profilability, it is about PhP10 million higher than the previous year.

The improvement in business is due to a more stable political climate in the Philippines and the
boaming world economy.

Revenue:

Rooms division revenue improved by PhP17 million or 5% over the prior year. Although room
occupancy has decreased by 3.5% compared to year 2005, the increase in Average Room Rate
(ARR) by PhP272 more than offset the drop in room occupancy. For the year 2006, the hotel
focus on improving its ARR and shift its market segment to higher yield corporate business and
hence the improvement in ARR.

Food & beverage (“F&B”) division also showed improvement in their performance by PhP6
million or 2.7% compared to the previous year. The increase in F&B revenue is mainly due to
higher average check of PhP355 for the year 2006 (2005: PhP328). But the increase in average
check is offset by the drop in covers by 34,381 or 6% over the same period of the prior year. The
following F&B outlets surpassed the revenue of last year namely, banquet, casino, lobby lounge
and mini-bar. With the opening of the new SM Mall of Asia which is located within 5 minutes
drive from the hotel, its Riviera café is affected by the competition. Located in the new Mall are
at least 500 different restaurants catering to various markets.

Other operated departments consisting of business center, laundry and telephone departments
registered a shight decrease in revenue. The drop is mainly due to lower telephone departiment
revenuc as more guests are using their mobile phone instead of hotel phone but this is partially
offset by the higher internet charges.

“QOthers Income” - The bulk of this comes from rental income from PAGCOR and the lease o a
restaurant operator.




Cost of Sales:

Food and beverage cost of sales increase by PhP1.3 million or 2% as against last year. The
increase in food and beverage cost of sales is consistent with the increase in food and beverage
revenue by 2.7% as compared with the previous year.

Gross Profit:
Gross profit is derived after deducting cost of sales from revenue. There is an improvement in
gross profit by 3.2% as compared with year 2005. This is due to higher revenue contribution.

Selling and Operating Expenses:

The detailed breakdown of this line item can be found in Note 18 of the Financial Statements.
The bulk of this expense relates to payroll and related costs and also property operation,
maintenance, energy and conservation (POMEC) expenses, guest supplies and laundry costs.
Payroll cost has increased mainly in the housekeeping department as a result of the increase in
minimum wage during the year. POMEC showed a decrease compared to year 2005 due to an
accounting adjustment at year end for over accruals of energy cost amounting to about PhP3
million.

Administrative and General Expenses:

The detailed breakdown of this line item can be found in Note 19 of the Financial Statements.
The bulk of this expense relates to payroll and related costs for overhead/supporting departments
such as Engineering, Sales and Marketing, Human and Resources and Administrative and
General, Total payroll and related expenses has increased to PhP55 million (2005 : PhP48
million). Payroll cost has increased mainly due to salary adjustment during the year. The other
major expense for this line item is management and incentive fees. This relates to the fees paid to
the operator of the Hotel. The fee has increased to PhP31.8 million (2005 : PhP30.8 million) as a
result of the increase in revenue and gross operating profits (GOP). Management and incentive
fees are based on a percentage of gross revenue and GOP respectively. Credit card commission
has also increased by PhP0.6 million as a result of higher revenue and credit card transactions.

Non-operating income/(expenses):

The Company registered a net other income of PhP19 million (2005 : PhP8.2 million). The
reason for the improvement is due to a foreign exchange gain of PhP1.2 million while the
previous year was a loss of PhP6 million.. Interest income has also increased substantially during
the year of review.

Net Income before tax:

This is the income before tax but after deduction of all expenses. There is an improvement of
PhP18 million tn year 2006 as compared to last year. The favorable variance is due to higher
revenue and improved management of expenses.

Provision for income tax:

Total proviston for income tax for year 2005 is PhP76.6 million (2005 : PhP69.2 million). This
increase in provision is consistent with the improvement in total revenue. Moreover, with
effective from | November 2005, the Internal Revenue increased the corporate income tax rate
from 32% to 35%.




Net Income:
As a result of the significant improvement in revenue and effective cost control, the profit after
tax of the Company showed an increase of PhP10.4 million.

2005 Ikesults of Operations

Year 2005 showed significant improvement in both revenue and NIAT. The Philippines
economy has improved in year 2005 compared with 2004, Tourist arrival to the Philippines has
also registered improvement over the past years. Department of Tourism focus on the South
Korean, Japanese and Chinese markets help to bring in more tourist to the country. All these
positive factors contribute to the significant jump in revenue and NIAT.

Revenue:

Rooms division revenue increased by PhP48.7 million or 18% over the previous year. This
improvement is due to higher occupancy and Average Room Rate (ARR). Occupancy for year
2005 is 74.10% (year 2004: 71.82%) while ARR improved from PhP2,241 to PhP2,580.
Consequently, RevPar increased by PhP302 as against the prior year.

During the year 2005, Philippines hosted the South East Asia (SEA) Games in December which
help to bring in more tourist to Metro Manila. In addition, the World Pyrotechnic Olympic
competition was also held in December and the Hotel was the official hotel for this event. All
these factors with the overall improvement in the world economy help to improve the hotel
business.

Food & beverage (“F&B™) division also showed significant improvement in their performance.
F&B revenue increased from PhP204 million in year 2004 to PhP218 million in the current year
or 6.8% increase. This is achieved through higher food covers of 564,187 (2004: 544,559),
higher average food check of PhP328.94 (2004: PhP321.84). Among ali the F&B outlets, casino
and Riviera restaurant showed the best improvement in results. The Hotel has introduced a new
buffet line in the casino at the beginning of the year which help to increase the daily covers.

Other operated departments consisting of business center, Jaundry and telephone departments
registered a slight decrease in revenue. The drop is mainly due to lower telephone department
revenue as more guests are using their mobile phone instead of hotel phone.

“Others Income” - The bulk of this comes from rental income from PAGCOR and the lease to a
restaurant operator. The improvement is consistent with the increase in rental rate.

Cost of Sales:

Food and beverage cost of sales increase by PhP1.7 million or 2.9% as against last year. The
increase in food and beverape cost of sales is consistent with the increase in food and beverage
revenue by 6% as compared with the previous year.




Gross Profit:

Gross profit is derived after deducting cost of sales from revenue. There is an improvement in
gross profit by PhP69.9 million or 11% as compared with year 2004. This is due to higher
revenue contribution,

Selling and Operating Expenses:

The detailed breakdown of this tine item can be found in Note 16 of the Financial Statements.
The bulk of this expense relates to payroll and related costs and also property operation,
maintenance, energy and conservation (POMEC) expenses.

Energy cost has increased significantly this year due to higher electricity, fuel and diesel costs.
However, total “Selling and Operating Expenses” as a percentage of total revenue has decreased
from 33% in year 2004 to 31% in year 2005,

Administrative and General Expenses:

The detailed breakdown of this line item can be found in Note 17 of the Financial Statements.
The bulk of this expense relates to payroll and related costs for overhead/supporting departments
such as Engineering, Sales and Marketing, Human and Resources and Administrative and
General. Total payroll and related expenses has decreased to PhP48.2 million (2004 : PhP5]
million). The other major expense for this line item is management and incentive fees. This
relates to the fees paid to the operator of the Hotel. The fee has increased to PhP30.8 million
(2004 : PhP24.5 million) as a result of the increase in revenue and gross operating profits (GOP).
Management and incentive fees are based on a percentage of gross revenue and GOP
respectively.

Non-operating income/(expenses):

The Company registered a net other income of PhP8.2 million (2004 : (PhP2.1 million)). The
reason for the improvement is due to lower foreign exchange loss for this year vis-a-vis the prior
year. Moreover, the Company has also a share in the profit of an associated company for this
year instead of a loss in the prior year.

Net Income before tax:

This is the income before tax but after deduction of all expenses. There is an improvement of
PhP63 million in year 2005 as compared to last year. The favorable variance is due to higher
revenue and improved management of expenses.

Provision for income tax:

Total provision for income tax for year 2005 is PhP69.2 million (2004 : PhP44.5 million). This
increase in provision is consistent with the 12% improvement in total revenue. Moreover, with
effective from | November 2005, the Internal Revenue increased the corporate income tax rate
from 32% to 35%.

Nel Income:
As a result of the significant improvement in revenue and effective cost control, the profit after
tax of the Company showed an increase of PhP37.9 million.




2004 Results of Operations

Year 2004 showed a significant improvement in terms of revenue and NIAT, During the year
2004, there were no major world events such as Severe Acute Respiratory Diseases (SARs) that
affected the world tourism business. The Philippines had a peaceful Presidential election in May
2004 and thereafter, business confidence returned to the country. Compared to last year, more
travelers visited the Philippines and the country hosted more business conferences.

Revenue:

Revenue increased by PhP92 million or 19% as compared to last year. The improvement is
shown in all segments of the business. Roomn revenue increased by PhP52 million as compared to
last year. The better result for Room segment is due to higher occupancy of 71% in year 2004 as
against 53% for year 2003. Food & Beverage revenue increased by PhP33 million due to higher
covers and average check. Other operated departments consisting of business center, laundry and
telephone departments also shown an improvement in revenue of PhP1.2 million or 12%. This is
due to the higher room occupancy and improved business environment, which contribute to
higher revenue for this segment. The bulk of this comes from rental income from PAGCOR and
the lease to a restaurant operator. The improvement is consistent with the increase in rental rate.

Cost of Sales:

Food and beverage cost of sales increase by PhP11 million or 23% as against last year. The
increase in food and beverage cost of sales is consistent with the increase in food and beverage
revenue by [9% as compared with the previous year.

Gross Profit:
Gross profit is derived after deducting cost of sales from revenue. There is an improvement in
gross profit by PhP&1 million or 18% as compared with year 2003. This is due to higher revenue
contribution.

Operating Expenses:

The detailed breakdown of this line itemn can be found in Note 16 of the Financial Statements.
Although revenue has increased by PhP92 million as compared to the previous year, operating
expenses only rose by PhP19 million. The bulk of the increase in this expense is due to higher
property, operation, maintenance, energy and conservation costs. Basically, energy cost has gone
up significantly for year 2004 as against 2003.

Non-operating income/(expenses):

For year 2004, the Company registered a net loss of PhP2.1 million as compared to a gain of
PhPI7 million in the previous year. The main reason is because of a realized foreign exchange
loss of PhP18.2 million which arises from the settlement of a foreign currency denominated
liability during the year.

Net Income before tax:

This is the income before tax but after deduction of all expenses. There is an improvement of
PhP43 million in year 2004 as compared to last year. The favorable variance is due to higher
revenue and better cost control.




Provision for income tax:

There is an increase of PhP14 million in this account. The increase is consistent with the higher
profit before tax.

Profit after tax:

As a result of the significant improvement in revenue and effective cost control, the profit after
tax of the Company showed an increase of PhP29 million.

Financial Conditions:

The total assets and liabilities of the Company for the last 3 years are as follows:

YEAR ASSETS - PHP LIABILITIES -
PHP
2006 1,440,846,714 342,619,504
2005 1,475,568,678 337,882,935
2004 1,443,029,234 318,212,585

2006 Financial Conditigns

Total assets for the year 2006 decreased by PhP34.7 million as compared to the previous year.
The main reason for this drop is due to lesser cash and bank balance by PhP58 million relative to
prior year,

Assets:

¢ Cash and cash equivalents: There is a significant drop in cash balance over the same period
of last year as a result of higher payout to shareholders for the share buyback and dividends
during the year. Dividends increased by PhP29 million as compared to the previous year. In
addition, during the year, the hotel also embarked on its room renovation program and the
funds used in this exercise is generated internally.

* Accounts receivables: This balance increased by PhP14 million or 6% over the same period
of last year. This is due to higher revenue vis-a-vis year 2005.

¢ Due from related parties: This balance represents the significant transaction the Company has
with its related parties. There is a significant drop by PhP13 million compared to year 2005
as the related parties have settled their obligation with the Company. The 2 major parties are
Rogo Realty Corporation and CDL Hotels (Phils.) Corp.




Prepayments and other current assets: This balance increase mainly due to higher
prepayments. This is mainly due to advance payment of insurance until May 2007 while in
prior year, there is no such advance payment.

Property and equipment: Fixed assets of the Company increased by PhP8 million. As the
Company has started renovation of its 448 guestrooms in the last quarter of year 2006, it
recognize a portion of the renovation cost to construction-in-progress of PhP27 million.
However, this is offset by the depreciation charges for the year of PhP25 million.

Liabilities:
Total liabilities increased by about PhP4 million as compared to year 2005. The increment is due
to higher accounts payable and accrued expenses, refundable deposits and reserves.

Accounts payable and accrued expenses: This balance increased by PhP6 million or 7%
relative to year 2005. The main reason for this increment is noted in accrued liabilities which
increased by PhP6 million is due to increase in employee benefits and vacation leave
accruals.

Due to related parties: The Company has a management contract with CDL, Hotels (Phils)
Corp under which the latter provides management, technical and administrative services to
the Company in return for a yearly management and incentive fees equivalent to a certain
percentage of gross revenue and of gross operating profit, respectively. There is a decrease of
PhP6.6 million compared to the same period last year in balance due to CDL Hotels (Phils)
Corp as the Company has paid the management and incentive fees for the year.

Refundable deposits: This pertains to deposits given by tenants as security deposits and
deposits given by guests who want to hold functions in the hotel. The increase in this balance
is consistent with the higher revenue.

Other current liabilities: The bulk of this balance is for output tax payable. There is an
increase of P10 million which is consistent with the increase in total revenue of the hotel.

Reserves: Reserves pertain to a portion of the service charge set up by the Company to offset
the cost of replacing certain operating equipment of the hotel such as lost, broken or damaged
chinaware, glassware and flatware. The increase is consistent with the higher revenue during
the year.

2005 Financial Conditions

Total assets for the year 2006 increased by about PhP32.5 million as compared to the prior year,
The mamn reason is due to higher cash balance, accounts receivables and advances to related
parties.




Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents: Cash balance increased significantly during the year as there was
a significant turn around in the business and revenue increased by 12%. Cash generated from
operating activities for year under review is PhP208.6 million (2004 : PhP176.3 million) or
18% increment,

Accounts receivables: The increment is about 9% over the previous year. This is due to
improvement in rooms and food and beverage (F&B) business by 13% vis-a-vis year 2004.

Advances to related parties: There is an increase of PhP6.3 million as compared to last year.
This is due to an advance to a related company, CDL Hotels (Phils) Corp. of PhP7.4 million
which has not been repaid as at year end.

Deferred Income Tax Assets: This item comprised of deferred tax for provision for
retirement, deferred rental income and provision for bad debts. As compared against the
previous year, there is an increase of 24%. The increment is due to higher provision for
retirement.

Property and equipment: There is a drop of PhP10.2 million in this balance as compared to
last year. The decrease is due to depreciation charges for the year and offset by the addition
of fixed assets amounting to PhP16.6 million.

Liabilities:
Total liabilities increased by about PhP19 million as compared to year 2004. The increment is
due to higher income tax payable, other liabilities and reserves.

Accounts payable and accrued expenses: There is a drop of PhP5.7 million as compared to
year 2004. The main reason for this is the decrease in accrued expenses by PhP5 million.
During the year 2005, the Company reversed some of the over-accrual such as bonus and
insurance and this resulted in the drop in balance.

Due to related parties: There is an increase of PhP3.3 million because the Company has not
paid its related company, the management and incentive due of PhP9.6 million.

Income tax payable: There is a significant increment in this balance from PhP14.5 million to
PhP27.9 million. The reason is a combination of higher profit and also an increase in
corporate income tax rate to 35% from 32% during the year,

Refundable deposits: This balance includes security deposits from tenants and also deposits
from guests who want to hold a banquet function in the hotel. There is a decrease of PhP3
million in deposit from guests who want to hold banquet in the hotel for this vear. This
decrease is due to clearing up of some expired deposits.

Other liabilities: The bulk of this balance is VAT payable. This balance increase by about
PhP9 million from the previous year.




Reserves: Reserves pertain to a portion of the service charge set up by the Company to offset
the cost of replacing certain operating equipment of the hotel such as lost, broken or damaged
chinaware, glassware and flatware. The increase is consistent with the increase in hotel
revenue.

2004 Financial Conditions

Total assets for the year 2004 increased by about PhP69 million as compared to last year. The
main reason is due to the increase in cash balance by about PhP117 million and increase in
Deposit on Lease Contract by PhP20 million. However, the increase was offset by the decrease
in Investment in Stock of Associated Company and other advances by PhP62 million.

Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents: Cash balance increased significantly during the year as there was
no share buyback exercise conducted during the year and there was also no major capital
expenditure.

Receivables — trade: This balance increased by about 6.8% as compared to last year. The
main reason for the increase is due to the improvement in business from Rooms and Food
and Beverage.

Interest: Interest receivable increased by PhP0.875 million or 9% as compared to last year.
This balance arises from interest receivables from financial institutions for fixed deposits.
The increase is due to higher fixed deposit balance placed with financial institutions.

Advances to officers and employees: This account represents amount advanced to employees
or officers of the Company. The balance is zero as at 31 December 2004 as compared to last
year of PhP527,936. This is due to the fact that all advances to this group have been
liquidated as at end of the year.

Advances to suppliers and contractors: The significant increase in this account is due to the
fact that as at 31 December 2004, the Company has made an advance to a contractor for the
installation of carpet for certain areas in the hotel. As at end of the year, the contractor has
not completed the installation of the carpet and the amount is outstanding.

Advances to related company: This balance showed a zero amount as at end of year 2004 as
compared to PhP2.258 million in the previous year. The reason for the variance is due to
settlement by the related company for the outstanding amount.

Advances to immediate holding company: The balance increased by 100% to PhP 210,157 as
the Company made an advance for an outstanding invoice for the immediate holding
company. This balance was settled by the first quarter of year 2005.

Other Receivables: This balance decreased by PhP1.635 million or 27% as against last year.
This account basically consists of receivables due from tenants. The balance was high for




years 2003 as some of the tenants have not paid their receivables at year-end. For year ended
2004, the tenants have settled their obligations.

Inventories: Inventories increased by PhP2.782 million or 33.5% as compared to last year.
The main rattonale for the increase is due to higher revenue for this year. With an improved
business environment, the Hotel has to increase its stock so as to avoid loss of business due
to lack of stock. The increase is consistent with the improved in total revenue.

Deferred tax assets: The detailed breakdown of this balance can be found in Note 5 of the
Financial Statements. Basically, the increased is due to higher provision for retirement and
deferred rental.

Prepayment: This balance is mainly for expenses such as insurance paid in advance by the
Company and amortized throughout the year. This year the balance increased by about
PhP660,510 mainly due to higher insurance premium.

Other Current Assets: The detailed breakdown of this balance can be found in Note 6 of the
Financial Statements. The reason for the increase is due to higher input tax, which
corresponds to higher purchases for the year.

Investment in Stock of Associated Company and other Advances: The detailed of this
balance can be found in Note 7 of the Financial Statements, The significant decrease in this
balance by PhP62 million is mainly due to repayment of the outstanding advances by the
associated company. The Company agreed to convert PhP20 million of the outstanding
advances as additional deposit for lease contract and PhP10,678,565 as advance rental to be
applied after 5 years. The remaining balance of the advances were offset against amount
owing by the Company to the associated company.

Deposit on Lease Contract: The increase of PhP20 million is due to the conversion of
outstanding advances to deposit as discussed above.

Other assets: The detailed of this balance can be found in Note 10 of the Financial
Statements. The reason for the significant variance is due to the recognition of advance rental
paid to the associated company to be applied in 5 years time.

Liabilities:
Total liabilities decreased by about PhP24 million as compared to year 2003. The drop is due to
settlement of inter-company balances and decrease in accrued expenses.

Accounts payable and accrued expenses: The detailed breakdown of this account can be
found in Note || of the Financial Statements. As compared to last year, there is a decrease of
PhP4.7 million or 5.3%. The variance is mainly due to an increase in Accounts Payable
(trade) which is a result of higher purchases for the year due to improved in business. The
increase in Accounts Payable (trade) is offset by a drop in Accrued Expenses (real property
tax) by PhP17.5 million. The details of this decrease in accrual for real property tax can be
found in Note 22 of the Financial Statements.




¢ Due to immediate holding company: There is a decrease of PhP10.3 million as compared to
last year. The reason is because the Company has paid the immediate company for the
outstanding liability during the year.

e Due to related companies (net): There is an increase of PhP6.29 million as compared to the
previous year. The main reason for this variance is due to the fact that the Company has not
settled its obligation with the related companies during year 2004,

* Income tax payable: This balance increased by PhP6.8 million or 88% as compared with the
previous year. The main justification for the significant jump is the higher profit before tax
which increased by PhP43 million as compared to year 2003. As such, income tax payable
also increased.

s Rental payable: This represents outstanding rent payable to an associated company for the
lease of the hotel site and a townhouse. There is a significant drop of PhP38.4 million
compared to last year as the rental was settled with the associated company during the year.

¢ Other liabilities: There is an increase of PhP14 million or 9% as compared with the same
period last year. The builk of the variance is due to increase in VAT payable to BIR which is
consistent with the increase in purchases for the year.

ITEM 7. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Please see attachments.

ITEM 8. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON
ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

There are no changes and/or disagreements with Accountants on any matter relating to
accounting principles or practices, financial disclosures, auditing scope and procedure during the
last two fiscal vears.




PART Il - CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

ITEM 9. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND SIGNIFICANT EMPLOYEES

OF THE REGISTRANT
NAME OFFICE CITIZENSHIP FAMILY AGE
RELATION
*)
Wong Hong Ren Chairman & President Singaporean No relation 55
Bryan Cockrell Director American No relation 59
Eddie C. T. Lau Director Chinese No relation 51
Michele Dee Santos Director Filipino No relation 39
Angelito Imperio Director Filipino No relation 67
Mia Gentugaya Independent Director Filipino No relation 55
Eddie Yeo Ban Heng Director /  General Malaysian No relation 59
Manager of  The
Heritage Hotel Manila
Yam Kit Sung General Manager of the Singaporean No relation 36
Company
Ho Mei Mei Assistant General Singaporean No relation 58
Manager of  The
Heritage Hotel Manila
Chua Yew Hock Executive Chef Singaporean No relation 46
Cornelio Abuda Corporate  Secretary Filipino No relation 43
and Compliance
Officer
Christopher L. Lim Asst. Corporate Filipino Mo relation 49
Secretary
Arlene De Guzman Treasurer Filipino No relation 46

(*) Up to the fourth civil degree either by consanguinity or affinity.

Under Article 1V, Section 2 of the By-Laws of the Company, the directors shall hold office for
one year and until their successors have qualified and are duly elected.

None of the directors and executive officers are related within the 4™ civil degree of

consanguinity or affinity.

None of the following events occurred during the past five years that are material to an
evaluation of the ability or integrity of any director, person nominated to become a director,
executive officer, promoter or control person of the registrant:

a) Any bankruptcy petition filed by or against any business of which such person was a general
partner or executive officer either at the time of the bankruptcy or within two year prior to

that time;




b) Conviction by final judgment in a criminal proceeding;

¢) Being subject to any order, judgment or decree limiting such person’s involvement in any
type of business, securities, commodities or banking activities; and

d) Being found by domestic or foreign court of competent jurisdiction in a civil action to have
violated any securities or commodities law.

Business Expericnce:

WONG HONG REN
CHAIRMAN & PRESIDENT

Mr. Wong Hong Ren was first elected Director and Chairman of the Board of Directors in May
1996. Since 1988 he has held the position of Group Investment Manager of Hong Leong
Management Services Pte. Ltd.. Before joining the Hong Leong Group in 1988, he was the
Director and General Manager of Investment and Property of Haw Par Brothers International
Ltd. and First Capital Corporation where he was actively involved in the management of the
companies’ funds in international equities.

BRYAN K. COCKRELL
DIRECTOR

Mr. Bryan Cockrell, an American national has been a Director of the Company since May 1997,
The Pathfinder Group has interests in tourism-related ventures, properties and other joint
ventures undertakings. Before his stint in the Philippines, he held numercus positions in
Singapore, Indonesia and Saudi Arabia.

ANGELITO C. IMPERIO
DIRECTOR

Atty. Imperio has been a Director of the Company since August 1992 and had served as
independent Director for three terms from 2001 to 2004. He completed his legal education at the
University of the Philippines (L.L.B.) and was admitted to the bar in 1966. He was a senior
partner of the law firm SyCip Salazar Hernandez & Gatmaitan until his retirement in October
2004. He is now acting as of counsel to the same law firm. He also sits on the Board of Directors
of various companies.

MIA G. GENTUGAYA
INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

Atty. Gentugaya is a senior partner of SyCip Salazar Hernandez & Gatmaitan. She has been a
Director of the Company since August 1992 and served as independent director since 2005. She
was admitted to the Philippine Bar in 1978 after completing her legal education at the University
of the Philippines (LL.B.). Atty. Gentugaya practices corporate and commercial law, and has




been named by Global Chambers and International Financial Law Review as one of the world’s
leading lawyers in project finance and commercial law. She is a member of the International Bar
Association, the Philippine Bar Association, the Maritime Law Association of the Philippines
(charter member; Trustee, 1988 — 1989) and the Makati Business Club. She also serves in the
Board of Directors of various companies.

MICHELE DEE-SANTOS
DIRECTOR (Appointed on 7 February 2006)

Ms, Santos was appointed on 7 February 2006. She obtained a B.A. International Business from
Marymount College, New York, U.S.A. She started her career as a Staff Operations Manager of
American Express Bank in New York City. She is currently the Executive Vice President of AY
Foundation, President of Sandee Unlimited Inc., Chairperson and President of Luis Miguel
Foods, Inc., Treasurer of Mico Equities, Inc. and Trustee of Yuchengeco Museum, Inc. Ms. Dee-
Santos also sits on the Board of Malayan Insurance Co., Bankers Assurance Corporation., First
Nationwide Assurance Corporation, Pan Malayan Express Inc. and Aequitas Holdings, Inc. She
is not a director of any other reporting company.

EDDIE YEO
DIRECTOR & GENERAL MANAGER OF THE HERITAGE

Mr. Eddie Yeo is appointed as a Director and General Manager of The Heritage Hotel Manila on
13 January 2005. Prior to his current position, he was the General Manager of Copthorne Kings
Hotel Singapore from January 1999 to 2004. He has more than 30 years experience in managing
and developing hotel projects in Singapore, Malaysia, Thailand, Australia, USA and Vietnam.
He holds a Master of Business Administration from the University of South Australia, is a
Certified Hotel Administrator (CHA) from the Educational Institute of the American Hotel &
Motel Association, Michigan, USA and a Member of the Chartered Management Institute, UK.

EDDIE C.T. LAU
DIRECTOR

Mr. Eddie Lau, a Chinese and was appointed Director of the Company since 17 January 2005.
He obtained his MBA from the University of Durham, UK. He is a fellow member of both the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Chartered [nstitute of Certified
Accountants in UK. Mr. Lau is also an associate member of the Chartered Institute of Bankers in
UK. He has more than 25 years experience in the financial industry and has extensive practical
exposures tn financial control, business planning and operational management. He had worked
with Hang Seng Bank, Standard Chartered Bank, Bank Austria and The Long-Term Credit Bank
of Japan. For the past twelve years, he was the Financial Controller of those banks that he
worked with. Mr. Lau had also served in the Hong Kong Monetary Authority as a Bank
Examiner to monitor the banks’ compliance in Hong Kong. Currently, Mr. Lau is the Senior
Vice President — Head of Group Finance of Asia Financial Holdings group. He joined Asia
Financial Holdings group since July 2000.




YAM KIT SUNG
GENERAL MANAGER & VICE PRESIDENT OF FINANCE OF GRAND PLAZA HOTEL
CORPORATION

Mr. Yam obtained his Bachelor of Accountancy (Honors) degree from Nanyang Technological
University in Singapore. Upon graduation, he joined the international accounting firm, Price
Waterhouse based in Singapore as an auditor and later joined CDL Hotels International Limited
as an internal auditor. In 1996, he joined The Heritage Hotel Manila as an Operations Analyst
and was appointed General Manager of the Company in April 2000. In June 2006, Mr. Yam was
appointed Vice President Finance for HLG Enterprise Limited formerly known as LKN
Primefield Limited, a company listed on the Singapore Stock Exchange. He also sits on the
Board of several companies in the HLG Enterprise Limited group.

CORNELIO ABUDA
CORPORATE SECRETARY AND COMPLIANCE OFFICER

Mr. Cornelio B. Abuda assumed the position of Corporate Secretary and Compliance Officer of
the Company on | July 2006. Mr. Abuda received his Bachelor of Laws degree from the
University of the Philippines College of Law in 1990. He was admiltted into the Philippine bar in
1991, and has been practicing law since then. He is a Partner of Quisumbing Torres Law Office,
a member firm of Baker & McKenzie International. As a practicing lawyer, he has acted as a
corporate secretary of various business concerns, among which are Nittan Capital Finance Inc.
He is not a director of any reporting company




ITEM 10. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

EXECUTIVE AND DIRECTORS COMPENSATION

NAME POSITION YEAR | SALARY BONUS | OTHERS/
DIRECTO
R
FEES
Wong Hong Ren Chairman & 2006
President
Eddie Yeo Ban Heng | General Manager of | 2006
Hotel
Yam Kit Sung General Manager 2006
Ho Mei Mei AGM of Hotel 2006
Chua Yew Hock Exe. Chef 2006
Total 2006 120,419,804 | 4,023,327 | 581,779
Directors 2006 3,024,000
All officers &
Directors as a group 2006 | 20,419,804 | 4,023,327 | 3,605,779

The estimated total compensation for officers and directors in year 2007 is as follows:

Salary — PhP21 million

Bonus — PhP4 million

Other Fees - PhP4 million.

FOR THE LAST 2 FINANCIAL YEARS - 2005 & 2004

NAME POSITION YEAR | SALARY BONUS OTHERS/
DIRECTO
R
FEES
Wong Hong Ren Chairman & 2005
President
Eddie Yeo Ban Heng | General Manager of | 2005
Hotel
Yam Kit Sung General Manager 2005
Ho Mei Mei AGM of Hotel 2005
Chua Yew Hock Exe. Chef 2005
Total 2005 121.356,797 | 3,386,708 |905,412
Directors 2005 2,772,047
All officers &
Directors as a group 2005 | 21,356,797 | 3,386,708 | 3,677,457




NAME PQOSITION YEAR | SALARY BONUS OTHERS/
DIRECTOR
FEES
Wong Hong Ren Chairman & 2004
President
Peter Kan General Manager | 2004
of Hotel
Yam Kit Sunpg General Manager 2004
Ho Mei Mei AGM of Hotel 2004
Alex Chew Exe. Chef 2004
Total 2004 20,438,072 | 3,480,626 1,429,014
Directors 2004 1,226,190
All officers &
Directors as a group 2004 20,438,072 | 3,480,626 2,655,204

The compensations of the directors are one-time directors’ fees and do not involve any other
form of remuneration. There are no arrangements, such as consulting contracts, pursuant to
which any director of the Company was compensated, or is to be compensated, directly or
indirectly, during the Company’s last completed fiscal year, and the ensuing year, for any service
provided as director.

Except for the Executive Chef, Mr. Chua Yew Hock, all the key officers are on a two-year
employment contract renewable upon mutual agreement. Mr. Chua Yew Hock is on a one-year
contract.

Therc are no agreements that require, if any such executive officers resign or are terminated by

the Company, or if there is a change in controt of the Company, the executive officers of the
Company to be compensated a total amount exceeding PhP2,500,000.

ITEM 11. SECURITY AND OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND
MANAGEMENT
Security Ownership of Management

The following table shows the shareholding beneficially held by the officers of the Company as
at 31 December 2006,

TITLE OF | NAME OF BENEFICIAL [ AMOUNT & NATURE | PERCENT OF
CLASS OWNER / (CITIZENSHIP) | OF BENEFICIAL | CLASS
OWNERSHIP

Common shares | Yam Kit Sung

(Singaporean)

2,999 shares beneficial Less than 1%

Common shares | Eddie Yeo Ban Heng | share beneficial Less than 1%

{Malaysian)




The following entitles are directly or indirectly the beneficial owners of more than 5% of the
Company’s voting shares (commony) as of 31 December 2006.

S/N NAME OF CITIZENSHIP | NO.OF % OF

SHAREHOLDER SHARES SHAREHOLDING
(EXCLUSIVE OF

TREASURY SHARES)

] The Philippine Fund Bermuda 39,249,343' 53.49%
Limited

2 Zatrio Pte. Ltd. Singapore 24,280,450 33..09%

3 RCBC Trust & Filipino 7,992,944° 10.89%

Investment

ITEM 12. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

Please see Note 15 of the audited financial statements for details.

ITEM 13. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Under the Manual of Corporate Governance of the Company, the Compliance Officer is
responsible for monitoring compliance with the provisions and requirements, as well as
violations of the Manual of Corporate Governance and issues a Certification regarding the level
of compliance of the Company.

The Company complies with regulations and issuances issued by government authorities
pertaining to corporate governance.

'The Philippine Fund Limited is owned by:

Shareholder's Name Class of Shares Owned % Held
I.  Hong Leong Hotels Pte. Ltd.
P.O. Box 309 Grand Cayman Ordinary 60%

British West Indies, Cayman Islands

2. Pacific Far East (PFE) Holdings Corporation

(formerly Istethmar International Corporation)

Suite 2703-09, 27FIr, Jardine House Ordinary 20%
I Connaught Place, Central, Hong Kong

3. Robina Manila House Limiled
8/F Bangkok Bank Building Ordinary 20%
28 Des Voeux Road, Central Hong Kong

? The registered address of RCBC Trust & [nvestment Division is 333 Sen. Gil J. Puyat Ave. Makati City.




Section 7.2 of the Manual of Corporate Governance of the Company provides that the Manual
shall be reviewed quarterly unless the board of directors provides otherwise, Moreover, the
Audit Committee of the Company reports regularly to the board of directors its quarterly review
of the financial performance of the Company.

ITEM 14. EXHIBITS AND REPORTS ON SEC FORM 17-C

Exhibits

None

Reports on SEC Form 17-C

The following events were reported in SEC Form 17-C during the period January 2006 to
December 2006:

Date of SEC Form 17-C Subject Disclosed

9 January 2006 ¢ Submission of certificate of compliance of manual on corporate
governance.

9 January 2006 ¢ Submission of attendance report of members of the board of
directors.

7 February 2006 * Resignation of Guia Margarita Santos-Qua and her replacement

by Michele Dee-Santos as a member of the board of directors,
audit committee and nomination committee.

15 May 2006 * Buyback of shares of GPHC.

s Election of directors, officers and members of the Nomination
committee, audit committee and remuneration commiftee.

* Approval by shareholders of the amendment of the By-laws of
GPHC to incorporate the rules and procedure to nominate and
select the independent director.

8 June 2006 * Approval by the SEC of the amendment of the By-laws of GPHC
to incorporate the rules and procedure to nominate and select the
independent dircctor,

21 June 2006 * Report on the completion of the share buyback of GPHC.

30 June 2006 * Resignation of Natividad Kwan as corporate secretary and
compliance officer of GPHC and her replacement by Cornelio
Abuda.

5 July 2006 * Report on the Agreement to renew the management agreement
between GPHC and CDL Hotels (Phils) Corp.

20 September 2006 * Report on the renewal of contract of lease between GPHC and
PAGCOR.

13 October 2006 * Report on the renovation work of The Heritage Hotel Manila.

23 October 2006 s Declaration of cash dividend.




SIGNATURES

Pursuant o the requirements of Section 17 of the Securities Regulatlon Code and Section 141 of 1
the. Corporation Code, this repott is signed on behalf of the issuer by the undersigned, thereunto ;

duly authorized, in the City of Singapore o5 Feb 2007, [

By: \,J |
"[‘" — [

Wong Hong Ren

Chairman & President

GEEBFQI—M&HEgEI‘f
Vice-President-Finanee

Comslio-Abuda
Corparate-Seeretary-

SUBSCRIBED AND .SWORN to before me this _Sth day of February2007__

affiani(g) exhibiting to me lhe‘;;-Gemmum&y#aﬁ-Gemﬁeatesfpasspnnm as follows:
Names CTC/Passport No. Date of Issue Place of Issue
Wong Hong Ren 50016593Z 9-10-2002 Singapore

3%l

7 Nolary Publifc

Doc. No.
Page No.
Book No.

Series of 2007. b
I Wiison Yip
- . P 20060507




SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 17 of the Securities Regulation Code.and Section 141 of
the Corporation Code, this report is signed on behalf of the issuer by the undersigned, thereunto
duly authorized, in the City of Pasay, Phlhppme B |- ebfipry, 2007.

By:

Yari) Kit Sung
General Manager/
Vice President Finance

Gomelio-Abuda
Gerperate-Secretary

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before mel i3 1 3 2007 February 2007 affiant(s)
exhibiting to me his Community Tax Certificates/Passports, as follows:

Names CTC/Passport No. Date of Issuc Place of Issue
Yam Kit Sung 10959377 February 24, 2006 Pasay City

<

TTY CARLIS PRARMENTy

y I ’l 16

f”f-_ DL:__ YU oy
Doc. No. “2'?7 RYRNLGSE o0 19820y o
Page No. q B N0ESZ; 5", Fig-Q7 PRSAY ity
Book No, / ROLL N0, IDREN

Series of 2007.




SIGNATURES

Pursuant to-the requireménts of Section 17 of the Securities Regiilation Code ind Section’ 141. of
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Names CTC/Passport No, Date of Issue Place of Issue
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GRAND PLAZA HOTEL CORPORATION

1 February 2007

Statement of Management’s Responsibility For Financial Statements

SEGCURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC Bulldmg. EDSA Greenhills
City of Mandaluyong

The management of GRAND PLAZA ‘HOTEL CORPORATION i responsible- for
all information and representations contained in the financial statements as of and for
the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004. The financial statements have been
prepared in conformity with generally accepted accouriting:principles in the Philippines
dnd reflect amounts that are based on the best estimates and informed judgment: of
management with an appropriate consideration to materiality.

In this regard, tnanagement maintains a systemi of accounting and reporting which

provides for the necessary internal controls to ensure that transactions are properly

. authorized and recorded, assets are safeguarded against unauthorized use or disposition

" and liabilities are recognized. The management likewise discloses to the Company’s

-audit.committee and to its external auditor: (i) all significant deficiencies in the design

or operation of internal controls that could adversely affect its ability to record, process,

and report financial data; (ji) material weaknesses in the internal controls; and (jii) any

fraud that involves management or other employees who exercise significant roles in
internal controls.

The Board of Directors reviews the financial statements before such statements are
approved and submitted to the stockholders of the Company.

Laya Mananghaya & Co., the independent auditors appointed by the stockholders, has
audited the financial statements of the Company in accordance with generally accepted
auditing standards in the Philippines and has expressed its opinion on the fairness of
presentation upon completion of such audit, in its report to the Board of Directors and
Stockholders.

10th Floor, The Heritage Hetel Manila, Roxas Bivd. cor. EDSA Ext., Pasay Cily
Telephone No 8548838 « Facsimile No, 8548825
AMEMBER OF THE HONG LEONG GROUP SINGAPORE
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Grand Plaza Hotel Corporation

10" Floor, The Heritage Hotel Manila
EDSA conier Roxas Boulevard

Pasay City

We have audited the accompariying financial statements of Grand Plaza Hotel Corporation,
which comprise the balance sheets as at December 31, 2006 and 2005, aiid the statements of
revenues and éxpenses, statements of changes in stockholders® equity and statements of cash
flows for each of the years in the three year period ended December 31, 2006, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Management’s Responsibility for the Fingncial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in'accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes:
designing, implementing and maintaining intérnal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud-or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. An
audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence abotit the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements, The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers intemal control retevant to
the enlity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
pmced_u‘_r%s ‘thmtare appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
“\opiaitn on the effsctiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
._‘F_:épn’:‘qp“‘l'_igté:ﬂcss‘ql’ ageounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
= by tj‘z;ang'gefméljt, zi:.s'-.a-cll as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
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Optriion

In our opinior, the financial statements present fairly, inall aterial réspects, ‘{he financial
position of Grand Plaza Hotel Corporation as of Deceniber 31, 2006 and 2005, and-of its

financial performance and its cash flows for each of the years in the three year period ended
December 31, 2006 in accordarice with Philippine Financial Reporting Stanidards.

MANABAT SANAGUSTIN & CO.

/ —_— A e~ (',

EMERITA H. ESCUETA

Partner

CPA License No. 0049037

SEC Accreditation No. 0022-AR-1

Tax [dentification No. 123-046-982

BIR Accreditation No. 08-001987-2-2004
13sued July 14, 2004; Valid until July 13, 2007

PTR No. 0325107 ]
Issued Januvary 18, 2007 at Makati City

February 15, 2007
Maksti City, Metro Manila
Philippines

HAIRVISIIRET




PRC-BOA Registration Na. 0003
SEC Accreditation No. 0004-FR-1
BSP Accredited

REPFORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Grand Plaza Hotel Corperation

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Grand Plaza Hotel Corporation,
which comprise the balance sheets as at December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the statements of
revenues and expenses, statements of changes in stockholders’ equity and statements of cash
flows for each of the years in the three year period ended December 31, 2006, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards. This responsibility includes:
designing, implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Audditors ' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing. Those standards
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. An
audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit atso includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.




Imi

hcigs

Opinion

In our opinien, the financial statements preseit fairly, in-all material respects, the financial
position of Grand Plaza Hotel Corporation as of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and of its
financial performance and its cash flows for each of the years in the three year period ended
December 31, 2006 ih accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards.
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Philippines




GRAND PLAZA HOTEL CORPORATION

BALANCE SHEETS
December 31
2006 2005
ASSETS

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 4) P237,842,702 P295,549,341
Receivables - net (Notes 5 and 15) 220,587,591 206,430,172
Due from related parties (Note 15) 1,012,526 14,083,253
Inventories (Note 6) 7,624,150 8,975,281
Prepayments and other current assets (Note 7) 17,577,727 4,739,094
Total Current Assets 484,644,696 529,777,141
Deferred Income Tax (Note 8) 10,474,579 8,972,145
Investment in an Associate (Note 9) 44,708,786 44,171,976
Loan Receivable (Notes 10, 15 and 26) 15,500,000 15,500,000
Property and Equipment - net (Note | 1) 787,658,183 779,968,066
Other Assets (Notes 12, 15 and 24) 94,807,355 64,805,355

P1,437,793,599 P1,473,194,683

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Current Liabilities

Accounts payable and accrued expenses (Notes |13 and 23) P33,608,032 P77,714,008
Income tax payable 24,074,549 27,974,594
Due to related parties (Notes 15 and 24) 4,267,811 12,749,709
Refundable deposits (Note 24} 27,389,434 25,859,073
Other current liabilities (Notes 14 and 16) 200,226,563 191,211,538

Total Current Liabilities 339,566,389 335,508,922
Stockholders’ Equity 1,098,227,210  1,137,685,761

P1,437,793,5%9 P1,473,194,683

See Notes to Financial Stetemenis.




GRAND PLAZA HOTEL CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES

Years Ended December 31

2006 2005 2004
REVENUES
Rooms P329,097,179 P312,635,020  P263,894,829
Food and beverage 224,958,055 218,824,181 204,833,416
Other operating departments 8,734,803 10,548,146 11,713,420
Others (Note 24} 107,997,916 108,750,462 99,137,458
670,787,953 650,797,809 579,579,123
COST OF SALES (Note 17)
Food and beverage 61,520,377 60,219,973 58,509,268
Other operating departments 3,932,907 4,277,682 4,666,236
65,453,284 64,497,655 63,175,504
GROSS PROFIT 605,334,669 586,300,154 516,403,619
SELLING AND OPERATING
EXPENSES (Note 18) 202,283,913 203,624,372 192,041,852
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
{Note 19) 187,867,771 174,530,008 168,475,144
390,151,684 378,154,380 360,516,996
NET OPERATING INCOME 215,182,985 208,145,774 155,886,623
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES)
Interest income 17,130,531 13,211,688 12,971,326
Foreign exchange gain (loss) 1,222,152 (6,090,964) (13,750,619)
Equity in net income (loss) of an
associate (Note 9) 536,810 540,280 (1,415,640)
Dividend income 67,705 91,827 25,050
Gain on disposal of property
and equipment 48,671 476,600 -
19,005,869 8,229,431 (2,169,883)
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 234,188,854 216,375,205 153,716,740
PROVISION FOR (BENEFIT
FROM) INCOME TAX (Note 8)
Current 78,096,384 70,988,812 50,143,329
Deferred (1,502,434) (1,782,772) (5,636,432)
76,593,950 69,206,040 44,506,897
NET INCOME P157,594,904 P147,169,165 P109,209,843
Basic Earnings Per Share (Note 22) P2.15 I’1.93 P1.39
Diluted Earnings Per Share (Note 22) P2.15 P1.93 P1.39

Seve Notes ro Financial Statements,




GRAND PLAZA HOTEL CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

Years Ended December 31

2006 2005 2004
CAPITAL STOCK
Common stock - P10 par value
Authorized - 115,000,000 shares
Issued - 87,318,270 shares P873,182,700 P873,182,700 P873,182,700
ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL 14,657,517 14,657,517 14,657,517
RETAINED EARNINGS
Appropriated
Balance at beginning of year 551,388,370 439,975,320 439,975,320
Additions during the year (Note 235) 145,690,100 111,413,050 -
Balance at end of year 697,078,470 551,388,370 439,975,320
Unappropriated
Balance at beginning of year 249,845,544 236,976,432 143,470,243
Appropriation during the year (Note 25) (145,690,100) {111,413,050) -
Net income for the year 157,594,904 147,169,165 109,209,843
Dividends (Note 21) (51,363,345) (22,887,003) (15,703,654}
Balance at end of year 210,387,003 249,845,544 236,976,432
907,465,473 801,233,914 676,951,752
TREASURY STOCK, at cost -
13,942,062 shares, 11,028,261 shares
and 8,800,000 shares in 2006, 2005
and 2004, respectively {Note 20)
Balance at beginning of year (551,388,370)  (439,975,320) (439,975,320)
Acquisition of treasury stock (Note 25) (145,690,100)  (£11,413,050) -
Balance at end of year (697,078,470)  (551,388,370) (439,975,320}

Pr1,098,227,210 P1,137,685,761

P1,124,816,649

See Nedes o Financial Statements.,




GRAND PLAZA HOTEL CORPORATION

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

2006 2005 2004
CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Income before income tax P234,188,854 P216,375,205 P153,716,740
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 25,637,134 26,878,023 39,643,967
Equity in net loss (income) of an
associate (536,810) (540,280) 1,415,640
Provision for (reversal of) doubtful
accounts (44,504) 165,014 -
Provision for retirement 4,470,059 2,986,418 4,479,627
Interest income (17,130,531) (13,211,688) {12,971,326)
Dividend income (67,705) {91,827) {25,050)
Operating income before working
capital changes 246,516,497 232,560,865 186,259,598
Decrease (increase) in:
Receivables (14,152,378) (14,910,969} 25,817,888
[nventories 1,351,131 (274,562) (2,782,327)
Prepayments and other current
assets (23,153,778) {(8,785,782) {1,307,230)
Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable and accrued
expenses 1,423,965 (8,677,841) (5,190,164)
Due to related parties (8,483,465) 4,079,148 (51,954,856)
Refundable deposits 1,530,361 (3,063,536) 1,140,709
Other current liabilities 9,015,025 12,616,689 14,734,496
Cash generated from operations 214,047,358 213,544,012 162,718,114
Income taxes paid (71,681,294) (48,517,887} (43,332,206)
Interest received 17,169,994 12,225,242 6,297,136
Dividend received 67,705 91,827 25,050
Net cash provided by operating
activities 159,603,763 177,343,194 125,708,094
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
Additions to property and equipment (33,327,251) (16,670,435) (2,097,919)
Decrease (increase) in other assets (2,000) 1,071,786 (10,678,565)
Net cash used in investing activities (33,329,251) (15,598,649) (12,776,484)

Ferward




Years Ended December 31

2006 2005 2004

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING

ACTIVITIES
Decrease (increase) in due from related

parties P13,070,727 (P6,373,069) P27,926,261
Increase (decrease} in due to related

parties 1,567 (1,706,903) 11,691,194
Dividends paid (51,363,345) (22,887,003) (15,699,214)
Acquisition of treasury stock (145,690,100) {111,413,050) -
Deposit on lease contract - - (20,000,000)
Net cash provided by (used in)

financing activities (183,981,151) (142,380,025) 3,918,241
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (57,706,639) 19,364,520 116,849,851
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 295,549,341 276,184 821 159,334,970
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AT END OF YEAR P237,842,702 P265,549,341 P276,184,821

See Notes 1o Financial Statements.,




GRAND PLAZA HOTEL CORPORATION
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization and Business

Grand Plaza Hotel Corporation (“the Company™) was registered with the Philippine
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on August 9, 1989 primarily to own, lease
or maniage one or more hotels, inns or resorts, all adjuncts and accessories thereto, and all
other tourist-oriented businesses as may be necessary in connection therewith.

The Company owns and operates The Heritage Hote] (“the Hotel™), a deluxe class hotel
that offers 448 rooms and facilities and amenities such as restaurants, function halls, and
a coffee shop. The Company’s principal office is located at the 10® Floor, The Heritage
Hotel, EDSA corner Roxas Boulevard, Pasay City, Metro Manila, Philippines.

2. Basis of Preparation

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the Philippines, as set forth in Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards (PFRSs).

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on February 15, 2007.

Basis of Measurement
The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis and presented in
Philippine Peso, which is the Company’s functional currency.

Use of Estimates and Judgments

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and in
any future periods affected.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

The accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all periods
presented in these financial statements.

Adoption of New Standards, Amendments to Standards and [nterpretations

The Financial Reporting Standards Council, or FRSC, (the successor body to the
Accounting Standards Council) approved the adoption as part of PFRSs a number of new
standards, amendments to standards, and interpretations issued by the [nternational
Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee {(IFRIC).




New Standard, Amendments to Standards and Interpretations Adopted in 2006
Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the following new standards,
amendments to standards and interpretations:

»  Amendment to PAS 19, Employee Benefits - Actuarial Gains and Losses, Group
Plans and Disclosures provides an option for recognizing actuarial gains and losses
in full in the period in which they occur, outside profit or loss. The amendment also
requires entities to give additional disclosures,

s IFRIC 4, Determining Whether an Arrangement Containg a Lease provides guidance
for determining whether an arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
related transactions, that does not take the legal form of a lease but conveys a right to
us¢ an asset in return for a payment or series of payments, is or contains, a lease that
should be accounted for in accordance with PAS 17, Leases.

The adoption of the above standards, amendments to standards and interpretations did not
have a material effect on the Company’s financial statements.

New Standard, Amendment 1o Standard and Interpretations Not Yet Adopted

The following are the new standard, amendment to standard and interpretations which are
not yet ffective for the year ended December 31, 2006, and have not been applied in
preparing these financial statements:

» PFRS 7, Financial Instrumenis: Disclosures requires extensive disclosures about the
significance of financial instruments for an entity’s financial pesition and
performance, and quantitative and qualitative disclosures on the nature and extent of
risks.

= Amendment to PAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements - Capital Disclosures
adds requirements to disclose the entity’s objectives, policies and processes for
managing capital; quantitative data about what the entity regards as capital; whether
the entity has complied with any capital requirements; and if it has not complied, the
consequences of such non-compliance.

Under the prevailing circumstances, the adoption of the above standard, amendment to
standard and interpretations in 2007 is not expected to have any material effect on the
Company’s financial statements.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash includes cash on hand and cash in banks. Cash equivalents are short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash with original
maturities of three months or less from dates of acquisition and that are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable are stated at face value, net of allowance if collection of the full
amount is no longer probable.

Inventories

Inventories are measured al the lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of
inventories is based on the first-in, first-out (FIFO} principle, and includes expenditure
incurred in acquiring the inventories and bringing them to their existing location and
condition. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less the estimated costs of selling expenses,




Investment in an Associate

Investment in an associate, Harbour Land Corporation (HLC), which is 40%-owned by
the Company and in which the Company has significant influence is accounted for under
the equity method of accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is carried in
the balance sheet at cost plus post-acquisition changes in the Company's share in the net
assets of the invesiee company. After the application of the equity method, the company
determines whether it is necessary lo recognize any additional impairment loss with
respect to the Company’s net investiment in the investee company. The statements of
revenues and expenses reflect the share of the results of the operations of the investee
company.

The Company discontinues applying the equity method when its investment in the
investee company is reduced to zero. Accordingly, additiona! losses are not recognized
unless the Company has guaranteed certain obligations of the investee company. When
the investee company subsequently reports net income, the Company will resume
applying the equity method but only afier its share in net income equals the share in net
losses not recognized during the period the equity method was suspended.

Property_and Equipment

ltems of property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation,
amortization and impairment losses, if any, except operating supplies (chinaware,
glassware, silverware, linen and utensils) which are not depreciated, based on industry
practice. Operating supplies are treated as a base stock upon initial opening of the hotel.

Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.
When parts of an item of property and equipment have different useful lives, they are
accounted for as separate items (major components) of property and equipment.

The cost of replacing part of an item of property and equipment is recognized in the
carrying amount of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied
within the part will flow to the Company and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs
of day-to-day servicing of property and equipment are recognized in statements of
revenues and expenses as incurred.

Depreciation is recognized in statements of revenues and expenses on a straight-line
basis over the estimated useful lives of ¢ach part of an item of property and equipment.
Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their
useful lives.

The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows:

Number of Years

Building and building improvements 46-50
Furniture, fixture and equipment 5-10
Transportation equipment 5
Leasehold improvements 5

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reassessed at each reporting
date.

Construction in progress, which pertains to renovation of rooms, is stated at cost and is
not depreciated until such time the renovation is completed.




Impairment
The carrying amounts of the Company’s non-financial assets, other than inventories and

deferred tax assets, are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any
indication of impairment, If any such indication exists then the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognhized if the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in statements of revenues and
expenses,

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to Philippine Peso at exchange rates at
the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at the reporting date are retranslated to the functional currency at the exchange
rate at that date. Foreign currency differences arising on retranslation arc recognized in
statements of revenues and expenses.

Leased Assets

The Company accounts for its {eases under the operating lease method. Under this
method the total lease payments are amortized as expense using the straight-line basis
over the term of the lease.

Revenue Recognition

Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Company and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. The following specific
recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Room revenue; Revenue is recognized upon actual room occupancy,
Food and beverage: Revenue is recognized upon delivery of order.

Rent income: Revenue from rental income is recognized on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is
recognized in statements of revenues and expenses except to the extent that it relates to
items recognized directly in equity, in which case it is recognized in equity.

Current income tax is expected tax payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax
rates enacted at the balance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

Deferred tncome tax is provided using the balance sheet method, providing for
temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is measured
at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to the temporary differences when they
reverse, based on the laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date.




A deferred income tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which temporary difference can be utilized.
Deferred income tax assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date and are reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that the related income tax benefit will be realized.

Treasury Stock
Treasury stock is carried at cosl.

Earnings Per Share

The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) for its ordinary assets.
Basic EPS is computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding during the year, afier giving retroactive effect to any stock
dividends declared during the year, if any. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the
net income for the effects of all dilutive potential shares, which comprise convertible
notes and share options granted to employees.

Related Parties

Parties are considered related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control
the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial
and operating decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to
common control or significant influence. Related parties may be individuals or corporate
entities.

Retirement Costs
The Company accrues retirement costs in accordance with the existing law, Republic Act
No. 7641.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

This account consists of:

2006 2005
Cash on hand and in banks P21,212,795 P16,859,570
Short-term investments 216,629,907 278,689,771

P237,842,702  P295,549,341

Cash in banks earn interest at the prevailing bank deposit rates. Short-term investments
consist mainly of time deposits which earn interest at prevailing market rates.




5.

Receivables

This account consists of:

2006 2005

Trade P198,237.668 P188,817,487
Interest (Note 15) 11,989,788 11,864,788
Advances to contractors 2,714,170 1,241,104
Advances to employees 99,489 587,661
Other receivables 7,986,534 4,421,556
221,027,649 206,932,596

Less allowance for doubtful accounts 440,058 502,424
' P220,587,591 P206,430,172

Trade receivables include billings for output tax to a certain government-controlled

corporation (see Note 14).

6. Inventories
This account consists of:
2006 2005
Food P2,448,772 P1,679,599
General supplies 2,259,229 3,197,429
Beverage and tobacco 1,040,611 1,294 897
Engineering supplies 866,517 882,734
Others 1,009,021 1,920,622
P7,624,150 P8,975,281
7. Prepayments and Other Current Assets
This account consists of;
2006 2005
Input tax P9,597,854 P2,414,123
Prepaid expenses 7,946,529 1,684,626
Others 33,344 640,345
P17,577,727 P4,739,094




8.

Income Tax

‘The components of the Company’s deferred income tax assets are as follows:

2006 2005

Provision for retirement P7,733,716 P6,209,889
Deferred rental income 2,586,843 2,586,407
Provision for bad debts 154,020 175,849
P10,474,579 P8,972,145

The reconciliation of the provision for income tax computed al statutory income tax rate
to the provision for income tax shown in the statements of revenues and expenses
follows:

2006 2005 2004

Provision for income tax at

statutory tax rate P81,966,099 P70,321,936 P49,189,357
Additions to {(reductions in)

income tax resulting from the

tax effects of:

Foreign exchange difference (869,593) 1,827,391 (1,451,744)
Income subjected to final tax (4,314,666) (2,767,702) (2,243,065)
Equity in net loss (income) of

an associate (187,890) (175,585) 453,005
QOthers - - (1,440,656)

P76,593,950 P69,206,040 P44,506,897

On May 24, 2005, Republic Act No. 9337 entitled “An Act Amending the National
Internal Revenue Code, as Amended, with Salient Features™ (Act), was passed into law
effective November 1, 2005. Among others, the Act includes the following significant
revisions to the rules of taxation:

a. Change in the corporate income tax rates from 32% to 35% starting November |,
2005 and to 30% starting January 1, 2009;

b. Change in the amount of interest expense disallowed as tax-deductible expense
equivalent to a certain percentage applied to the interest income subjected to final
tax; such percentage was changed from 38% to 42% starting November 1, 2005 and
to 33% starting Janvary I, 2009; and

c. Grant of authority to the Philippine President to increase the 10% VAT rate to 12%
effective February 1, 2006, subject to compliance with certain economic conditions.




9. Investment in an Associate
Investmient in an associate pertains to 40% ownership in Harbour Land Corporation
(HLC), a Philippine Corporation engaged in the real estate business,
This account consists of:
2006 2005
Acquisition cost P48,200,000 P48,200,000
Accumulated share in net losses:
Balance at beginning of year {4,028,024) (4,568,304)
Equity in net income of associate during the year 536,810 540,280
Balance at end of year (3,491,214) (4,028,024)
P44,708,786 P44,171,976
A summary of the financial information of HLC follows:
2006 2005
Total assets P149,302,604 P148,001,669
Total liabilities 91,530,638 91,571,730
Total stockholders’ equity 57,771,966 56,429,939
Net income 1,342,027 1,350,699
10. Loan Receivable

This pertains to the loan granted to Rogo Realty Corporation (RRC) which is
collateralized by RRC’s investment in shares of stock of HLC and is payable in year
2015 with interest rate of 5% per annum. The loan is carried at cost.




11. Property and Equipment

The movements in this account are as follows:

For the Vear Ended December 31, 2006

Furniture,
DBuilding and  Fixture and Transportation Leasehold  Operating  Construction
Improvements Equipment Equipment __Improvements Supplies in Progress Total
Gross carrying amount:
Balance at beginning
of year P969.959,007 P'300,633,726  F),159,091 P385.157 P33,651,470 P - PLIOTA8E45)
Additions 2,309,257 2,767,268 399,107 - - 27,351,619 s
1isposals - {237,071) - - - {737.071)
Balance at end of
year 971,168,264 302,661,923 4,158,198 385,157 33651470 27,351,619 1,340,478,631
Accumulated depreciation and
amortization:
Balance at beginning
of year 138,550,721 188,404,052 530,454 385,157 - - 527,920,385
Depreciation and
amortization for
Ihe year 2.251,766 3,703,579 636,789 - - - 25,637,134
Disposals - {137,071) - - - - {737,071}
Ralance a1 end of
year 159,802,488 191,370,560 1,262,243 385,157 - - 552,820,448
Canmying amount:
December 11, 2006 P712,465776  P11,293,363 I'Z,lﬂj5=955 P- P33,651,470 PlT..lS_l_ﬁ]? I‘Tl'."GSSIIIJ
December 31, 2005 P731408.28% PI12,229674  P2,678,637 P - P11,651,470 P - P779,968 066
For the Year Ended December 31, 2005
Building and Furnitre,
Building Fixture and Transpartation Leaschold  Operating
Impravements Equipment Equipment  Improvements Supplies Total
Gross carrying amount:
Balance at beginning of year P963,302,618 P294. 770,048 P2,082 362 P385,157 P33,651,470 P1,294,191,655
Addinons 6,656,189 7,514,046 2,560,000 - - 16,670,435
Disposals - (1650,368)  (1,323,271) . . (2,873.639)
Balance a1 end of year 949,959,007 300,631,726 3259091 385,157 33,651,470 £,307,888,451
Accumulated depreciation and amortization:
Balance al beginning of year 217477622 284,526,115 1,626,907 385,157 - 504,016,001
Deprecigtion and amentization
for the year 21,073,10¢ 5,528,105 270,818 - - 26,878,021
Disposals - {1,650,368)  (1,323.271) - - (2,971.639)
Balance at end of year 238,550,722 288,404,052 580,454 385,157 - 527,920,385
Carrying amount:
December 31, 2005 P73),408,285 P12.220674  P2.678.617 P P31651470  P179,968,066
Iyecember 31, 2004 745,824,996 P10,243,713 P455.455 - PI3,651.470 P790,175,654
12. Other Assets
This account consists of:
2006 2005
Deposit on lease contract {Note 15) P78,000,000 P78,000,000
Prepaid rental (Note 15) 10,678,565 10,678,565
Miscellaneous investments and deposits 5,118,790 5,116,790
Others 1,010,000 1,010,000
P94,807,355 P94,805,355




13. Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

This account consists of

2006 2005
Trade payables P22,378,372 P22,981,533
Accrued liabilities 60,730,535 54,233,350
Others 499,125 499,125
P83,608,032 P77,714,008
14. Other Current Liabilitics

This account consists of:
2006 2005
Output tax payable P154,836,603  P144,028,820
Reserves (Note 16} 22,759,198 18,679,826
Deferred rental 7,390,979 7,389,734
Others 15,239,783 21,113,158
P200,226,563 P191,211,538

QOutput tax payable consists mainly of output tax charged to a certain government-
controlled corporation, as mentioned in Note 5.

15. Related Party Transactions

Transactions with Related Parties

The Company has significant transactions with related parties as indicated below.

Nature 2006 2005
Due from related parties:

HLC Advances P1,003,294 P1,004,626
RRC Advances 6,784 5,623,171

CDL Hotels (Phils.)
Corporation (CDL) Advances 2,448 7,455,456
1,012,526 14,083,253
RRC fnterest 11,664,788 10,889,788
HLC Interest 325,000 975,000
11,989,788 11,864,788
RRC 1.oan 15,500,000 15,500,000
HLC Lease depaosit 78,000,000 78,000,000
HLC Prepaid rent 10,678,565 10,678,565
PL117,180,879  P130,126,606
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Nature 2006 2005

Due to related parties:

CDL Management fee P3,004,486 P9,616,201
HLC Rent payable 962,872 2,834,622

Millennium & Copthorne
Int’l. Ltd. Advances 300,453 268,886
P4,267, 811 P12,749,709

In the normal course of business, the Company grantsfobtains advances to/from refated
parties for working capital purposes. These advances are not interest-bearing and have no
definite payment terms.

The interest receivable from HLC arises from the 5% interest on the lease deposit of the
Company to HLC.

The interest receivable from RRC arises from the 5% interest on the loan granted by the
Company to RRC.

The Company has a management contract with CDL under which the latter provides
management, technical and administrative services to the Company in return for a yearly
management and incentive fees equivalent to a certain percentage of total gross revenue
and of gross operating profit, respectively.

The relationship of the Company with the related parties is shown below:

Related Party Relationship

RRC Under common control

HLC Associate

CDL Under common control

The Philippine Fund Limited Intermediate parent company
Millenium & Copthorne Int’l. Ltd. Ultimate parent company

Transactions with Key Management Personnel

The total remuneration of key management personnel is shown below:

2006 2005 2004
Directors P3,024,000 P2,772,047 P1,226,150
Executive officers 12,123,356 25,648,917 25,347,712

P15,147,356 P23,420,964 P26,573,902

The Company does not provide post-employment and equity-based compensation
benefits to its directors and executive officers.




16. Reserves

The changes in reserves consist of:

2006 2005
Balance at beginning of year P21,053,839 P17,477,115
Additions 8,385,534 8,068,767
Utilization (6,680,175) (6,866,056)
Balance at end of year (Note 14) P22,759,198 P18,679,826

This account pertains to reserves set up by the Company to defray the cost of replacing
certain operating supplies of the Hotel such as lost, broken, damaged or worn-out
chinaware, glassware, linen, bed sheets, etc.

17. Cost of Sates
This is account consists of:
2006 2005 2004
Inventory, beginning P8,975,281 P9,190,928 P8,292,405
Purchases 64,102,153 64,282 008 64,074,027
Available for sale 73,077,434 73,472,930 72,366,432
Inventory, ending (7,624,150) (8,975,281) (9,199,928)
P65,453,284 P64,497,655 P63,175,504
18. Selling and Operating Expenses
This account consists of:
2006 2005 2004
Salaries, wages and employee
benefits:
Food and beverage P48,001,577 P44,146,724 P48,245,352
Rooms 25,089,431 21,655,230 22,612,094
Other operated departments 2,902,112 3,745,106 3,819,371
75,993,120 69,547,060 74,676,817
Property operation, maintenance,
energy and conservation 97,667,359 105,121,596 92,446,370
Guest supplies 8,757,893 9,638,549 8,530,393
Laundry and dry cleaning 4,328,967 3,655,191 2,907,324
Kitchen fuel 3,229,529 3,285,588 2,727,059
Transporl charges 1,583,942 2449475 927,734
Printing and stationery 1,433,446 1,537,137 1,620,229
Cleaning supplies 1,392,469 1,435,768 1,330,278
Permits and licenses 1,350,073 1,119,705 1,181,872
Music and entertainment 1,313,043 1,292,034 1,261,952
Reservation expenses 1,111,648 1,428,389 704,448
Commission 547,574 579,802 459,913
Miscellaneous 3,574,850 2,534,078 3,267,463
P202,283,913 P203,624,372  P192,041,852




19. Administrative Expenses

This account consists of:

2006 2005 2004
Hotel Overhead Departments
Salaries, wages and employee
benefits:
Administrative and general P36,524,054 P32,257,451 P33,934,637
Engineering 8,835,142 7,645,997 7,605,491
Sales and marketing 7,208,155 6,245,402 6,964,390
Human resources 2,452,909 2,061,630 2,522 818
55,020,260 48,210,480 51,027,336
Management and incentive fees 31,875,716 30,797,778 24,534,409
Credit card commission 5,218,836 4,624,023 3,996,151
Legal and professional fees 3,422,804 3,600,859 2,914,099
Data processing 2,598,474 1,050,024 1,079,442
Entertainment 1,492,634 978,150 1,068,631
Communication 835,019 1,098,719 1,286,884
Printing and stationery 847,178 928,622 922,782
Awards and social activities 153,766 671,612 940,342
Training 25,189 401,074 900,141
Miscellaneous 8,308,833 4,877,905 7,592,453
109,798,709 97,239,246 96,262,670
Corporate Office

Depreciation 25,637,134 26,878,023 39,643,967
Insurance 14,111,359 13,086,061 11,994,854
Leased land rental 10,798,560 10,798,560 8,016,900
Property tax 9,265,681 9,265,681 9,000,001
Miscellaneous 18,256,328 17,262,437 3,556,712
78,069,062 77,290,762 72,212,474
P187,867,771  P174,530,008 P168,475,144

20. Treasury Stock

The board of directors, in its meeting on May 15, 2006, approved the purchase of
2,913,802 shares of the Company at P50 per share from its stockholders on record as of
June 5, 2006. The buy-back offer was to purchase one (|) share out of every twenty-six
(26) shares held by each shareholder as of record date.

The board of directors, in its meeting on April 18, 2005, approved the purchase of
2,228,261 shares of the Company at P50 per share from its stockholders on record as of
May 9, 2005. The buy-back offer was to purchase one (1)} share out of every thirty-five
(35) shares held by each shareholder as of record date.

As of December 31, 2006, 13,942,062 shares were held in treasury afier share buy-back
of 2,913,802 shares in May 20006,
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21. Dividend Declaration

The board of directors declared cash dividends on various dates as follows:

Stockhalders on Date of Dividend
Date of Meeting Record as of Payment per Share Amount
Oct. 23, 2006 Nov. 8,2006  Dec. 1, 2006 P0.70 P51,363,345
Nov. 25, 2005 Dec.9,2005  Dec. 23, 2005 0.30 22,887,003
Oct. 14, 2004 Nov. 3, 2004  Nov. 20, 2004 0.20 15,703,654
22. Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share are computed as follows:
2006 2005 2004
Outstanding number of shares
Balance at beginning of year - net
of treasury stock of 13,942,062
shares, 11,028,261 shares and
8,800,000 shares in 2006, 2005
and 2004, respectively 76,290,009 78,518,270 78,518,270
Acquisition of treasury stock 2,913,801 2,228,261 -
73,376,208 76,290,009 78,518,270
2006 2005 2004
Net income for the year Pi57,594,904 P147,169,165 P109,209,843
Divided by outstanding shares 73,376,208 76,290,009 78,518,270
P2.15 P1.93 P1.39

There are no potential dilutive commeon stock for the years presented.

23. Retirement Cost

The Company accrues retirement benefits for its employees in compliance with Republic
Act No. 7641 “Philippine Retirement Law” which requires a company to pay a minimum
retirement benefits to employees who retire after reaching the mandatory retirement age
of 65 years old or the optional retirement age of 60 years old with at least five (5) years
of service to the company.

Provision for retirement amounted to P4,470,059, P2.986,418 and P4,479,627 for the
vears 200G, 2005 and 2004, respectively. As at December 31, 2006 and 2005, accrued
retirement liability presented under “Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses” account
totaled P22,006,333 and 717,742,541, respectively.

Based on the latest actvarial valuation of the Company’s retirement liability under
Republic Act No. 7641 as of December 31, 2006, the current service cost is P2,082,152
and P1,217,871 in 2006 and 2005, respectively, and the present value of obligation is
P16,456,780 and P14,326,413 in 2006 and 2005, respectively. The retirement fund is
currently unfunded.
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24. Leases

Lease Receivables

The Company leases certain portions of the Hotel premises to third parties for a term of
three years with options for extension/renewal upon mutual agreement of the parties. The
leases include provisions for rental increment ranging from 5% to 12% upon renewal of
the contracts subject to renegotiations of both parties. Future minimum lease receivables
are as follows:

2006 2005 2004

Due within one year P101,535,303 P110,270,575 P92,367,900
After one year but not more than

five years 50,924,644 165,445,174 51,553,862

P152,459,947 P275,715,749 P143,921,762

The lease agreements with the third parties required the latter to give the Company lease
deposits in the total amount of P23,470,282 shown as part of “Refundable Deposits™ in
the balance sheet.

Lease Obligations
The Company leases the land occupied by the Hotel from HLC for a period of 25 years

up to January 1, 2015. Future minimum rental obligations on the land are as follows:

2006 2005 2004

Due within one year P10,678,565 P10,678,565 P10,678,565
After one year but not more than

five years 42,714,260 42,714,260 42,714,260

More than five years 32,035,695 53,392,825 64,071,390

P85,428,520 P106,785,650 P117,464.215

On August 1, 2004, the Company, as lessee, and HLC, as lessor, agreed to amend the
Contract of Lease with Option to Purchase executed hy the parties on November 12,
1991 covering the lease of the land. The amended contract provides for the following
changes:

a.  The annual rental on the land was increased from 5,910,000 to P 10,678,565,

b.  The required lease deposit (shown as part of “Other Assets” in the balance sheet)
was increased from P58 million to P78 million;

c. The interest rate on the lease deposit which the lessor is obligated to pay to the
Company was reduced from 10% per annum to 5%;

d.  The parties agreed to convert a portion of the unpaid interest on the lease deposit in
the amount of P10,678,565 into advance rental payment (shown as part of “Other
Assets” in the balance sheet) to be applied on the rent due from the Company for the
year 2009; and

&

The parties agreed to convert a portion of the unpaid interest on the lease deposit in
the amount of P20 million into “Deposit on Lease Contract” to cover the full
amount of the agreed increase in the lease deposit.
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The Company also leases a fully furnished townhouse unit from HLC for a period of 2
years up to December 31, 2007 renewable at the option of both parties. The annual rental
on the townhouse unit is P120,000.

25

Appropriation of Retained Earnings

The Company has appropriated the amount of P145,690,100 and P111,413,050 in 2006
and 20035, respectively, to finance the acquisition of treasury stock during those years.

26,

Financial Assets and Liabilities

The Company’s financial assets consisting of shares of stock and liabilities are
recognized initially at fair value. Transaction costs (debts issuance costs) are included in
the initial measurement of all financial assets and liabilities. Subsequent to initial
recognition, assets and liabilities are valued at amortized cost using the effective interest
rate method or the fair value depending on the classification.

The estimated fair values of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities as of
December 31, 2006 and 2006 approximate their carrying values based on the following
methods and assumptions used to estimate fair value of each class of financial instrument
for which it is practicable to estimate such value:

Financial Assets

Due to the short-term nature of the transactions, the fair value of cash and cash
equivalents and receivables approximate the amount of consideration at the time of initial
recognition. Investment in an associate is accounted for under the equity method as
required under PAS 28 Investment in an Associate. Loan receivable is carried at cost in
the balance sheets.

Financial Liabilities

Due to the short-term nature of the transactions, the fair value of accounts payable and
accrued expenses and other liabilities approximate the amount of consideration at the
time of initial recognition.

Einancial Risk Management Objectives and Policies
The Company's principal financial instruments comprise cash, short-term time deposits,
receivables, and payables.

Exposure to credit, interest rate, liquidity and currency risks arise in the normal course of
the Company's business activities. The main objectives of the Company's financial risk
management are as follows:

= toidentify and monitor such risks on an ongoing basis;
* to minimize and mitigate such risks; and
* 1o provide a degree of certainty about costs.

The Company's financing and treasury function operates as a centralized service for

managing financial risks and activities as well as providing optimum investment yiel
and cost-efficient funding for the Company.
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Credit Risk

The investment of the Company's cash resources is managed so as to minimize risk while
seeking to enhance yield. The Company's holding of cash and money market placements
expose the Company to credit risk of the counterparty if the counterparty is unwilling or
unable to fulfill its obligations, and the Company consequently suffers financial loss.
Credit risk management involves entering into financial transactions only with
counterparties with acceptable credit standing. The treasury policy sets aggregate credit
Limits of any one counterparty and annually reviews the exposure limits and credit ratings
of the counterparties.

The Company has credit management policies in place to ensure that rental contracts are
entered into with customers who have sufficient financial capacity and good credit
history.

Receivables balance is being monitored on a regular basis to ensure timely execution of
necessary intervention efforts.

As of balance sheet date, there were no significant concentrations of credit risk.

Interest Rate Risk
The Company has no debt obligations to third parties. As such the Company has minimal
interest rate risk.

Liquidity Risk

The Company monitors its cash flow position and overall liquidity position in assessing
its exposure to liquidity risk. The Company maintains a level of cash and cash
equivalents deemed sufficient to finance operations and to mitigate the effects of
fluctuation in cash flows. The maturities of short-term money market placements are
balanced between maximization of earnings and meeting cash requirements.

Foreign Currency Risk

Financial assets and financing facilities extended to the Company were mainly
denominated in Philippine Peso. As such, the Company's foreign currency risk is
minimal.

27.

Contingencies

The Company, in the ordinary course of business, is a party to certain labor and other
cases which are under protest or pending decisions by the courts, the outcome of which
are not presently determinable. in the opinion of Management and its legal counsel, the
eventual liability arising from these cases or claims, if any, will not have a material effect
on the Company’s financial position or results of operations.

28.

Reclassification

Certain accounts in the 2005 financial statements have been reclassified to conform with
the 2006 financial statements presentation.
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GRAND PLAZA HOTEL CORPORATION
Schedule A - Marketable Securities - Current Marketable Equity Securities
and Other Short-Term Cash Investments
December 31, 2006

Number of shares or  Amount shown

principal amount of in the

Name of issuing entity and
balance sheet Income acerued

association of each issue bonds and notes
ANZ Bank P162,859,629 P162,859,629 P246,882
Dao Heng Bank - Hongkong 53,770,278 53,770,278 47,476
P216,629,907 P216,629,907 P294,358
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GRAND PLAZA HOTEL CORPORATION

Schedule D - Indebtedness of Unconsolidated Subsidiaries and Related Parties

December 31, 20006
Balance at Balance at
beginning of end of
Description Nature period period
Due from related parties:

Rogo Realty Corporation Advances P5,623,171 P6,784
Harbour Land Corporation Advances 1,004,626 1,003,294
CDL Hotels (Phils.) Corporation Advances 7,455,456 2,448
14,083,253 1,012,526
Harbour Land Corporation Interest 975,000 325,000
Ropo Realty Corporation Interest 10,889,788 11,664,788
11,864,788 11,989,788
Rogo Realty Corporation Loan 15,500,000 15,500,000
Harbour Land Corporation Lease Deposit 78,000,000 78,000,000
Harbour Land Corporation Prepaid Rent 10,678,565 10,678,565

P130,126,606 P117,180,879




GRAND PLAZA HOTEL CORPORATION
Schedule G - Indebtedness to Related Parties (Long-Term Loans from Related Companies)

December 31, 20006
Balance at
Balance at beginning end of
Description of period period
Due to related parties:
Millennium & Copthorne Int'l. Ltd. P298,886 P300,453
CDL Hotels (Phils.) Corporation 9,616,201 3,004,486
Harbour Land Corporation 2,834,622 962,872

P12,749,709 P4,267,811
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GRAND PLAZA HOTEL CORPORATION
List of Top Twenty (20) Stockholders of Record
December 31, 2006

No. of Percentage to
Name of Stockholders Citizenship Shares Held  Total Qutstanding
The Philippine Fund Limited Bermuda 39,249,343 44.95%
Zatrio PTE Ltd Singaporean 24,280,450 27.81%
Grand Plaza Hotel Corporation -

Treasury stocks Filipino 13,942,063 15.97%
PCD Nominee Corporation {Filipino) Filipino 9,267,339 10.61%
Alexander Sy Wong Filipino 47,256 0.05%
Yam Kum Cheong Filipino 7,000 0.01%
Pam Poh Choo Filipino 7,000 0.01%
Phoon Lin Mui Filipino 7,000 0.01%
Yam Kit Seng Filipino 7,000 0.01%
Lucas M. Nunag Filipino 4,800 0.01%
Natividad Kwan Filipino 4,320 0.00%
Le Ying Tan-Lao Filipino 3,610 0.00%
Yam Kit Sung Filipino 2,999 0.00%
Peter Kan Singaporean 2,650 0.00%
Romeo L. Salonga Filipino 2,400 0.00%
Christopher Lim Filipino 2,332 0.00%
Norberto R. Ong Filipino 2,000 0.00%
Robert Uy Filipino 2,600 0.00%
Estrella M, Dela Cruz Filipino 1,900 0.00%
James Jao & / Or Henry Jao Filipino 1,687 0.00%

86,845,149 99.46%




GRAND PLAZA HOTEL CORPORATION
SUPPLEMENTARY DATA - NUMBER OF SHARES HELD
BY DIRECTORS/OFFICERS

December 31, 2006
No. of Shares
Names Position Held
Natividad B. Kwan Corporate Secretary and Compliance Officer 4,320
2,999

General Manager

Eddie Yeo Ban Heng Director / General Manager ]
7,320

Yam Kit Sung
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